DAKOTA COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION

Dakota County Western Service Center — Room 106
14955 Galaxie Avenue
Apple Valley, MN 55124
Thursday, September 26, 2024
7:00 PM —9:00 PM

Agenda

. Call to Order
1. Pledge of Allegiance

IR Public Comments:
Anyone wishing to address the Planning Commission on an item not on the agenda may address
the Planning Commission at this time (comments are limited to 5 minutes).

V. Approval of the Agenda
V. Approval of Previous Meeting Minutes of Meeting Held on August 22, 2024

VI. Dakota County Solid Waste Management Plan — Action (final plan)
(Renee Burman — Environment and Natural Resources)

VII. Dakota County 2050 Vision for Parks and Natural Resources — Information (visioning)
(Lil Leatham — Planning Office)

VIIl. Planning Manager Update and County Board Actions
e Approved schematic design for Spring Lake Park Reserve Trailhead at Fischer Avenue
e Provided comments on Metropolitan Council’s draft Imagine 2050 Plan
e Recommended renaming of the Lebanon-Mendota Greenway
e Discussed the role of transit in Dakota County

IX. Upcoming Public Meetings — Community Outreach

2050 Parks Vision Plan September 22, Noon-4:00pm

Pop up Lebanon Hills Regional Park Visitor Center

Veterans Memorial Greenway September 29, 10:00am-noon

Pop up at Farmers Market Veterans Memorial Community Center, Inver Grove Heights

County Highway 73 (Babcock Trail) October 1, 4:30pm-6:30pm

Open House Veterans Memorial Community Center, Inver Grove Heights

County Highway 26 (70 Street) October 8, 4:30pm-6:00pm and 6:00pm-7:30pm

Open House Veterans Memorial Community Center, Inver Grove Heights
X. Topics for Next Meeting (Thursday, October 24, 2024 — 7 p.m., Western Service Center, 106)

e None at this time

Xl. Planning Commissioner Announcements/Updates

XIl. Adjourn



i COUNTYi

Meeting Minutes: Dakota County Planning Commission
Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes-DRAFT

Date: 8/22/2024
Minutes prepared by Liz Hansen
Location: Thompson County Park, Dakota Lodge

Attendance
Members Present Dakota County staff members
e Jerry Rich attending:
e Amy Hunting e Kurt Chatfield, Planning
o Kelly Kausel Manager
e Dennis Peine e Liz Hansen, Administrative
e Lori Hansen Coordinator
e Jill Smith e Niki Geisler, Parks Director
e Barry Graham e Tony Wotzka, Greenways
e Mike Cahn Manager
e Steve Shurts e Beth Landahl, Visitor
Services Manager
Member(s) Absent:

e Brady Folkestad
e James Guttmann
e Tony Nelson

Meeting Called to Order

e Time: 6:15 p.m.
e By Chair, Commissioner Amy Hunting

Pledge of Allegiance

e The Planning Commission opened the meeting by reciting the Pledge of Allegiance.



Public Comments

e Comments/Notes: No audience member wished to address an item not on the agenda.

Approval of Agenda

Chair Hunting asked if there were any changes to the agenda.
The Planning Commission advised no changes, additions, or deletions.
MOTION: Commissioner Hansen moved, seconded by Commissioner Cahn, approving the agenda. Voice vote:

Ayes — 9 — Nays — 0 — Unanimously Approved

Approval of Minutes (from May 23, 2024)

Chair Hunting asked if there were any changes to the previous meeting’s minutes.
The Planning Commission advised no changes, additions, or deletions.

MOTION: Commissioner Graham moved, seconded by Commissioner Smith, approving the previous meeting’s
minutes. Voice vote: Ayes — 9 — Nays — 0 Abstain — 0 — Unanimously Approved

Welcome New Planning Commissioner — Stephen Shurts, District 6

Planning Commission Chair Amy Hunting introduced new member Stephen Shurts, representing District 6. Steve
is originally from Wisconsin and is a Badger fan. His background is in nuclear and electrical engineering. He is
currently retired and enjoys spending time with his grandkids. Steve looks forward to serving on the Planning
Commission.

Park Capital Improvement Program Update — Information
(Tony Wotzka - Parks)

The Planning Commission received an update on the projects that are currently included in the draft 2025-2029
CIP for the overall Dakota County Parks and Greenways system.

Questions and comments by the Commissioners, along with responses from staff (italics):

Is grant writing a separate department or is there a grant writing specialist at Dakota County? Staff responded
that there are a number of people who prepare grants from different departments. Multiple people are needed
because grant writing requires subject expertise. The County also uses consultants for some grants depending on
the time, effort, and expertise needed for each grant application.



What is the status of the Lebanon Hills Sustainable Trails study? Staff responded that Phase 1 of the project will
begin in September. A brief update was provided, which included sharing that there will be public engagement
during the design process.

A Commissioner asked about funding levels for the Natural Resource Management Program in the future. There
appears to be a reduction in the Capital Improvement Program. Staff responded that the Natural Resource
Management Program is adequately funded for 2025 and beyond. There will not be a reduction in staff or in the
resources dedicated to these efforts. Staff shared that the draft CIP only shows one data point at this point in the
budget process and that additional detail will be provided throughout the budgeting season to show the financial
commitments to Natural Resources.

Does Dakota County receive outside funds for natural resource restoration and management Projects? Staff
responded that the County receives significant funding for natural resource restoration and is anticipating that it
may receive even more funding from the State LCCMR next year based on recent recommendations from the
State LCCMR committee. The County Board has discussed the benefits of seeking and receiving external funding,
but also that external funds are often less consistent and, therefore, less reliable than other funding sources. The
County Board is likely to continue discussing options for reliable and consistent funding for the park system
operations and maintenance.

Property insurance is increasing because of Minnesota’s hail storms and climate. Is that part of the operating
budget? Staff responded that Dakota County is self-insured, so it will not need to pay more for private insurance,
but nonetheless may need to reserve additional funding to pay for the damages caused by more severe storm
events. Staff will follow up with the Capital Facilities Department regarding whether storm damage costs have
increased over time.

How does Dakota County determine how much of the budget should be reserved for improvements to the park
system vs. maintenance? Do park plans still show the need for new improvements? Staff responded that current
long-range park plans that have been recommended by the Planning Commission and approved by the County
Board still show the options for future improvements. Operations and maintenance costs continue to grow with
the growth of the system and staff try to anticipate these expenses along with the capital improvement plans.

The CIP summary shows significant variability in the amounts set aside for natural resource projects from year to
year. Why is that? Staff responded that the current CIP does not show the funding that was approved and carried
over from previous years, and that often funding from previous years is still programmed for future

projects. When taking into account funding from previous years, as well as external dollars received, there is less
variability in natural resource expenditures from year to year.

A comment was made that the County Board previously stated that it wanted to accelerate the greenways. Staff

responded that the draft CIP has a number of greenway projects, ranging from design to construction phases.
The board will discuss these projects moving forward when the CIP is reviewed and approved.

Planning Manager Update and County Board Actions

Comments/Notes: Kurt Chatfield, Planning Manager, provided the Planning Commission with an update on the
following County Board Actions:



¢ Discussed 2050 Vision for Parks and Natural Resources — Connected Places

* Reviewed proposed Capital Improvement Plan

* Approved contract for design services for Lebanon Hills sustainable trails improvements
* Approved design for Fischer Avenue Trailhead at Spring Lake Park Reserve

Upcoming Public Meetings — Community Outreach

County Hwy 50 and I-35 Interchange | September 9, 2024 from 4:30pm-6:30pm

Open House Celebration Church
(16655 Kenyon Ave, Lakeville, MN 55044)
2050 Park Vision Plan Comments period now through September 22
Online input https://zanassoc.mysocialpinpoint.com/dakota-county-

2050-vision-plan

CSAH 73 (Babcock Trail) and Upper | October 1, from 4:30pm-6:30pm

55" trail design Veterans Memorial Community Center, Inver Grove Heights
Open House

Topics for next meeting (Thursday, September 26, 2024)

Kurt Chatfield, Planning Manager, provided an overview of next month’s meeting topics:
. Solid Waste Management Plan — consider recommending adoption
. 2050 Park Vision Framework — vision and goals

Planning Commissioner Announcements/Updates:

No updates or announcements were given.

Tour

The Planning Commission went on a walking tour of Thompson County Park. Staff provided an overview of

recent improvements, including the Thompson Lake water quality project, ADA loop trail, play area

improvements, and programming changes. The Planning Commission discussed how the improvements at
Thompson have been received by the changing community. Planning Commission members also discussed the
possibility of combining Thompson County Park with Kaposia and Kaposia Landing as a potential new regional
park as suggested in the County’s Park System Plan adopted in 2008. The tour concluded with the adjournment

of the Planning Commission meeting.


https://zanassoc.mysocialpinpoint.com/dakota-county-2050-vision-plan
https://zanassoc.mysocialpinpoint.com/dakota-county-2050-vision-plan

Adjournment

Chair Hunting asked for a motion to adjourn.

MOTION: Commissioner Rich moved, seconded by Commissioner Shurts, to adjourn the meeting at 7:52 p.m.
Voice Vote: Ayes — 8 — Nays — 0 — Unanimously Approved.

Next Meeting: Thursday, September 26, 2024, at 7:00 p.m., Dakota County
Western Service Center, Apple Valley

Respectfully submitted,

Liz Hansen, Administrative Coordinator



DAKOTA COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION

DATE: September 26, 2024

AGENDA ITEM: Recommendation to the Dakota County Board to Authorize Submittal of the 2024 Draft Solid
Waste Management Plan to the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency for Review and Approval

PREPARED BY: Mary Jackson

PURPOSE

Provide Planning Commission an overview of:

1. Draft plan public review and comment period

2. Draft 2024-2044 Dakota County Solid Waste Management Plan revisions
3. Next Steps

BACKGROUND

On January 30, 2024, the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency (MPCA) adopted the 2022-2042 Metropolitan
Solid Waste Management Policy Plan (https://www.pca.state.mn.us/sites/default/files/w-sw7-22.pdf) which
guides solid waste management in the seven-county Metropolitan Area. It prescribes required county strategies
and directs counties to select additional optional strategies to meet a minimum required point threshold. Minn.
Stat. § 473.803 requires metropolitan counties to submit their revised plans to the MPCA within nine months of
Policy Plan adoption, which is by October 30, 2024.

Round one of public engagement (September 1-October 15, 2023) identified waste management barriers and
opportunities. Round two (April 1-24, 2024) sought comment on implementation timing and needs for a
preliminary set of required and optional strategies from the Policy Plan. From September 2023 through April
2024, more than 2,000 responses were received from residents, businesses, schools, public entity officials,
waste industry representatives and other stakeholders.

Based upon public engagement findings and an assessment of the required and optional strategies, staff drafted
the 2024-2044 Dakota County Solid Waste Management Plan (2024-2044 Management Plan) to meet statutory
requirements. The draft plan was released for public comment and review from August 1-21, 2024. The draft
plan was posted online and promoted through media releases, social media, and emails; and staff hosted an
information table at the Dakota County Fair on August 8 and 9, 2024. Comments were received from 22
individuals or organizations.

The 2024-2044 Management Plan was developed in accordance with Minn. Stat. § 473.803 and 115A. It
communicates Dakota County’s vision, policies, strategies, tactics and timing for solid waste management over
the next twenty years, and includes the following types of strategies with implementation timelines based on
the Policy Plan and stakeholder feedback:

e All Policy Plan required strategies,

e Sufficient Policy Plan optional strategies (totalling 82 points) to meet the minimum required point value
of 75 points, and

e Continuing county strategies for ongoing activities from the 2018-2038 Solid Waste Master Plan.

Staff request that the Commission recommends that the Dakota County Board authorize submittal of 2024-2044
Management Plan to the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency for review and approval.

ATTACHMENTS
A. Public Commments
B. Draft 2024-2044 Management Plan

QUESTIONS
The following questions are provided to assist in reviewing the packet materials.

1. What stands out from the draft plan review comments?
2. Do the plan revisions address public review comments?


https://www.pca.state.mn.us/sites/default/files/w-sw7-22.pdf
https://www.pca.state.mn.us/sites/default/files/w-sw7-22.pdf

Public Comments on the 2024-2044 Draft Solid Waste Management Plan

The draft 2024-2044 Draft Solid Waste Management Plan (2024-2044 Management Plan) was presented to the
Dakota County Physical Development Committee of the Whole on July 23, 2024, and was available for public
review and comment from August 1 through August 21, 2024. Residents, businesses, schools, and waste
industry representatives were invited to comment by email at wasteless@co.dakota.mn.us or by mail.
Comments were requested using a variety of promotions, including:

e County website

e Pressrelease

e E-newsletters (Residential, Hauler, Business, Parks, Recycling Ambassadors, Schools, Multifamily, Fix-it
Clinic, and Organics Drop Site)

e Social media platforms

e Emails to haulers and facilities, city administrators and recycling staff, rural city/township contacts,
reuse organizations, food rescue organizations, tree waste organizations, and deconstruction
organizations.

Staff also invited public comment at a display table in the Natural Resources building at the Dakota County Fair
on August 9 and 10, 2024.

In total, 22 individual commenters provided 54 comments. Comments and staff recommendations for
responding to the comments in the 2024-2044 Management Plan are included below.

Revision To Strategies Recommended from Comments
Plan revisions are recommended based on the following public comments:

Change strategy #28 by expanding
| am concerned about the numbers of garbage hauler to provide support (e.g., funding,
companies in my neighborhood. | do not see anything in technical assistance, educational
the plan about this issue. Every Thursday a minimum of resources) to interested
12 dump trucks are on our streets. This is a poor use of Recycling and municipalities to research or
our resources: wasted gas, polluted air from Organics implement best waste management
truck exhausts, wear & tear of our roads, and safety Management collection practices beyond just for
concerns. It would make sense for the cities to contract with Collection organics collection to all waste
with the garbage haulers so that each neighborhood Best Practices streams (organics, recycling, trash),

Janae would have 3 garbage trucks from one hauler each Strategy 28 (pg. consistent with the county's 2018-
Barriuso Unknown week. 13) 2038 plan.




My neighborhood has five different trash haulers (Nitti,
WM, DSI, Republic & Buckingham). They each send three
truck (Waste, Recycle and yard waste) though our
neighborhood each week for a total of 15 truck-trips. The
environmental impact of this process is mind boggling. |
also often wonder at the environmental impact to the

Recycling and
Organics
Management
with Collection
Best Practices

Change strategy #28 by expanding
to provide support (e.g., funding,
technical assistance, educational
resources) to interested
municipalities to research or
implement best waste management
collection practices beyond organics
collection to all waste streams
(organics, recycling, trash),

Jon Derik Resident of | water as | rinse our spaghetti sauce jars, etc..... for Strategy 28 (pg. consistent with the county's 2018-
Dautel Lakeville recycling? Did | do more harm than good? 13) 2038 plan.
Rates: We just want to note that it appears as though
National there is a mix of gate rate and “all in” (the rate includes
Waste & host fees, taxes, etc.) rate information from the various NA - Appendix A Change Appendix A by adding
Recycling facilities serving Dakota County. We respectfully request | facility tables (pg. | details about the source of the rate
Phil Shaffer | Association | that this be noted in the plan. 45) data for Table 4.

No Change Recommended
The following public comments were considered, but no plan changes are being recommended:

CarolAnn
Hook

Resident of
Burnsville

I’'m really excited about the proposals for improving the
county’s recycling rates and the amount that we are
including in our organics waste collection. My husband and |
had a YIMPY composter for years and it was too complicated
for me to really get good compost from it. It seemed like it
was too dry, too wet, both at the same time somehow; it
became a home for wasps in two different summers — which
was kind of cool to see since at least someone was using it
successfully. So when we learned of the food waste
collection program, we got on board right away, initially
having to drive about 15 minutes to drop off our scraps and
such, but later being able to drive 2 minutes. We love the
program and have seen a dramatic reduction in waste in our
household. However, when encouraging both my sister’s
family and my mom to start doing it, they complained that
they didn’t have time to drive it there. | don’t know if this is
a fair complaint, but | think offering regular pickups at
residents’ home would make it much more likely that
individuals like my family members would try it more. | think
we will definitely need more guidance on how to manage
smells and animal interactions, though. We have a small,
aluminum container that we line with the bag in our home,
and a second plastic bucket with a lid in the garage. The
metal never gets stinky, so we just have to wash it
sometimes to get it clean again. The bucket came from my
school and had pickles in it, so | don’t know if it smells when
it’s empty. We've had flies lay eggs in the bucket (leading to
maggots, of course) in the summer months. I’'m a gardener,
so | just rinse them out on the driveway, hoping the birds
will find the easy meal, but the eggs stick to the sides and
have to be wiped off and the maggots are very squirmy and
generally make me wash my hands a couple times after
cleaning them off.

Recycling and
Organics
Management
with Collection
Best Practices
Strategy 28
(pg- 13)

No change. Comment of support.
Strategy includes providing
residents with education and
removes barriers to participation.




I’'m intrigued on the communication about recycling and
would love to see more specific feedback on which plastics
are truly being recycled. I’'ve seen videos and articles
suggesting that the public, at large, is being lied to about
which plastics are even recyclable (at a reasonable cost) and | Education and No change. Comment of support for
this has given corporations the excuse to continue to mass Regional education on waste reduction and
produce plastic that will be unlikely to ever be recycled. I'd Planning strategies to provide more frequent
CarolAnn Resident of love to be more informed on whether my own choices are Strategy 5 (pg. | information on what, when and
Hook Burnsville making an impact and how they can be improved 9) where to recycle.
No change. Comment of support.
Recycling and Plan strategies #25 and #30 support
Organics continued implementation of
| apologize that | have not read the entire report and am Management requirements for businesses to
only commenting on a couple of sections. | am eager to see Strategies 25 recycle and divert organics and
CarolAnn Resident of the encouragement for businesses to be more and 30 (pgs. provide resources to implement
Hook Burnsville environmentally responsible 25, 26) best waste management practices.
I’'m especially excited to see the push for events to figure out
how to be more environmentally friendly. | am so frustrated
and disappointed when I’'m at an event (in our city or
another city) and | see that there’s still just one or two HUGE
wastebins and people are throwing in food, aluminum cans,
glass bottles, and non-recyclable plastic wrappers, all Recycling and
together. But, without another 2-4 bins, the only other Organics
option is for individuals to walk around an event, carrying Management
recyclables and food waste, and we know that won’t with Collection | No change. Comment of support to
happen. Thanks for all of your work on this. I'm looking Best Practices continue to provide support for
CarolAnn Resident of forward to seeing how our community can improve even Strategy 38 event recycling requirements and
Hook Burnsville more. (pg. 15) for events to divert organics.
Recycling and
We would enthusiastically support having curbside Organics
collection of organic waste. We have been using the county Management
sites for years and my husband has included the with Collection
grandchildren in the "Dump Team" and my daughter in law Best Practices
Diane Resident of even made dump team T-shirts. It has reduced our waste to | Strategy 28 No change. Comment of support for
Grier Apple Valley | the landfill by at least 60%. (pg. 13) residential curbside organics.
No change. Comment of support for
Education and county participation in state and
Regional regional product stewardship
The only suggestion | have for recycling is to pressure Planning initiatives for increased producer
Diane Resident of companies to reduce the amount of black plastic that is Strategy 8 (pg. responsibility that result in more
Grier Apple Valley | unrecyclable. 9) sustainable products.
Education and
Regional No change. Comment of support for
Also much more education for folks to know what they can Planning education strategies to provide
Diane Resident of recycle and where. | have done the Tour de Trash tour and Strategy 5 (pg. | more frequent information on
Grier Apple Valley | really enjoyed learning more. Thank you for your endeavors. | 9) what, when and where to recycle.
Recycling and
| am advocating that businesses be fully included in this plan. | Organics
There is much that businesses dispose of which are office Management
supply products, recyclable materials and organic waste. As with Collection | No change. Comment of support.
a former business owner, the option to recycle was not Best Practices The plan includes a variety of
Phyllis easily accomplished through our waste carrier or otherwise. | Strategy 25 strategies to improve management
Stratman Unknown Please make these county taxpayers also a part of your plan. | (pg. 20) of waste generated by businesses.




I am really happy to see a plan for residential organic waste.
One of the things that | am very interested in seeing is an
option for Dakota County residents to have access to both
mulch and compost from residential organic waste. The City No change. Comment of support.
of St. Paul has this option for their residents for free, but | The plan includes a strategy to
would even pay a nominal fee as a verified resident. As a expand drop off opportunities for
someone who lives in a townhome and gardens exclusively residents to properly manage yard
in raised beds, | have to turn over and amend the soil every waste and tree waste when non-
Kim year. | would love a way to recycle used raised bed soil and Wood Waste county funding opportunities (i.e.,
Currier- find an easy and cheaper alternative to purchasing compost Strategy 56 grants or additional state funding)
Bloom Unknown or top soil from a store. (pg. 20) are available.
No change. Residential curbside
organics is currently not offered
anywhere in the county, and a
required timeline by 2030 gives
Recycling and waste industry time to plan and
Organics make necessary infrastructure
Management investments (trucks, facility
Let’s make curbside organics recycling available much with Collection | capacity, labor, etc.). The plan does
Resident of sooner! 2026! The public bins are getting lots of use. Best Practices not prohibit municipalities or waste
Lois Mendota Curbside pickup will make it easier for everyone to Strategy 28 haulers from providing curbside
Parsons Heights participate! Thanks for your work in these important issues. (pg. 13) organics collection prior to 2030.
Hauler feedback when customers don’t recycle right: Most
of the education needs to be done and is better served by
being done by the county and cities. With single sort,
automated collection, there is very little opportunity for a No change. Plan strategies support
hauler to even recognize contamination and by extension, frequent education to residents by
most contamination will not be seen and nothing can be multiple entities (county,
done. Could implement a countywide rule that if a hauler Education and municipalities, haulers) for reach.
does not notify a customer of contamination (whether it’s an | Regional County staff will engage
educational tag left behind or direct phone call or email) Planning stakeholders on specific approaches
Bobby Highland that a hauler is required to provide a credit for the missed Strategy 5 (pg. | for hauler feedback to customers
Stewart Sanitation pickup or an off-day pickup at no charge 9) during ordinance development.
Pre-processing at resource recovery facilities and landfills by
2030. Highland Sanitation does not own or manage any Recycling and No change. The plan includes a
landfills, so we have no comment on this other than that Organics required strategy for pre-processing
landfills are stupid and shouldn’t exist. Landfill methane Management of waste at disposal facilities and
leaks are wildly underreported in numerous studies and they | with Collection | additional strategies to manage
should all be closed and replaced with facilities that manage | Best Practices waste in a more sustainable way in
Bobby Highland waste in a more sustainable and environmentally friendly Strategy 26 accordance with Minnesota's waste
Stewart Sanitation way. (pg. 13) management hierarchy.
Recycling and
Organics
Management
Recycling, organics and trash collection on the same day: with Collection
This should not be a problem at all for any hauler. Any Best Practices
Bobby Highland hauler who says that it is a problem is lying and being Strategy 24 No change. Comment of support for
Stewart Sanitation disingenuous to get in the way of progress. (pg. 12) the same day collection strategy.




Curbside food scraps collection for residents by 2030: This is No change. Comment of support for
an excellent idea, but is only financially affordable for residential curbside organics. The
residents if the individual cities put out RFPs for organics strategy includes support to
collection so that it’s a single hauler servicing a community. municipalities to research and
Additionally, this will be an environmental net negative implement best collection practices,
impact unless organics is combined with yard waste such as zoned contract areas. The
collection, as organized organics/yard waste that are co- plan does not prescribe one
collected would result in a net decrease of trucks on the organics collection method over
road and by extension, substantial reductions in not just Recycling and another (separate cart, co-
pollution, but also road wear and tear. Touching on above, Organics collection, etc.). Waste industry,
not co-collecting yard waste with organics and pushing to Management markets, collection and
make that a reality is hugely idiotic and creates additional with Collection | management costs, facility
trucks on the road and by extension, increases Best Practices availability, and stakeholder input
Bobby Highland environmental pollution and therefore should not be Strategy 28 are some of the factors that will
Stewart Sanitation considered unless this hurdle can be overcome. (pg. 13) drive collection methods.
The plan is thorough and comprehensive. My biggest point
of feedback is supporting schools with training at the start of
EVERY school year for students, teachers, support staff AND
building engineers. Do not assume that teachers know how
to sort (they don't always) and one time training is not
enough. Training needs to happen year to year, especially
when things (items accepted or not, introduction of
reusables) or processes change. Schools should be required
to have a plan when staff are hired mid year and may have
missed the initial beginning of the year training. Who will be
responsible for this training? Training for students, staff,
teachers and building engineers should be done with
ACTUAL items used at the site, not ambiguous plastic #1. For
example, if a school cafe serves juice cups vs juice boxes- use | Recycling and
the item used at that school to show students and staff if it Organics
should be recycled or not. If compostable boats are used, Management No change. Comment of support for
Garlough show that they go into the organics or trash. Most adults with Collection | strategy to continue to provide
Environment | have questions about particular items that are not Best Practices education (e.g., training assistance)
Kim al Magnet necessarily satisfied/answered with the pictures on the Strategy 37 and resources for school recycling
Benton School stickers attached to sorting bins. (pg. 15) improvements.
Lastly, | would like to see more of an emphasis on (and Waste
support for) the reduction of single use plastics in schools. If | Reduction and
Garlough reducing is the preferred option, support schools who want Reuse No change. Comment of support for
Environment | to make this leap but are not sure how to communicate with | Strategies 16 strategies to provide resources for
Kim al Magnet school nutrition staff. Thank you for allowing feedback from and 23 (pgs. reusable foodware and implement
Benton School the public. 11, 12) waste reduction efforts at schools.
No change. Comment of support for
residential curbside organics, with
request to implement sooner.
Residential curbside organics is
currently not offered anywhere in
the county, and a required timeline
by 2030 gives waste industry time
Recycling and to plan and make necessary
Organics infrastructure investments (trucks,
Thanks for the information. My priority is to get Eagan to Management facility capacity, labor, etc.). The
require garbage services to pick up organics. This should be with Collection | plan does not prohibit
available now not by 2030. It’s a simple change and | Best Practices municipalities or waste haulers
Katrina continue to be confused why this is taking so long. Other Strategy 28 from providing curbside organics
Gerenz Unknown suburbs already have it. (pg. 13) collection prior to 2030.




Recycling and
Organics No change. Comment of support for
Management residential curbside organics. The
with Collection | strategy includes support for
| am excited for the compost pickup in the future. However, | Best Practices municipalities to research and
Janae that will be at least 4 more trucks to avoid during my walks Strategy 28 implement best collection practices,
Barriuso Unknown in the neighborhood. (pg. 13) such as zoned contract areas.
Recycling and
Organics
Management
with Collection
Resident of | skimmed through the report and from what | could see it Best Practices
Susan Mendota looks great; very comprehensive. Really glad it's in the plan Strategy 28 No change. Comment of support for
Brezny Heights to add organics pick up in the future. (pg. 13) residential curbside organics.
Could Dakota County mandate that retailers only provide
recyclable bags (of various sizes) at the request (& purchase)
of the customers? It would be to encourage people to bring
their own bags and if they don't, they have to pay for a
reusable bag. It's just a matter of retraining ourselves to
reuse and it would add to less plastic bags blowing around in
the wind. Chet's Liquors on Hwy 13 in Mendota Heights No change. Laws of this type are
gives you a reusable bag that can hold 4 bottles of wine. If normally passed at a city level since
Resident of you bring the bag with you whenever you buy a bottle or cities typically have more authority
Susan Mendota more of wine, you get a discount. It's a small effort, but it's related to businesses within their
Brezny Heights helpful. Thanks for all you do! N/A boundaries.
Recycling and
Organics No change. Comment of support for
Appreciate Dakota County's initiatives in recycling. However | Management residential curbside organics. The
would welcome pickup arrangement in near future. | find with Collection | strategy includes support for
that having to frequently take recycled food products to a Best Practices municipalities to research and
collection point results in not participating in the program. Strategy 28 implement best collection practices,
Pat Lieb Unknown Also deal with odor despite closed container. (pg. 13) such as zoned contract areas.
No change. The county does not
have authority to mandate that
An idea .... other states have city do leave pick up from each cities collect yard waste. Waste
street in the fall and recycle all the leaves to compost ! It'sa | Wood Waste haulers provide yard waste curbside
Marietta huge help to residents and a service to the community! Strategy 56 collection services throughout the
Sears Unknown Thank you (pg. 20) county.
No change. Broad stakeholder
Education and support was demonstrated through
| REALLY think that providing recycle feedback to Regional public engagement process for
homeowners will have the opposite effect as intended. Planning hauler feedback to customers when
Jon Derik Resident of When in doubt, people will throw things in the trash instead | Strategy 5 (pg. recycling and organics items are not
Dautel Lakeville of the recycle to avoid getting a bad recycle report card. 9) properly sorted.
Incentivize waste reduction and pick-up reduction. A
homeowner who generates half as much trash and needs No change. Volume-based pricing
half as many pick-ups shouldn’t pay the same as their for trash is already required by the
neighbor who generates twice as much. Imagine if your state and county, and volume-based
Jon Derik Resident of water bill was the same no matter how much water you pricing for recycling is prohibited by
Dautel Lakeville used. N/A state statute.




Just one person’s feedback. My household of two has seen a
huge reduction in our recycling. We stopped taking the
newspaper, consolidate our online shopping for fewer boxes
and often times receive envelopes instead of boxes. We also
try to avoid single use cans and/or bottles. Unfortunately,
our efforts actually make the math come out poorer when No change. The Minnesota
applied to the goal of imposed goal of 75% recycling rate. If Legislature established the 75%
we were at 75Ibs recycling and 25Ibs solid waste (per the recycling rate goal by 2030, and the
goal), by dropping to 50lbs recycling we now are only ay Minnesota Pollution Control Agency
67%. Additionally, our trash haulers are now required to set numerical objectives for other
send a truck every week to pick-up recycling that could management methods through
easily wait 2-3 weeks. My overall thoughts: Goals need to be 2042. As part of plan
independent of each other (Reduce landfill waste to XX/CuFt implementation, county staff will
per person, per year). Goals need to be more focused on the continue to participate in state and
Jon Derik Resident of broader environmental impact (i.e. Don’t send a recycle regional discussions on improved
Dautel Lakeville truck every day just to improve recycle rate by 1%). N/A measures.
Education and
Regional No change. Comment of support for
Planning hauler feedback to customers when
Strategy 5 (pg. recycling and organics items are not
P L Brust Unknown Leaning towards hauler feedback 9) properly sorted.
I had the pleasure of interacting w/2 of the employees at the
Natural Resources Bldg at the Dakota Cty Fair yesterday.
They encouraged me to provide comments, so | am. The No change. The waste industry, not
plan looks great.....I| would strongly support the idea of Recycling and Dakota County, provides services
providing curbside food waste/scraps pick-up! While I've Organics and sets rates. The plan includes a
been composting most of my home's food scraps, | think Management strategy to provide support to
composting presents to many barriers to entry for most with Collection | municipalities to research and
home owners. Having it curbside would be GREAT! And, I'd Best Practices implement best collection practices,
Douglas support adding a fee to cover it.....say in the range of $20- Strategy 28 such as zoned contract areas which
Moran Unknown $30/yr. Hope this helps and thanks for your service! (pg. 13) can reduce rates for residents.
Recycling and
Organics
Management
with Collection
I love the ability to compost! | keep a bucket in the garage & | Best Practices
Patricia put the filled compostable bags in there & when full | take it | Strategy 33 No change. Comment of support for
Pecholt Unknown to the compost bin! So easy! (pg. 14) organics drop sites.
Education and
Regional
Keep up the good works of educating & encouraging Planning No change. Comment of support for
Patricia reduction of garbage! We, on a whole, need to do better for | Strategy 5 (pg. | education initiatives included in the
Pecholt Unknown our future generations. 9) plan.
We live in an HOA & we currently have a small recycling bin
& a large garbage bin & | wanted to swap those for a large
recycling & a small garbage, but was told they only do large
garbage bins in HOAs. We could get a large recycling, but
without getting a small garbage they wouldn’t fit nicely in
our garage. | think this is a crazy policy since | also compost No change. The county requires
Patricia so our garbage bin typically only has 1-2 Walmart size bags haulers to provide recycling, but
Pecholt Unknown of garbage per week from our 2 person residence. N/A cart size is the decision of the HOA.
Excellent plan you've all come up with! | think the goals of
achieving 27.6% organics recovery (not including yard No change. Comment of support.
waste), 47.4% recycling, 20% resource recovery, and 5% The state sets numeric goals, and
landfill diversion is quite ambitious, particularly the last two, the Minnesota Pollution Control
Robert Resident of but rapid progress in these directions is good regardless of Agency includes yard waste in
Warmka Eagan meeting these goals by 2044 or not, so | support these goals. | N/A organics recovery goals.

7




As a resident of Eagan, | particularly like the requirement of
all waste haulers to provide curbside organics bins and
weekly pickup by 2030, along with efforts to increase
organics recovery (food to people, food to animals, and
composting) from local restaurants, grocery stores, farms,
and other large producers and distributors of food, and | like
the plans to increase production and usage of biochar. | find
resident-facing programs particularly important in this plan,
not only because | myself am a resident, but primarily
because when people participate in new services they not
only utilize the service, changing their behavior, but using
the service changes the way they think. | believe providing
curbside organics bins will not only increase organics
recovery immediately, but will also get more people Recycling and
interested in learning and doing more with proper waste Organics
management and usage. Essentially, | see it not only as a Management
valuable public service improvement, but also an excellent with Collection | No change. Comment of support for
marketing and advertising tool to get more people Best Practices residential curbside organics and
Robert Resident of participating in proper and smart waste management. Thank | Strategy 28 other organics recovery initiatives in
Warmka Eagan you, and keep up the good work! (pg. 13) the plan.
Wood Waste No change. Comment of support.
Strategies 54 The plan includes a strategy to
Robert Resident of and 57 (pgs. expand composting and mulching
Warmka Eagan I like the plans to increase production and usage of biochar. 19, 20) capacity beyond existing markets.
I'm an avid composter from way back. | had a homemade
compost bin in my yard when | had a house in St. Paul, and
now that | live in West Saint Paul am delighted to be able to
take our compostable material to the bins at Thompson
County Park. In fact | collect for our small condo building
here on Imperial Drive. There are eight households here
that participate. My letter today is to bring attention to the
compost bins at Thompson Co. Park. They were recently
changed to a larger version with greater capacity. While |
understand this move was likely made to handle a larger
volume of compost - great news if our bins fill up quickly -
the issue | have is that the top opening of the bin is so high
up | can only lift the lid about four inches due to my smaller
stature. This makes it nearly impossible for me to empty our
(five gallon) buckets. | know the onus is on me to solve my No change. The accessibility issue
problem - likely I'll invest in a stool or small stepladder to Recycling and raised with respect to the existing
bring with me when | come to dump compost. However | Organics organics dumpster at the Thompson
Resident of thought I'd bring the issue to your attention for Management County Park was referred to the
Tracy West Saint consideration in the future when you contemplate making Strategy 33 program manager to evaluate for
Young Paul other such changes. Thank you and keep up the good work! (pg. 14) improvements.
No change. Comment is supportive
of the Fix-it Clinic strategy. Changes
in Fix-it Clinic locations and
Waste frequency will be evaluated during
Resident of Reduction and plan implementation with the
Dakota I would like to see a weekly or permanent site in Dakota Reuse Strategy | intent not to compete with existing
Todd County County for Fix-It Clinics. 20 (pg. 12) repair retail options.
Waste
The City of Eagan’s sustainability initiative will be an Reduction and | No change. Comment of support
Gillian enthusiastic partner for the bi-annual low waste living Reuse Strategy | for strategy to conduct low-waste
Catano City of Eagan | challenge. 12 (pg. 10) living challenge.
The City of Eagan attempted its first deconstruction project No change. The plan includes a
Gillian in 2023. We saw the positive environmental outcome of Waste strategy to use non-county funding
Catano City of Eagan | salvaging reusable building materials and diverting waste Reduction and | opportunities to research best

8




from landfills. The city is supportive of the county prioritizing | Reuse Strategy | practices and pilot opportunities to
sustainable material management and providing funding 16 (pg. 11) increase deconstruction and use of
opportunities to the community and for municipal projects reusable building materials.
to continue to bring this practice to Eagan.
Recycling and
Organics
Management
The City of Eagan is supportive of expanded organics with Collection
recycling opportunities for the community, especially for Best Practices
Gillian residents in multifamily homes who will not be impacted by Strategy 33 No change. Comment of support for
Catano City of Eagan | the 2030 curbside organics requirement. (pg. 14) expanded organics drop sites.
The City of Eagan has had success partnering with r.-World to
provide reusable cups at the largest city event for the last No change. The plan continues
two years, with the support of funding through the county's funding for municipal waste
waste abatement program. We would like to explore the abatement activities. The county
opportunity of introducing reusable service ware through will continue to collaborate with
the r.World products at some of our permanent locations Waste cities and set annual work plan
that do not have a dishwasher. We hope there will be Reduction and | priorities in alignhment with
Gillian funding opportunities through the county’s waste Reuse Strategy | available funding to implement the
Catano City of Eagan | abatement program for opportunities like this in the future. 15 (pg. 11) plan.
Of course, Dakota Valley Recycling loves the Community No change. County staff will
Waste Abatement grant program, and we look forward to collaborate with partners to
many more years of working together! With the updates to implement the plan and identify
both the MPCA Solid Waste Policy Plan and now the Dakota appropriate activities for the
County Solid Waste Management Plan including strategies Community Waste Abatement
on topics such as curbside organics collection and Program. The County will explore
deconstruction, Dakota Valley Recycling would appreciate it additional funding sources to
if those topics could be included in future Community Waste | Cost and implement initiatives in the plan,
Dakota Abatement grant programs. We feel these are opportunities | Finance and funding for programs will be
Jackson Valley to have a big impact on waste abatement in our cities, and Strategy 60 determined during the plan
Becker Recycling would love to be involved with any city-led efforts. (pg. 21) implementation process.
No change. County staff will
collaborate with partners to
implement the plan and identify
appropriate activities for the
We greatly appreciate the funding available to municipalities | Recycling and Community Waste Abatement
to help with organized collection of organics. Dakota Valley Organics Program. The County will explore
Recycling requests that it be added to the Community Waste | Management additional funding sources to
Abatement program in future years so that we can help our with Collection | implement initiatives in the plan,
Dakota municipalities with the coordination and implementation of Best Practices and funding for programs will be
Jackson Valley organized curbside organics collection (and potential Strategy 28 determined during the plan
Becker Recycling recycling and/or trash as well). (pg. 13) implementation process.
No change. The plan focuses on
promoting existing tool libraries and
continues municipal waste
abatement funding which may be
On the topic of waste reduction and reuse, we also think it considered for city tool
would be great if Dakota County were to take the lead on a lending/reuse purposes. The county
Tool Library sometime in the future. Dakota Valley Recycling will continue to collaborate with
would love to host one, but space and staff resources are Waste cities and set annual work plan
Dakota limited in our cities, unless Dakota County provided funding Reduction and priorities in alignment with
Jackson Valley to help construct a small storage shed on one our city- Reuse Strategy | available funding to implement the
Becker Recycling owned properties. 23 (pg. 12) plan.




Recycling and
Organics
Management No change. Comment of support for
with Collection | expanded organics drop sites.
Dakota Dakota Valley Recycling would like to encourage our cities to | Best Practices County staff will continue to
Jackson Valley add additional drop-sites and assist with the coordination Strategy 33 collaborate with cities on
Becker Recycling and implementation as much as possible. (pg. 14) implementation.
Sustainable
Building and
Dakota Deconstruction | No change. Comment of support for
Jackson Valley Dakota Valley Recycling looks forward to implementing a Strategy 52 strategy to implement building
Becker Recycling building material collection or swap for residents. (pg. 19) material swaps.
Dakota Valley Recycling agrees it is important to education
to contractors and builders on proper sorting and reuse of
building materials, but we also know deconstruction comes
with an added price. It would be great if Dakota County
could provide—or add to the Community Waste Abatement No change. Plan includes tactic to
grant program—additional funding for municipalities to Sustainable use non-county funding
include deconstruction in municipal facility renovation Building and opportunities to research best
Dakota projects. We're concerned that even with training on the Deconstruction | practices and pilot opportunities to
Jackson Valley topic, deconstruction will not occur without funding Strategy 53 increase deconstruction and use of
Becker Recycling opportunities. (pg. 19) reusable building materials.
Dakota Valley Recycling would be supportive of Dakota
County adding the following optional strategies to the Solid
Waste Management Plan. This strategy is for county-owned No change. The county does not
buildings, but Dakota Valley Recycling would love for our have authority to require use of a
cities to consider the same SMM strategies when building materials management
demolishing or renovating city-owned buildings. Of course, plan for non-county projects or
Dakota additional finance assistance from Dakota County would be other publicly owned buildings.
Jackson Valley great to help implement those SMM strategies, specifically Municipalities can choose to adopt
Becker Recycling deconstruction. N/A their own requirements.
Dakota Valley Recycling would be supportive of Dakota
County adding the following optional strategies to the Solid
Waste Management Plan. This strategy uses Hennepin
County’s deconstruction grant as an example. While Dakota No change. The strategy includes
County doesn’t have as many old homes as Hennepin or use of non-county funding
Ramsey counties, there are still opportunities in Dakota Waste opportunities to research best
Dakota County for residents, businesses, or municipalities to include | Reduction and | practices and pilot opportunities to
Jackson Valley deconstruction into their renovation plans. Again, financial Reuse Strategy | increase deconstruction and use of
Becker Recycling assistance from Dakota County would be great. 16 (pg. 11) reusable building materials.
Firstly, Dakota Valley Recycling appreciates the funding
Dakota County provided as part of the Community Waste
Abatement that helped us purchase a dishwasher and
reusable service ware for the City of Burnsville Maintenance
Facility. We will continue to look for opportunities to make
similar purchase at other city-owned facilities, but we know
there are some facilities where washing on-site is not
feasible. For these facilities, such as ice arenas, community
waterparks, or the Ames Performing Arts Center in
Burnsville, it would be very helpful if the Community Waste
Abatement program would allow Dakota Valley Recycling to No change. The plan continues
pay for—or at least pilot—reusable vendor services. We funding for municipal waste
would like to get enough city-owned facilities on board with abatement activities. The county
reusables that a vendor could establish a route to collect and will continue to collaborate with
replenish reusable food and beverage service ware on a Waste cities and set annual work plan
Dakota weekly basis. This would help us to eliminate thousands of Reduction and | priorities in alignment with
Jackson Valley disposable service ware items that are currently in use at Reuse Strategy | available funding to implement the
Becker Recycling these venues. 15 (pg. 11) plan.

10




No change. Comment of support to
prohibit haulers from charging for
Dakota Valley Recycling supports a container delivery charge | Recycling and organics cart delivery, with request
prohibition. Too often, we hear from residents who switch Organics to expand prohibition to recycling
haulers and are charged both for the pick-up of their old Management and trash cart delivery charges as
containers, as well as delivery for new containers. We know with Collection | well. County staff will explore the
Dakota this is specifically about organics containers, but we would Best Practices legality of restricting container
Jackson Valley be in favor of prohibiting container delivery or pick-up Strategy 28 delivery fees as part of any
Becker Recycling charges for trash and recycling containers as well. (pg. 13) ordinance changes.
Variance Process: We appreciate your willingness to
memorialize the variance process for implementation of
weekly recycling, same day recycling, trash, and organics in
rural areas of Dakota County where there is little to gain
from an environmental standpoint given the fuel use, GHG Recycling and
emissions, and low population density from weekly recycling | Organics
in rural areas. The variance allows us to focus our time and Management
National resources on areas where we can make the biggest impact with Collection
Waste & on recycling volumes and allows us the flexibility to Best Practices No change. Comment of support for
Phil Recycling implement other options, such as larger carts, to attain the Strategy 32 ordinance variance for residential
Shaffer Association goal. (pg. 14) weekly recycling in rural areas.
Pre-processing of Waste: National Waste & Recycling
Association questions the requirement to separate steel and
aluminum. We certainly could extract steel from the waste
stream by using a magnet. However, the requirement to
remove aluminum from the waste stream is much more
challenging and extremely expensive, requiring extensive
technology. If implemented, this policy would almost
certainly ensure that more waste will be disposed of at
facilities outside of Dakota County that do not have such
onerous requirements. We question whether the county’s
intention here is to require an upfront “dirty” MRF at
landfills and transfer station, since that would be the
primary means of removing aluminum. If so, the cost
implications would lead National Waste & Recycling
Association to strongly oppose this draft requirement in the
Dakota County Master Plan. We believe that aluminum and
other recyclable materials, especially OCC and paper, that
are removed at the source by the generator and placed in
the recycling bin have much higher market value than being
sorted out of trash. Further, aluminum is already the most
highly recovered recyclable material by generators, so we
question the need for this requirement. Last, would a
requirement like this create complacency for recyclers,
negatively impact residents’ and businesses’ commitment to
recycle, since there would be technology that will sort their No change. This is a prescribed
trash for them, so they don’t have to. Additionally, strategy required by the Minnesota
extending this requirement to Non-MSW facilities for Pollution Control Agency’s (MPCA)
Construction and Demolition Debris (C&D) and industrial Metropolitan Solid Waste
waste (primarily contaminated soil) is unreasonable. While Management Policy Plan that must
Non-MSW facilities are currently removing ferrous metal Recycling and be included in the county's plan.
such as steel from C&D using a magnet and recovering clean | Organics County staff requested clarity on
concrete, attempting to recover small quantities of Management required materials to be removed
National aluminum (approximately 1%) would require an indoor with Collection | through pre-processing, and the
Waste & building and expensive processing equipment. Furthermore, | Best Practices MPCA determined steel and
Phil Recycling steel and aluminum are simply not present in the vast Strategy 26 aluminum must be removed at a
Shaffer Association majority of industrial waste. (pg. 13) minimum.

11




Dakota County, Minnesota

DRAFT 2024-2044
Solid Waste Management Plan

October 29, 2024

Approved by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency on [insert date].

Adopted by the Dakota County Board of Commissioners on [insert date].




Acknowledgements

2024 Dakota County Board of Commissioners
District 1 - Commissioner Mike Slavik

District 2 - Commissioner Joe Atkins

District 3 - Commissioner Laurie Halverson
District 4 - Commissioner William Droste
District 5 - Commissioner Liz Workman

District 6 - Commissioner Mary Liz Holberg
District 7 - Commissioner Mary Hamann-Roland

2024 Dakota County Planning Commission
District 1 — Dennis Peine
District 1 — Jerry Rich
District 2 — Amy Hunting
District 2 — Lori Hansen
District 3 —Jill Smith

District 3 — Vacant

District 4 — Mike Cahn
District 4 — Barry Graham
District 5 — Brady Folkestad
District 5 — Vacant

District 6 — James Guttmann
District 6 — Stephen Shurts
District 7 — Anthony Nelson
District 7 — Kelly Kausel

Prepared By
Dakota County Environmental Resources and Planning Department Staff
with public engagement assistance from HDR Engineering, Inc. and Zan Associates

LILYDALE:
MENDOTA- ¢

9
=0

RAVENNA
VERMILLION
B MARSHAN
@ VERMILLION TWP
FARMINGTON
NEW TRIER MIESVILLE
HAMPTON
EUREKA CASTLEROCK ~ HAMPTONTWP DOUGLAS
RANDOLPH
RANDOLPH TWP
GREENVALE SCIOTA
WATERFORD

NORTHFIELD




Draft for Review by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency: October 29, 2024

Contents
PART ONE: INTRODUCTION ... . iiiiiiieeeeee e eeeeeeeeee e e e e s s s s s e s e s s s s e s s s s s s e s s e s e e e s e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e nnnnn i
F S [ 4 e Yo [V 4 o o I T PSPPSR OPRUPPUPRRTPN 1
L T S P T W U o Yo =i [ oo I o =1 411V o] o U RURRRP 3
1. ManagemeENt Plan PUIPOSE ...cuuuueiiiiiiiieieieteetiee s et tiie e e et s e ettt s s e etteeeeatu s e aaaaasestsaaeeatansssannasseresnsseensanseensnneenes 3
2. Management Plan FrameEWOrIK ...t e e e et s e e e et s e s e e e e et e e e et e e aaa e eaaaas 3
3.  Statutory Waste Management Goal and REQUIFEMENTS .....cuuuiiiiiiieieiiiieiiiiieeeeeieeeeeeis s e etaeseeranseeentanseresneeenanns 4
PART TWO: SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN .. e e e e e e e e s e e e e e e e e 6
A, CoUNLY SO WASTE ViSION ..cciieiiiiiiiee ettt e ettt e e e e e ettt e e e e e s e tataeeeeeeseeaabbaeaaaeseasntaaseaassaaasnssaseaeesessnnssaseaaeseanasses 6
B.  COUNLY SOl WaStE POIICIES.....eeeeiiiieeceiiiecciee e et ee e ettt e et e e e st e e e st e e e e sttt e e e satbeeeesstaeeessseeeeansseeeanssaeeansaeeesnsseeeassneesnnsnes 6
[T 4 - 1 =Y <4 T=TI= Yo Vo I I [ [ X3RRIt 6
1.  Improving the Reliability Of the Data.....cc.ciiiuiiiiiiii e et e et e e e et e e et e e e e e e e eaaeanaans 8
N Yo [0 Tor= Y 4 o] Y=Y o (o I Y=Y = ToY o =1 N ad - T a1 o 11 o =0 NN 8
3. Waste REAUCHION GNGA REUSE......uuuueieiereteeereteeeeereeeeeeeeeeereeeeerarerarerererererererererererererensrnsesssesssssssssssssnssssnnsnsssnnes 10
4.  Recycling and Organics Management with Collection Best Practices......coiuuviiuiiiiiiiiiiiiciie e 12
LT V1V Ty (= o B oY =Y =4 16
T I T T 1 11T = U SUPPUN 16
7. Household Hazardous Waste and TOXiCity REAUCTION .....iivuuiiiiiiiiiiciiie et eee e e e e e e eaae e eees 17
8.  Sustainable Building and DeCONSTIUCTION. .....uuieiiiieeeiiiieeeeeeeeeetiiie e e e eeeeetateeeeeeeeerasaaaeeseeeseessnnneseeesesesssnnnenns 18
LS R VLYo Yo Lo Y 1 19
10, COST AN FINANCE ceiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieee et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e eeeeaeaaeeaaaaeaaes 20
D (0] o [ ol =t [UTor= Y o o IR PR PPR 21
E.  ENVIEONMIENTAl JUSTICE e otiiiiieetie ettt ettt et e b et e st e e sb et e s bt e e b b e e bte e abe e e sbeesabeeebeesabeeebeesabaesseesabaeeseesases 21
F [ a1V =4 Ta ol @o1| =1 o Yo =1 T o ISR 22
(TN 1= oY g 20T Ta[ol=Ir=Ta Vo IV Yololo 1 U] ol =1 o 11 1 Y200 S 22
APPENDIX A: EXISTING WASTE MANAGEMENT SYSTEM AND COUNTY PROGRAMS.......oiiieieieiececccecereeeeeae 24
A.  Waste Management Governance, Roles, and Responsibilities ..........cccveiviiriciiiii e 24
L2 T B 1T ot To = -1 o] o [0l OO R R PUPROPPPRN 25
C.  Waste Projection and COMPOSITION .........uuiiiiiiieciiiieeee ettt e ettt e e e e e e ettbr e e e e e e seeaaaabeeeeeeseesnsaeseaaesesantasseaaesensanses 25
D.  Waste Management in Dakota COUNTY .....occiiiiiiiiiiiiiee ettt ettt et e sttt e e st e e s sbae e e sbbeeesssbaeessasaeeessbaeeenabeeesnnns 26
E. Dakota County’s Waste Programs and ACHIVITIES. .....cccuuiiiiiiiie e e et s eetee e ertee e et e e ae e e st e e e sata e e eenaeeesnseeeesasaeeennns 30
1. REEIONGI SOIULIONS 1uuueeeeieeiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeettieeeeeeeeetattaeeeeeeeeessasanaseesesasssannnaeeeessssssnnnnseessssssssnnnaneseesssssnnnnneeeesnns 31
2. Source Reduction and Reuse Programs and ACtiVIities.......ieueiiiiiiiiii e e e e e e e e e ee 31
3. COlIECION BESt PraCliCES ..vvvvrrrrrrrreerereeueeeeeseeeeeeeeeeeeeseeeeseeseseersresesesssssssssesesssssssssssssssnssssssssssssssssssnssssnsnsnsnsnnes 32
4.  Recycling Management Programs and ACHIVITIES ....uuuuueieeeeereeeiiiiieeeeeeeretrtiiieeeeeereerssneseeessesssssnieesesssesssssnnnenns 33
5.  Organics Management Programs and Activities (Includes Programs Combined With Recycling)...........ccvvuunn.eee. 35
6. Non-Municipal Solid Waste Programs and ACHiVities......c.uieeiiiiiiiii e e e e e e e e e e ee 37
7. LaNATill ADATEMENT ...t nnnan 38
8.  Solid and Hazardous Waste Regulation Programs and ActiVities.........ceeeuiiiiiiiiiiiiiie it 39
9. Household Hazardous Waste, Toxicity Reduction, and Problem Material Management Programs and Activities 41
10. Resource Recovery Programs and ACHIVITIES. ...uuuiiiuuuie ittt ettt ettt e e e e et e s e e s e e aaae e e saaeeeeaanaes 42
F. Collection and Transportation Of Waste. ...ttt et e e e e ettt e e e e e e e e aaabeeeaeeseantaraeeeeaeseennsaeneas 43
1. Hauling Systems in DaKota COUNTY ..ccuuiuuuierieieieeiiiiiiee e e eeeeetieee s e e e eeetatu e eeeeeeeaessnnaeseeesseesssnnsasseeesesssnnnnneesanens 43
G. Waste ManagemeENt FACHlTIES. ... ..uuuiiii ittt e e e e ettt e e e e e e ettt e e e e e e eeeaasaeeeaeeseasansaeaeaaeseasnsasseaassennnnses 46
APPENDIX B: MANAGEMENT PLAN DEVELOPMENT ...uuiiiii s s 52
APPENDIX C: ENVIRONMENTAL JUSTICE: REVIEW AND FRAMEWORK FOR PLAN IMPLEMENTATION.......ccccvuu... 57
APPENDIX D: PERFORMANCE AND ACCOUNTABLITY .. s s 59
APPENDIX E: PLAN STRATEGIES AND PROJECTED IMPLEMENTATION TIMING .....uuiiiiiiiiiiiiieiececccece e 66
APPENDIX F: CHECKLIST OF STATUTORY COUNTY MANAGEMENT PLAN REQUIREMENTS......cccooiiiiiiiiiiiicccen, 72




Draft for Review by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency: October 29, 2024

Figures

Figure 1: CoUNTIES iN ThE TCIMA ... .. ettt et e e ettt e e e ete e e e abeeeeessaeeeastaeeassaeeaasseeseanstseesanseeeesssseaeannsaeesansaneesssenenn 1
Figure 2: Relationship of Waste Plans 10 LOCAl PIaNS.......c.ioi ittt e ettt e e e et a e e e e e e e e st aaa e e e e e e eenaaaaeeaaaeean 1
Figure 3: Solid Waste Management Plan Connections to County Plans and Key Initiatives ........ccccccvvieeeieiicciiiieeeccc e, 2
Figure 4: Projected Growth of MSW Managed in Dakota County 2020-2040..........coeiiiiieiiiiieeeeeeeeciieeeeeeeeecirreeeeeeeeesnrrereeaaeas 26
Figure 5: Statewide MSW CompPOSitioN (2013)......uuiiieiiiieeeiieeeeiiee e ettt e e ettt e e et eeeeetbeeeeetbaeeeeaseeeetbeeeeassaeaeasseeeeatseeeasssseseasseeans 26
Figure 6: Total Dakota County MSW Managed (TONS).....cccccueieiiieeeiiiieeeeiteeesiteeesstteeesstreeessseeesssseeessssseeessseeessssesessssesssnssees 27
Figure 7: Management of MSW Generated by Dakota County Residents and Businesses (TONS) ......cccccveeveveeeerieeeeecereeesnnnnn. 27
Figure 8: 2014-2022 Recycling Rate, Compared to 2042 TCMA Recycling Objective of 47.4 percent .......ccccceeevvveeeecereeesnnenn. 28
Figure 9: 2014-2022 Organics Recovery Rate, Compared to 2042 TCMA Organics Objective of 27.6 percent...........cccceeennne 29
Figure 10: 2014-2022 Resource Recovery Rate, Compared to the 2042 TCMA Recovery Objective of 20 percent.................. 29
Figure 11: 2014-2022 Landfill Disposal Rate, Compared to the 2042 TCMA Maximum Landfill Objective of 5 percent .......... 30

Tables

Table 1: Policy Plan MSW Management System Objectives for the TCMA, 2025 — 2042 ......oeeeeeeeecciiiiiieee e e e eecareee e 4
Table 2: Policy Plan Strategies Incorporated into the Solid Waste Management Plan ........ccccooveoiiieeiieiccciiieeee e 7
Table 3: Municipal Solid Waste Ordinances anNd COUES........uuuiiiiiieiiieiiieee et e e e eestbe e e e e e e e e s rbereeeeeeeeeabbaaeeeaeeeseanraeeaaeeaas 43
Table 4: Fees for Facilities that Accept Dakota COUNTY WaSTE ....coiiiiiiiiiiiiiee ettt e e et e e e e e e aarae e e e e e e e eanrreaeaaaeas 45
Table 5: Licensed Material Recovery Facilities in Dakota COUNTY........uiiiiiiiiiiiiiie et e et e e et e e e eneaee s 46
Table 6: Licensed Organics Recovery Facilities in Dakota COUNTY ...c.c.uiiiiciiie ettt e e e et e e e aa e e e enneaeas 47
Table 7: Licensed Yard Waste Compost Facilities in Dakota COUNTY .....cccccuieiiiiiieeiiiiee ettt e e e e e eere e e ennaeeas 47
Table 8: Licensed MSW Landfills in DAKota COUNTY ....uuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee ettt e e et e e e e e e e et b e e e e e s eesaanbeeeeeeeeesnsbaseaaaeas 49
Table 9: Licensed Non-MSW Landfills in DAaKota COUNLY ....cccuuuiiiiiiei ittt et e e e et e e e e e e e e santa e e e e e e e e s nnraaeeeaeas 49
Table 10: Licensed Non-MSW Processing Facilities in Dakota COUNTY .....ccooiiiiiiiiiiii it e aree e e e e e 50
Table 11: Licensed HHW Facilities in Dakota COUNTY .......cccuiiiiiiei ettt e et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e s aaate e e e e e e eesannreaeeeaeeenns 51
Table 12: Round One Participation, Engagement Type, and Outreach Methods By Stakeholder Group.........ccccccvveeecuverecnnnenn. 54
Table 13: Round Two Participation and Engagement Methods by Stakeholder Group ........cccceeccveveecciie e 55
Table 14: Dakota County Solid Waste Management Plan STrategies ......ccveeccuuieeeciiieieeee st eree e eee e st e et e e e erae e e seaeeeens 66

Table 15: Checklist of Statutory County Plan REQUITEMENTS .......ceicciiieiciiee e ciiee e ettt e e s re e e e sea e e et e e e sareeeestaeessasaeeesnseeaans 72




Draft for Review by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency: October 29, 2024

Acronyms and Initialisms

CLIF Closed Landfill Investment Funds

EAB Emerald ash borer

ELF Environmental Legacy Fund

GHG Greenhouse Gas

HHW Household hazardous waste

JPA Joint powers agreement

LRDG Local Recycling Development Grant

MDA Minnesota Department of Agriculture

MLAA Funding and Metropolitan Landfill Abatement Account
MLCAT Metropolitan Landfill Contingency Action Trust Account
MMCD Metropolitan Mosquito Control District

MNCC Minnesota Composting Council

MnDOT Minnesota Department of Transportation

MPCA Minnesota Pollution Control Agency

MRF Materials recovery facility

MSW Mixed municipal solid waste/municipal solid waste
Non-MSW non-municipal solid waste (industrial, construction and demolition waste)
PP Metropolitan Solid Waste Management Policy Plan

PSI Program and Service Inventory

REC Recycling Education Committee

SCORE Select Committee on Recycling and the Environment
SSOM Source separated organic materials

TCMA Twin Cities Metropolitan Area

TPD Tons per day

VSQG Very Small Quantity Generator

WTE Waste-to-energy




Draft for Review by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency: October 29, 2024

Page intentionally blank




Draft for Review by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency: October 29, 2024

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The purpose of the Dakota County 2024-2044 Solid Waste Management Plan (Plan) is to guide solid waste
management activities in the county. This revised Plan replaces and builds on the strengths of the 2018-2038
Solid Waste Master Plan.

The Plan includes prescribed strategies to implement the Metropolitan Solid Waste Management Policy Plan
2022-2042 (Policy Plan) adopted by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency in January 2024. Minnesota statute
requires Twin Cities Metropolitan Area (TCMA) counties to update county solid waste plans every six years with
strategies that implement the waste management goals and objectives in the MPCA’s revised Policy Plan. The
Policy Plan includes key themes, policies, goals, strategies, and numeric objectives that guide counties in
reducing unnecessary disposal of mixed municipal solid waste (MSW) to support improved waste management
in accordance with Minnesota’s Waste Management Act. The four key themes from the metropolitan Policy Plan
include:

e Sustainable material management is a holistic and systematic approach to use and reuse materials more
productively over their entire life cycle.

o There are potential greenhouse gas reductions to be found throughout the solid waste management
system.

e The benefits and burdens of the waste management system must flow equally to everyone.

e Extended producer responsibility presents great opportunities for shifting the burden of management
from the counties to the producers.

The Policy Plan also sets new county-specific plan focus areas for metropolitan counties, including:

e Increased emphasis on waste reduction and reuse to achieve the 15 percent target for reducing overall
mixed municipal waste generation by 2042. Special emphasis is placed on food waste prevention.

e Sustainable building materials: Counties must focus on sustainable management of construction and
demolition materials, which previously have not had state-established reduction targets.

e Wood waste: Anticipating a substantial increase in tree waste related to the Emerald Ash Borer, there is
new emphasis on managing trees to delay the need for removal and on expanding regional capacity for
handling wood waste. Counties must develop tree waste management plans.

e Organics (Food Scraps) diversion is not new to the Policy Plan, although expectations for
implementation are more definite. The Policy Plan requires residential curbside organics collection to be
available in cities with a population greater than 5,000 by 2030.

The following table lists the Policy Plan waste objectives in percentages through 2042 for the TCMA’s MSW
management system. These objectives are intended to maximize the upper end of the hierarchy, emphasizing
product stewardship, source reduction, and reuse, and achieving the legislative goals for recycling and organics
recovery.

. DRAFT Dakota County Solid Waste Management Plan: 2024-2044
Executive Summary, Page i



Draft for Review by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency: October 29, 2024

2022 2022

7 Metro Dakota 2025 2030 2036 2042
Counties County Goals Goals Goals Goals

(Actual)* (Actual)*
Waste Reduction kK Xk 2.9% 6.4% 10.7% 15.0%
Recycling 31.7% 24.5% 36.9% 47.4% 47.4% 47.4%
Organics Recovery 17.3% 30.2% 21.5% 27.6% 27.6% 27.6%
Resource Recovery 21.6% 2.2% 24.0% 20.0% 20.0% 20.0%
Landfilled 29.3% 43.2% 17.6% 5.0% 5.0% 5.0%

*2022 SCORE Report data as presented on the MPCA Data Website. Total does not equal 100% due to rounding.
**Actual reduction and reuse measures have not yet been defined for measurement and reporting purposes.

Comprehensive stakeholder engagement informed the Plan update, with more than 2,000 residents, businesses,
public officials, and others providing insights on solid waste issues, barriers, and potential strategies.

This Plan is intended to guide waste management in the county through 2044. However, the Plan is revised
every six years, so most of the strategies focus on making progress toward the 2030 objectives established by
the MPCA in the Policy Plan. Other strategies lay the foundation for achieving the long-term goals. The Plan is
organized into two main chapters with multiple appendices:

e Part One: Introduction — consists of the Plan introduction, purpose, and framework.

e Part Two: Solid Waste Management Plan — consists of Dakota County’s solid waste vision and policies;
specific strategies and tactics; and Plan implementation details. The Plan includes 62 strategies to meet
MPCA requirements and manage waste more sustainably. Strategy types include:

1. Policy Plan required strategies (32 strategies) that the MPCA prescribed must be included in all
metropolitan county plans for regional consistency.

2. Selected Policy Plan optional strategies (12 strategies, 82 points) were chosen from the list of
strategy options identified as best management practices in the Policy Plan that counties needed to
select from to reach a minimum of 75 points.

3. Continuing county strategies (18 strategies) that are existing county programs and practices that will
be continued and refined, as necessary, and are not incorporated under Policy Plan strategies.

e Appendices — consist of an overview of Dakota County’s existing waste management systems and
programs; a Plan development summary; environmental justice information; performance and
accountability details; strategy timing and implementation tables; and a checklist of statutory Plan
requirements.

. DRAFT Dakota County Solid Waste Management Plan: 2024-2044
Executive Summary, Page ii


https://public.tableau.com/app/profile/mpca.data.services/viz/SCOREOverview/SCOREOverview?publish=yes

Draft for Review by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency: October 29, 2024

PART ONE: INTRODUCTION
A. Introduction

The Dakota County 2024-2044 Solid Waste Management Plan defines Dakota County’s guide for managing solid
waste. Dakota County adopted its first Plan in 1982 in accordance with Minnesota Statute (Minn. Stat. §§
473.803 and 115A) and updated it five times since then. This revised Plan replaces and builds on the strengths of
the 2018-2038 Solid Waste Master Plan and incorporates prescribed strategies in the state’s Metropolitan Solid
Waste Management Policy Plan 2022-2042 (Policy Plan) as required by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency

(MPCA).

State statute requires Twin Cities Metropolitan Area
(TCMA) counties (Figure 1) to update county solid
waste plans every six years with strategies that
implement the waste management goals and
objectives in the state’s Policy Plan. The
Commissioner of the MPCA adopted the revised
Policy Plan on January 30, 2024, establishing the
framework for managing solid waste in the TCMA
through 2042. The Policy Plan includes key themes,
policies, goals, strategies, and numeric objectives
that guide counties in reducing unnecessary
disposal of mixed municipal solid waste.

Comprehensive stakeholder engagement informed
update. More than 2,000 responses from residents,
business and industry representatives, public
officials (city, township, school), and others
provided insights on solid waste issues, barriers,
and solutions and feedback on potential strategies.
See Appendix B for information on engagement.

Figure 1: Counties in the TCMA

Homaed ke —— Monimss.

~hmdpwom
s 395 ItV

'Pjn L;] Ramé-é}Washington
S e ivws 'N_".
- y

{

“Henne i | -
ol — ] . | e ! ‘t ‘-——V,-:sw-n =N 1_—. e Y
e FTows) B Ve
b | AL i (NS ¢
- Victoria ,L wﬁ;‘#n-." [ | 7) a8 . § )
Carver _ /| -l L ) e "f‘”/\ =
e == ol A
- AR - i_:/- gy o /
,55, Il N Wl
------- 1 "(> - L LS
i e ¥ \ |
—“'-'“i P § . horem i o Dakota |
v Scott LL Fumac |
o PV i ‘ "
& I
A ~ i

This Plan is consistent with Dakota County’s Strategic Plan goal: “A healthy environment with quality natural
areas” and the Environmental Resources Department’s mission to “Protect, preserve, and enhance the

environment for the health, enjoyment, and benefit of current and future generations.”

This Plan will inform the

2050 Dakota County Comprehensive Plan and city comprehensive plans in Dakota County (Figure 2).

Figure 2: Relatlonshlp of Waste Plans to Local Plans

[73] x|

Waste Less { \' £
23

January 2024

S
Dakota County, Minnesota

DRAFT 2024-2044 Solid Waste
Management Plan

k7

Metropolitan Policy Plan

)

County Management Plan

)

Dakota County, Minnesota

Comprehensive Plan
Transportation DC2040

W West St. Paul

2040 Comprehensive Plan

wsb

County Comprehensive Plan

)

Required update in 2028

City Comprehensive Plan

Required update in 2028

DRAFT Dakota County Solid Waste Management Plan: 2024-2044
Introduction, Page 1



Draft for Review by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency: October 29, 2024

County Comprehensive Plan: Dakota County’s Comprehensive Plan establishes the long-range vision and
high-level guidelines for key systems in Dakota County, including transportation, land use, environment and
natural resources, and parks. The next major update to the Comprehensive Plan is due in 2028. The Plan
provides the next level of detail for solid waste management.

City Comprehensive Plans: The Solid Waste Management Plan and Dakota County’s Comprehensive Plan
serve as a framework to inform revisions to comprehensive plans for cities in Dakota County. City
Comprehensive Plans are amended as needed and the next major update will be due in 2028.

Connections to Other County Plans and Key Initiatives: The Solid Waste Management Plan intersects
with other Dakota County plans and county program areas (Figure 3).

Figure 3: Solid Waste Management Plan Connections to County Plans and Key Initiatives

e PN Tran
‘\s‘qe Spo',t
e %y,
Q‘G (e)
c,°‘° KA
Solid and Hazardous Roadwa
y
Waste Management Management
o Sustainable County
_{z- Practices
<
a
2
g-' 2024-2044
~ Environmental Solid Waste
;’ Communications M PI 'g
X Environmentally anagement an ;
— Prerarahi Improve Reliability of the Data Tree (73
o Purchasing Education and Regional Planning Management
£ _ Waste Reduction and Reuse
= LEISS Toxic Recycling and Organics Management
a RIS Waste-to-Energy
Q Landfilling
(=) Household Hazardous Waste and
Toxicity Reduction
Sustainable Building and Deconstruction
Wood Waste 8
o Solid and_Hazardous Cost and Finance Earthworks Project g
- Materials and Sustainable Building & b"’
o Waste Management P
% Less Toxic £ b’b
% Products QQ &
Ve Disaster Debris N g}"b
A Management and Recycling, Q"\o) )
.O/ including Tree Waste 3 8\(‘
0’? Hazardous Materials o\\‘\ \i\\
Management C %

£ \!
’ﬂergehcy Manageme“

The first part of this Plan describes the Plan purpose and framework, including statutory waste management
goals and requirements. The second part presents the County’s vision, policies, goals, and strategies for solid
waste management in accordance with the Policy Plan. Appendices at the end of the Plan provide an overview
of the solid waste management system, the Plan update process and stakeholder engagement, environmental
justice, performance and accountability, strategy timing and implementation, and a crosswalk of this Plan
against statutory requirements.

. DRAFT Dakota County Solid Waste Management Plan: 2024-2044
[ Introduction, Page 2



Draft for Review by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency: October 29, 2024

The Plan is intended to guide waste management in the county through 2044, but most of the strategies focus
on meeting the 2030 objectives established by the state in the Policy Plan. Other strategies lay the foundation
for achieving the long-term goals. Implementation progress will be reviewed regularly, and revisions and new

strategies will be developed as appropriate to continue progress towards achieving the primary outcomes.

B. Plan Purpose and Framework

1. Plan Purpose
The Plan communicates Dakota County’s vision, policies, strategies, and tactics for solid waste management
over the next twenty years, with revisions every six years following Policy Plan revisions.

2. Plan Framework

Dakota County’s Solid Waste Management Plan provides a framework for county residents, businesses,
municipalities, waste industry and others to properly manage solid waste; performance measures to assess
progress; and reporting mechanisms for accountability. The Plan identifies Dakota County’s approaches toward
Policy Plan objectives, the statutory 75 percent recycling rate goal, and achieving other statutory requirements.

The county’s Plan was developed to align with the Policy Plan. The MPCA’s Policy Plan that metropolitan
counties must follow supports improved waste management in accordance with Minnesota’s Waste
Management Act (Minn. Stat. § 115A) and puts more emphasis on the following:

e Pollution prevention

e Sustainable materials management

e Conservation of natural resources

e Reduced reliance on landfills and waste-to-energy facilities
e Reduced toxicity of waste

e Equitable improvement public heath for all residents

e Supporting the economy

e Reduce impacts from climate change

The following key themes in the Policy Plan underlie all elements for TCMA counties to follow:

1. Sustainable material management is a holistic and systematic approach to use and reuse materials more
productively over their entire life cycle.

2. There are potential greenhouse gas reductions to be found throughout the solid waste management
system.

3. The benefits and burdens of the waste management system must flow equally to everyone.

Extended producer responsibility presents great opportunities for shifting the burden of management
from the counties to the producers.

The state’s Policy Plan objectives (Table 1) are intended to maximize the upper end of the hierarchy,
emphasizing product stewardship, source reduction, and reuse, and achieving the legislative goals for recycling
and organics recovery. The objectives are percentages of total TCMA MSW. Percentages generated in 2022 by
the TCMA and Dakota County are provided as a comparison and baseline. All stakeholders, including the MPCA,
Dakota County, municipalities, waste generators, and system operators, will be held accountable for meeting
these objectives. Objectives were not set for toxicity reduction or non-MSW, including construction and
demolition waste.

. DRAFT Dakota County Solid Waste Management Plan: 2024-2044
Introduction, Page 3



Draft for Review by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency: October 29, 2024

Table 1: Policy Plan MSW Management System Objectives for the TCMA, 2025 - 2042

2022 2022

7-Metro Dakota 2025 2030 2036 2042
Counties County Goals Goals Goals Goals

(Actual) (Actual)
Waste Reduction --* --* 2.9% 6.4% 10.7% 15.0%
Recycling 31.7% 24.5% 36.9% 47.4% 47.4% 47.4%
Organics Recovery 17.3% 30.2% 21.5% 27.6% 27.6% 27.6%
Resource Recovery 21.6% 2.2% 24.0% 20.0% 20.0% 20.0%
Landfilled 29.3% 43.2% 17.6% 5.0% 5.0% 5.0%

2022 SCORE Report data as presented on the MPCA Data Website. Total does not equal 100% due to rounding.
*Actual reduction and reuse measures have not yet been defined for measurement and reporting purposes.

The Policy Plan also sets new county-specific focus areas for metropolitan counties, including:

Increased emphasis on waste reduction and reuse to achieve the 15 percent target for reducing overall
waste generation by 2042. Special emphasis is placed on food waste prevention.

Sustainable building materials: Counties must focus on sustainable management of construction and
demolition materials, which previously have not had state-established reduction targets.

Wood waste: Anticipating a substantial increase in tree waste related to diseases such as the Emerald
Ash Borer, there is a new emphasis on managing trees to delay the need for removal and on expanding
regional capacity for handling wood waste. Counties must develop tree waste management plans.

Organics (food scraps) diversion is not new to the Policy Plan, although expectations for implementation
are more definite. The Policy Plan requires residential curbside organics collection to be available in
cities with a population greater than 5,000 by 2030.

3. Statutory Waste Management Goal and Requirements

The Waste Management Act (Minn. Stat. § 115A) was passed in 1980 to protect the state’s land, air, water,
natural resources, and public health. It requires the county to reduce solid waste generation (Minn. Stat. §
115A.55). In 2014, State law was changed to require TCMA counties to achieve a 75 percent recycling rate goal
(up from 50 percent) by 2030 (Minn. Stat. § 115A.551). Additional waste management statutory requirements
for counties that are addressed in this Plan include:

Ensure that residents have the opportunity to recycle (Minn. Stat. § 115A.552);

Ensure at least one recycling center is available in the county to collect recyclable materials (Minn. Stat.
§ 115A.552);

Provide information on how, when, and where materials may be recycled (Minn. Stat. § 115A.552);

Develop a promotional program that publishes notices at least once every three months and
encourages separation of recyclable materials (Minn. Stat. § 115A.552);

Implement a Household Hazardous Waste (HHW) management plan including broad-based HHW
education, reduction, separation from trash and collection, storage, and proper management (Minn.
Stat. § 115A.96);

Encourage building owners and managers to provide appropriate recycling services (Minn. Stat. §
115A.552);

Ensure that materials separated for recycling are taken to markets for sale or to recyclable material
processing centers (Minn. Stat. § 115A.553);

. DRAFT Dakota County Solid Waste Management Plan: 2024-2044
Introduction, Page 4


https://public.tableau.com/app/profile/mpca.data.services/viz/SCOREOverview/SCOREOverview?publish=yes

Draft for Review by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency: October 29, 2024

e Develop a solid waste plan to implement the Policy Plan (Minn. Stat. § 473.803);

e Develop and implement — or require political subdivisions to develop and implement — programs,
practices, or methods designed to meet the state-established recycling goal (Minn. Stat. § 115A.551).

e Include in its solid waste management plan a recycling implementation strategy for meeting the state-
established recycling goal (Minn. Stat. § 115A.551);

e Provide for the recycling of problem materials and major appliances (Minn. Stat. §115A.552);
e Develop and implement a permanent program to manage HHW (Minn. Stat. § 473.804);

e Include in its solid waste management plan a hazardous waste management plan with a public
education component, household hazardous waste reduction strategy, and a strategy for separation
and proper management of HHW (Minn. Stat. § 115A.96);

e Establish and revise ordinances, rules, regulations, and standards for solid waste facilities within the
county and ensure compliance (Minn. Stat. § 473.811); and

e Submit an annual certification report to the MPCA (Minn. Stat. § 473.848).

Waste management in the TCMA is an integrated system of many public and private entities with varying roles
and responsibilities, ranging from direct service provision to regulation. Dakota County does not provide direct
waste management services but has regulatory oversight and waste abatement programs to protect the
environment and public health, and support waste management at the highest and best use in accordance with
Minnesota’s waste management hierarchy. A variety of private waste management facilities located in Dakota
County play a significant role in managing waste for the region and supporting the waste management
hierarchy, including two recycling facilities, an aluminum recycling facility, a lead and plastic recycling facility, a
food waste composting facility, a food processing facility, six non-MSW landfills, and two MSW landfills. More
information about each of these facilities is contained in Appendix A.

Substantial progress has been made since Dakota County issued its first solid waste plan in the 1980s; however,
recycling is not at the level it could and should be. The MPCA conducted a statewide waste characterization
study in 2013 to assist with planning efforts. Results identified diversion opportunities based on the largest
quantities of recoverable materials found in the waste stream, including organics (31 percent), paper (25
percent), and plastics (18 percent).

This revised Plan focuses on providing the strong start needed for better resource conservation and
environmental protection, and to achieve, or make significant progress toward, the aggressive Policy Plan
objectives and statutory waste management requirements.

. DRAFT Dakota County Solid Waste Management Plan: 2024-2044
Introduction, Page 5



Draft for Review by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency: October 29, 2024

PART TWO: SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN

This section outlines Dakota County’s solid waste vision, policies, strategies, tactics, and timing. Policies,
strategies, and tactics in the Plan are intended to implement the Policy Plan and advance the MSW management
system objectives for the region (i.e., TCMA counties).

A. County Solid Waste Vision
The following vision defines Dakota County’s desired solid waste management system to be implemented by the
public and private sectors through efforts identified in the Plan:

A comprehensive waste management system that protects, preserves, and enhances the environment and
public health.

B. County Solid Waste Policies

The following policies define the position on specific issues, and roles or actions the county generally will take:

1. Prioritize waste management in preferred order: waste and toxicity reduction, reuse, recycling and
organics recovery/diversion (prevention, consumable food rescue for people, food scraps for livestock,
food for industrial uses, and then composting), resource recovery, land disposal.

2. Regulate waste in accordance with county ordinances.

3. Implement projects and programs toward achieving state laws, rules, and Metropolitan Solid Waste
Management Policy Plan goals and objectives.

4. Employ multiple approaches including educational, regulatory, and financial to efficiently and effectively
meet the Metropolitan Solid Waste Management Policy Plan goals and objectives.

5. Collaborate with the private and public sectors to address waste management issues.

6. Hold all persons, including waste generators and waste system operators, accountable for proper waste
management and for following the Plan.

7. Advocate for practical State and Federal product stewardship laws that support producer-led toxicity
reduction, source reduction, reuse, and recycling.

8. Seek external sources of funding to implement this Plan and for long-term and post-closure care of
landfills.

9. Strive for just treatment, meaningful involvement, and equitable implementation of the Solid Waste
Management Plan for all community members.

The vision and policies align with the Environmental Resources Department’s mission to “Protect, preserve and
enhance the environment for the health, enjoyment and benefit of current and future generations.”

C. Strategies and Tactics by Topic

Strategies are steps that will be taken to meet Policy Plan and statutory requirements.
This Plan includes three types of strategies:

1. Required Policy Plan Strategies that must be included in all TCMA county plans. The MPCA’s Policy Plan
identifies these 32 prescribed strategies as relatively simple to implement or have significant
environmental benefit. All 32 required strategies are included in this Plan. Strategies are also referenced
by their numbers in the Policy Plan.

. DRAFT Dakota County Solid Waste Management Plan: 2024-2044
Solid Waste Management Plan, Page 6



Draft for Review by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency: October 29, 2024

2. Selected Policy Plan Optional Strategies that total a minimum of 75 points (of available 194 points)
must be included in all TCMA county plans. The Policy Plan identifies 28 optional strategies for counties
to select from with assigned point values based on level of difficulty and environmental benefit. This
Plan consists of 12 selected optional strategies that total 82 points, exceeding the 75-point minimum.
Strategies are also referenced by their numbers in the Policy Plan.

3. Continuing County Strategies are existing county programs and practices that will be continued and
refined, as necessary, and are not incorporated under Policy Plan strategies. Appendix A provides
detailed program descriptions about all county solid waste programs and practices. This Plan includes 18
continuing strategies.

Table 2 identifies the strategy topics, the number of strategies TCMA counties are required to include in each

topic, and optional strategies included in the Plan with their corresponding point values.

Table 2: Policy Plan Strategies Incorporated into the Solid Waste Management Plan
Point Value of

. # of .
Strategy Topics # ::r::::i::d OPti‘;naI S(t):)attlzgizls
Strategies Selected selected
1. Improve the Reliability of the Data 2 1 7
2. Education and Regional Planning 5 - -
3. Waste Reduction and Reuse 8 4 27
4. Recycling and Organics Management with 8 14
Collection Best Practices
5. Waste-to-Energy 1 - -
6. Landfilling 1 - -
7. Household Hazardous Waste and Toxicity Reduction 3 1 9
8. Sustainable Building and Deconstruction 1 2 16
9. Wood Waste 3 1
10. Cost and Finance 1 4
Total Strategies (32 re30|2uire d) 12
82

Total Point Value of Optional Strategies 03 s ]

Tactics are specific actions or activities that will be taken to implement strategies. Strategies include a range of
tactics that vary in degree of specificity. This reflects the uncertainty in predicting future conditions often seen
with a long-range plan. For example, a more specific tactic identifies how it will be implemented if the
mechanism for implementation is evident (e.g., county ordinance update), while other tactics are written more
broadly to allow evaluation and implementation of the most effective implementation method (e.g., a county
ordinance versus new programs).

Projected timing is provided for each selected Policy Plan strategy and county-continuing strategy in Appendix E.
Strategy implementation timelines align with the general timelines identified in the Policy Plan.

Implementation of a given strategy or tactic is subject to County Board approval through annual budgeting
and work planning processes.

. DRAFT Dakota County Solid Waste Management Plan: 2024-2044
Solid Waste Management Plan, Page 7



Draft for Review by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency: October 29, 2024

The implementation framework was developed to allow flexibility in executing the different strategies and
tactics, and to provide options for the County Board to choose from when developing annual budgets and work
plans. For example, some tactics would only be implemented if the funding and staff were available to execute.
Non-county funds will be leveraged as much as possible through grants, fees, or other funding sources to
support implementation.

The county will coordinate with state and regional partners to develop annual priorities and work plans, as
appropriate. The MPCA and county will annually evaluate progress. Other influences, such as changes in industry
and market conditions for materials, may also influence strategy timing and implementation. Therefore, the
actual timing of strategy implementation may be different than presented in this Plan based on approved
approaches, strategy phasing, future conditions, and interactions with other implemented strategies.

1. Topic: Improving the Reliability of the Data

The MPCA desires to “accelerate the availability of data and information in a self-service format.” One of the
best ways to accomplish this is to ensure that data is consistently collected through the most reliable sources
and that all waste and waste reduction be tracked.

Dakota County must include two Policy Plan strategies in this category, as listed below. The Plan also includes
one selected Policy Plan optional strategy, worth seven points toward the 75-point total required minimum.

Required Policy Plan Strategies

1. Increase compliance with hauler reporting per Minn. Stat. § 115A.93. (PP [Policy Plan] 1)
a. Continue to implement county requirements for hauler reporting.
b. Inform haulers of reporting requirements at least once per quarter.

2. Provide required county reporting. (PP 2)
a. Continue to annually submit required reporting to the MPCA (e.g., SCORE, certification, annual
reports).
b. Continue to collaborate with the MPCA, TCMA counties, and regulated parties to improve waste
management data collection and reporting.
c. Collaborate with the MPCA and TCMA counties to identify and implement an effective
measurement tool for source reduction and reuse.

Optional Policy Plan Strategies

3. Improve recycling data collection at businesses within the county. (PP 4, 7 points)
a. Continue to implement Dakota County Ordinance No. 110 requirements for commercial entities
(e.g., business, schools) to annually report recycling data to the county to improve waste
management data.

2. Topic: Education and Regional Planning

Counties are responsible to provide education to the public on how, when, and where materials can be recycled
and promote activities to encourage recycling at least quarterly (Minn. Stat. § 115A.552). The Policy Plan states
that it is practical to implement certain strategies at the regional level by collaboratively designing and
modernizing a materials management system that will benefit all TCMA counties, and requires this Plan include
five specific strategies for regional solutions, as listed below.

A continuing county strategy will support ongoing landfill waste abatement education efforts.

. DRAFT Dakota County Solid Waste Management Plan: 2024-2044
Solid Waste Management Plan, Page 8



Draft for Review by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency: October 29, 2024

Required Policy Plan Strategies

4. Participate in an annual joint commissioner/staff meeting on solid waste. (PP 9)

a.

Collaborate with partners (e.g., MPCA, TCMA counties) to implement meetings with the MPCA,
county staff, and a county commissioner to support effective solid waste policies in the region.

5. Commit to standardized outreach and education. (PP 10)

a.

Continue to provide information on how, when, and where to properly manage solid waste and
encourage source-separation of materials to support management of materials and waste at the
highest levels of the State of Minnesota’s Waste Management Hierarchy and the EPA Food Recovery
Hierarchy to all persons in Dakota County.

Continue to provide consistent, broad-based education to the community on proper waste
management (e.g., solid waste, problem materials, household hazardous waste) using county-
standardized educational, outreach, and communication resources.

Continue to collaborate with partners (e.g., MPCA, TCMA counties, Recycling Education Committee,
recycling and composting associations) to leverage existing resources by incorporating state and
regionally developed materials in county communications.

Update Dakota County Ordinance No. 110 to require haulers to provide customers feedback when
they are not sorting recycling or organics correctly and provide standardized messaging to
customers on a quarterly basis at minimum.

Continue to promote county programs and collection services (e.g., The Recycling Zone) and drop
off opportunities (e.g., plastic bag and film recycling) to promote proper management of solid
waste.

Promote the benefits of the use of compost.

6. Engage in efficient and value-added infrastructure planning. (PP 11)

a.

Continue to collaborate with the state, TCMA counties and the private sector on planning efforts for
infrastructure development (e.g., organics, wood waste).

7. Develop plans for large facility closures to reduce landfill reliance. (PP 12)

a.

Develop plans for potential closures at large facilities (e.g., recycling facilities, food waste compost
facilities, transfer stations) located in the county.

Continue to collaborate with the state, landfill owners/operators, and municipalities that host
landfills to develop post-closure monitoring and mitigation plans.

Continue to enforce Dakota County Ordinance No. 110 requirements that prohibit source-separated
materials, including recyclables and food waste, from being landfilled.

Continue to ensure facilities maintain closure and pre-closure plans and adequate financial
assurance to implement those plans, as required by Dakota County Ordinance No. 110.

8. Participate with the Product Stewardship Committee under the Solid Waste Administrators
Association (SWAA). (PP 60)

a.

b.

Continue to participate in a regional product stewardship committee to develop and expand
practical product stewardship initiatives.

Continue to provide data for legislative changes that improve product stewardship initiatives (e.g.,
for paint, electronics).

. DRAFT Dakota County Solid Waste Management Plan: 2024-2044
Solid Waste Management Plan, Page 9



Draft for Review by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency: October 29, 2024

Continuing County Strategy

The following strategy is an existing county practice not incorporated in the above Policy Plan strategies. The
strategy will be sustained and refined, as necessary.

9. Provide messages and education programs to all audiences using communication methods most
effective for the intended audience.

3. Topic:

a.

Develop engagement methods using innovative, evidence-based approaches proven to motivate
behavior change.

Deliver messages using mass communications methods (e.g., print, online, mobile) most effective
for each intended audience.

Use a variety of learning engagement methods (e.g., presentations, tours, multilingual/multicultural
outreach).

Require municipalities to use elements of county-standardized outreach, educational, and
promotional program materials.

Use the Recycling Ambassador program to engage more audiences (e.g., teachers, municipal staff)
to increase waste management awareness and waste diversion actions in the community.

Waste Reduction and Reuse

Counties are responsible for advancing prevention and reuse along with other solid waste management
strategies. Waste reduction means not generating any materials that require further recycling, composting,
disposal, or other management. The Policy Plan Waste Reduction objective is 2.9 percent by 2025 and 15
percent by 2042 for TCMA counties.

Dakota County is required to include eight specific strategies in this category, as listed below. The Plan also
includes four selected optional strategies, worth a total of 27 points toward the 75-point required minimum.
Continuing county strategies provide ongoing support for existing residential, municipal, business and school
reduction and reuse education and project efforts.

Required Policy Plan Strategies

10. Provide grants for access to software that can track food waste. (PP 13)

11.

12.

a.

Continue to provide support (e.g., funding, technical assistance, best management tools) for
tracking tools and equipment (e.g., LeanPath, Phood) to schools and commercial kitchens to prevent
food waste in their purchasing and practices.

Establish partnerships between food rescue organizations and restaurants/stores to increase food
rescue. (PP 14)

a.

Provide support (e.g., funding, technical assistance) to organizations (e.g., food shelves, restaurants,
grocery stores, schools) to improve collection, safe storage and transportation of surplus edible food
to food rescue organizations.

Collaborate with food rescue organizations to provide education to donors on donation
opportunities, including donation liability protections.

Provide resources (e.g., educational materials) to businesses and schools on food rescue options
during county waste regulation inspections.

Launch bi-annual sustainable consumption challenges for residents. (PP 15)

a.

Conduct bi-annual sustainable low-waste living challenges (e.g., plastic reduction) for residents and
provide tools (e.g., reusable containers) to reduce barriers to sustain low-waste actions.

. DRAFT Dakota County Solid Waste Management Plan: 2024-2044
Solid Waste Management Plan, Page 10



Draft for Review by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency: October 29, 2024

b. Continue to provide information on waste reduction and reuse opportunities for residents (e.g.,
donation, curbside collection, lending, renting, repairing).

13. Implement a formal county sustainable purchasing policy using MPCA guidance. (PP 16)
a. Continue to implement standards and practices for environmentally preferrable products and
services in accordance with County Policy 2740 (Procurement) and educate employees on practices
that reduce waste in county operations.

b. Adopt and implement a county policy that allows donation of assets to non-profit organizations.

14. Participate in Responsible Public Purchasing Council meetings. (PP 17)
a. Continue to participate in MPCA-led Responsible Purchasing Council meetings and host at least two
meetings by 2030.

b. Continue to provide resources (e.g., funding, technical assistance) to public entities to participate in
the MPCA’s Responsible Purchasing Council meetings and implement waste reduction and reuse in
their operations.

15. Offer grants or rebates for organizations to transition to reusable food and beverage service ware. (PP
19)
a. Continue to implement county business and municipal waste abatement programs that provide
resources (e.g., funding, technical assistance) to improve waste reduction and reuse within internal
operations, including for supplies and reusable service ware.

b. Modify the existing school program to expand support (e.g., funding, technical assistance) to
increase use of reusable service ware, including for infrastructure (e.g., washing and collection
equipment).

16. Offer grants for waste reduction, reuse, and repair. (PP 20)
a. Continue to provide resources (e.g., funding, technical assistance) through the business, school,
multifamily, and municipal waste abatement programs to improve waste reduction within internal
operations.

b. Provide start-up resources (e.g., funding, technical assistance) to businesses and organizations to
implement waste reduction with large-scale community-wide impact.

c. Use non-county funding opportunities (i.e., grants or additional state funding) to research best

practices and pilot opportunities to increase deconstruction and use of reusable building materials.

17. Implement a green meeting policy. (PP 21)
a. Continue to implement standards for green meetings in accordance with County Policy 2740
(Procurement) and educate employees on green meeting practices.

b. Explore and implement additional opportunities (e.g., food donation, reusable serviceware, select
use of dishwashers) to reduce waste at county meetings.

Selected Policy Plan Optional Strategies

18. Work with health inspectors to educate restaurants and other establishments that have excess
prepared food to donate. (PP 18, 7 points)
a. Collaborate with the Minnesota Department of Health to educate state-licensed food
establishments about food rescue opportunities.

. DRAFT Dakota County Solid Waste Management Plan: 2024-2044
Solid Waste Management Plan, Page 11



Draft for Review by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency: October 29, 2024

19. Join and/or actively participate in a reuse network, like Reuse Minnesota, to provide county and city
staff with learning opportunities to broaden their reuse expertise. (PP 24, 6 points)

a.

Continue to be a member of and participate in Reuse Minnesota and implement learnings in county
operations.

Continue to provide resources (e.g., funding, technical assistance) to municipalities to participate in
reuse networks and implement reuse in their operations.

20. Establish a Repair Ambassador program, like the Recycler/Composters (RCAs) Ambassador programs.
(PP 25 — 7 points)

a.

Continue to implement the Fix-it Clinic Program with a volunteer base to support repair of broken
household items.

Implement a repair ambassador program to recruit and provide trainings for new volunteers to
support Fix-it Clinics.

21. Establish a reuse location for residential drop-off and pick-up (PP 26 — 7 points)

a.

Increase residential reuse opportunities using county collection facilities (e.g., Recycling Zone,
Recycling Zone Plus) for household items that are challenging to reuse (e.g., household hazardous
waste, problem materials, bicycles, and mattresses).

Continuing County Strategies

The following strategies are existing county programs and practices not incorporated in above Policy Plan
strategies. These strategies will be sustained and refined, as necessary.

22. Implement residential waste reduction and reuse programs and opportunities.

a.

b.

Provide food waste prevention education and resources (e.g., prevention tools) and information
about food shelf donation opportunities to residents.

Promote existing building materials reuse opportunities and services for residents.

23. Implement municipal, school and commercial waste reduction and reuse programs and opportunities.

a.

Provide reuse opportunities (e.g., partnerships with non-profits for on-site collections) for
multifamily residents.

Provide support (e.g., technical assistance, funding) to municipalities to increase access to reuse and
repair opportunities for residents in their community, including reuse opportunities at clean up
events.

Provide support (e.g., funding, technical assistance) and education through current municipality,
business, and schools programs to increase reuse, food waste prevention, and food rescue.

4. Topic: Recycling and Organics Management with Collection Best Practices

The Policy Plan prioritizes recycling and organics management, along with collection best practices, to increase
the recycling rates in the region. The Policy Plan Recycling objective is 36.9 percent by 2025 and 47.4 percent by
2042 for TCMA counties. The Policy Plan Organics Recovery objective is 21.5 percent by 2025 and 27.6 percent
by 2042 for TCMA counties. The Policy Plan recycling and organics objectives are intended to achieve the
statutory recycling goal (includes organics) of 75 percent by 2030 for TCMA counties.

Dakota County is required to include eight specific Policy Plan strategies related to recycling management,
organics management, and collection best practices, as listed below. The Plan also includes two selected Policy
Plan optional strategies, worth a total of 14 points toward the 75-point required minimum, along with several
continuing strategies.

. DRAFT Dakota County Solid Waste Management Plan: 2024-2044
Solid Waste Management Plan, Page 12



Draft for Review by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency: October 29, 2024

Required Policy Plan Strategies

24. Collect recyclables, organics and trash on the same day. (PP 30)

25.

26.

27.

28.

a. Update Dakota County Ordinance No. 110 to require haulers to collect recyclables, trash, and
organics (if collected) on the same day from residential customers.

b. Provide resources (e.g., technical assistance, model language) for municipalities to update local
codes.

Recruit a minimum of 12 commercial businesses a year to recycle at least three materials from their

operations and promote the environmental and resource benefits. (PP 35)

c. Continue to provide standardized resources (e.g., education materials, labels, training) and technical
assistance to commercial entities through the business recycling program to improve recycling
within their operations.

d. Modify the business recycling program to focus funding support for recycling infrastructure (e.g.,
containers) on small commercial entities.

e. Inform businesses about and enforce Dakota County Ordinance No. 110 commercial recycling
requirements.

Establish mandatory pre-processing of waste at resource recovery facilities and landfills by 2030. (PP

36)

a. Update Dakota County Ordinance No. 110 to require upfront processing of a minimum of aluminum
and steel at resource recovery facilities and MSW and non-MSW landfills, including that facilities
demonstrate effectiveness and preparedness prior to implementation.

Provide assistance to multifamily properties to improve recycling. (PP 37)

a. Continue to provide standardized resources (e.g., education materials, labels, training), funding
support for infrastructure (e.g., containers), and technical assistance to multifamily properties to
improve recycling within their operations.

b. Continue to provide support (e.g., funding, technical assistance, educational resources) to
municipalities to implement the county’s multifamily recycling program.

c. Continue to work with municipalities to ensure building planning and construction supports
recycling and to develop multifamily mechanisms (e.g., rental licenses, inspections) consistent with
city codes and County Dakota County Ordinance No. 110.

Make residential curbside organics collection available in cities with a population greater than 5,000

by 2030. (PP 40)

a. Update Dakota County Ordinance No. 110 to make curbside organics collection available for
residential customers in suburban cities (e.g., require hauler implementation plan, prohibit
container delivery charge).

b. Provide start-up resources (e.g., compostable bags, educational materials) to residents and
municipalities to remove participation barriers.

c. Provide support (e.g., funding, technical assistance, educational resources) to interested
municipalities to research or implement best waste management collection practices (e.g., zoned
contract areas, hauler franchise agreements).

d. Continue food waste credits in county landfill host agreements to encourage adequate capacity for
organics generated in Dakota County.

. DRAFT Dakota County Solid Waste Management Plan: 2024-2044
Solid Waste Management Plan, Page 13



Draft for Review by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency: October 29, 2024

29. Expand backyard composting outreach and resources for residents. (PP 41)
a. Continue to provide educational resources to municipalities to support residential backyard
composting.
b. Increase resident education about backyard composting and provide resources (e.g., compost
spreading equipment) to reduce barriers to use of compost.

c. Continue to provide incentives (e.g., discounts) to residents to participate in regional compost bin
sales (e.g., Recycling Association of Minnesota) and provide distribution locations in the county.

d. Provide compost bin sale opportunities at county drop off sites (e.g., Recycling Zone Plus).

30. Require management of organics from large commercial food generators by 2033. (PP 42)
a. Continue to implement Dakota County Ordinance No. 110 requirements for large generators of
organics.

b. Modify the business recycling program to focus funding support for organics infrastructure (e.g.,
containers) on small commercial entities to improve back-of-house organics recovery within their
operations.

c. Continue to provide standardized resources (e.g., education materials, labels, training) to all
interested commercial entities (e.g., businesses, schools) to improve organics recovery within their
operations.

31. Require food-derived compost in county construction and landscaping projects. (PP 55)

a. Collaborate with regional partners (e.g., MPCA, MNCC, TCMA counties) to revise MnDOT
specifications for separate yard waste and food derived compost standards.

b. Develop a county policy to use MnDOT specifications for compost to expand use of yard waste- and
food waste-derived compost in county earthworks projects (e.g., transportation, stormwater,
landscaping).

c. Provide support (e.g., educational materials, compost product) to residents and community partners
that participate in county landfill abatement programs to increase use of compost in earthworks
projects.

Selected Policy Plan Optional Strategies

32. Collect recycling weekly by 2030. (PP 31, 7 points)
a. Continue to implement Dakota County Ordinance No. 110 requirements for haulers to provide
weekly recycling to residential customers and update requirements to include a variance for rural
parts of the county if additional recycling opportunities are provided.

33. Establish additional organics recycling drop off sites. (PP 43, 7 points)
a. Continue to provide drop off opportunities (e.g., drop sites) to collect organics from residents and
expand to areas that will not be served by curbside organics collection (e.g., apartment complexes,
rural areas).

b. Continue to provide resources (e.g., compostable bags, educational materials) to residents to
remove participation barriers.

c. Continue to collaborate with municipalities and other partners and provide assistance (e.g., start-up
funding, resident education, training) for residential organics drop-off sites.

Continuing County Strategies

The following strategies are existing county programs and practices not incorporated in above Policy Plan
strategies. These strategies will be sustained and refined, as necessary.

. DRAFT Dakota County Solid Waste Management Plan: 2024-2044
Solid Waste Management Plan, Page 14



Draft for Review by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency: October 29, 2024

34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

Improve the consistency and accountability of waste materials collection.
a. Promote a standardized list of traditional recyclables with proven markets to be collected.

b. Provide research (e.g., economic, efficiency, GHG emissions) and funding for municipalities to
consider best management collection options (e.g., zoned contract areas, hauler franchise
agreements).

Support the collection of household items that are challenging to recycle.
a. Promote opportunities for residents to recycle challenging materials (e.g., mattresses).

b. Provide municipalities with implementation resources (e.g., funding, technical assistance, model
contracts) to increase opportunities to recycle challenging household items such as mattresses
through city collections events.

c. Support collection of waste agricultural and marina film plastic until private sector efforts are widely
available.

Ensure the opportunity to recycle.
a. Provide a year-round drop-off facility/ies (e.g., The Recycling Zone) to collect recyclables (e.g.,
paper, plastic, metal/scrap metal, glass) from residents.

b. Require MSW haulers to offer recycling collection to their customers in accordance with Dakota
County Ordinance No. 110.

Provide support to schools to improve recycling and organics recovery in their operations through the

school program.

a. Provide resources (e.g., funding, labels, technical assistance, education) to implement best
management practices to increase recycling and recover organics at schools including for outdoor
recycling infrastructure.

Implement recycling and organics diversion at events.

a. Implement Dakota County Ordinance No. 110 requirements for recycling and back-of-house
organics diversion and collaborate with municipalities on city code implementation of their event
requirements.

b. Provide support (e.g., technical assistance, funding, educational resources) to municipalities to
continue collection of recyclable and organics materials at events and enhance event check-out
program for residents.

c. Provide a check-out container program and assistance (e.g., technical assistance, infrastructure,
educational resources) to implement a uniform system of well-labeled and paired trash and
recycling containers at community events.

d. Facilitate a group of volunteers to implement recycling, organics, and waste reduction best
management practices at community events and document event diversion results.

Provide recycling and organics recovery/diversion opportunities in county operations, including in

public and employee areas.

a. Use model contracts, such as resource management contracts, to manage waste from county
operations.

b. Implement a uniform system of well-labeled, paired trash, recycling, and organics containers in
county operations.

. DRAFT Dakota County Solid Waste Management Plan: 2024-2044
Solid Waste Management Plan, Page 15



Draft for Review by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency: October 29, 2024

5. Topic: Waste-to-Energy

The Waste Management Act identifies that waste-to-energy (WTE) is preferred over landfills. The Policy Plan
identifies that WTE recovers more materials and energy compared to landfills. The Policy Plan Resource
Recovery objective is 24 percent by 2025 and 20 percent by 2042 for TCMA counties. Progress toward this
objective will remain difficult until new capacity is reasonably available for Dakota County waste.

Dakota County is required to include one Policy Plan strategy in this category, as listed below.

Required Policy Plan Strategies

40. Counties must continue to support the implementation of Minn. Stat. § 473.848 Restriction on
Disposal. (PP 58)
a. Continue to support state efforts to maximize the use of existing resource recovery facility capacity
serving the TCMA while considering geography and environmental impacts.

b. Work cooperatively with the MPCA as the State enforces provisions found in Minn. Stat. § 473.848
while considering distance to resource recovery facilities, sustainable materials management
principles, and related environmental impacts (e.g., facility air quality permits, GHG
emissions/equivalent).

c. Continue to annually gather and submit information and data for the MPCA’s annual certification
report.

d. Continue to manage the lease for county-owned land in Empire to support transfer capacity to a
resource recovery facility through 2027, with possible extensions available through 2037.

6. Topic: Landfilling

The Policy Plan includes system objectives to reduce land disposal to five percent of MSW generation within the
next ten years, recognizing that some MSW is not processible. According to the Policy Plan, if MSW cannot be
prevented, reduced, reused, recycled, or composted, it should first go to a resource recovery facility and only be
landfilled if it is not processible. The Policy Plan Landfilling objective is 17.6 percent by 2025 and 5 percent by
2042 for TCMA counties. The Policy Plan does not have numeric targets for non-municipal solid waste (non-
MSW). Non-MSW includes industrial, construction, and demolition debris.

Dakota County is required to include one Policy Plan strategy in this category, as listed below. This section also
includes several continuing county strategies focused on regulation and proper management of non-MSW.

Required Policy Plan Strategies

41. Require waste composition study at least once every five years at all landfills that are located within

your county. (PP 3)

a. Review and update Dakota County Ordinance No. 110 requirements for MSW and non-MSW
disposal facilities to conduct waste composition studies to be consistent with state law and MPCA
implementation mechanisms (e.g., facility permit schedules), including a start date no sooner than
2029.

b. Collaborate with the MPCA on the waste composition schedule and methodology at landfills.

Continuing County Strategies

The following strategies are existing county programs and practices not incorporated in the above Policy Plan
strategy. These strategies will be sustained and refined, as necessary.

. DRAFT Dakota County Solid Waste Management Plan: 2024-2044
Solid Waste Management Plan, Page 16



Draft for Review by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency: October 29, 2024

42. Regulate solid waste generators, haulers, facilities, and generators to achieve compliance and protect
public health and the environment, in accordance with County Ordinances.
a. Regulate solid waste generators, solid waste facilities, and waste haulers to achieve compliance with
county licenses and ordinances.

b. Enforce waste and material bans and restrictions.
c. Prohibit licensed haulers from mixing source-separated materials with MSW.

43. Regulate hazardous waste generators and facilities to protect public health and the environment, in
accordance with County Ordinances.
a. Regulate hazardous waste generators and facilities to achieve compliance with county ordinance.

b. Continue partnerships with the County Sheriff’s Department and public entities (e.g., rural towns,
townships) to reduce toxic releases caused by mismanagement of waste (e.g., burning waste).

44. Provide opportunities to recycle and properly manage non-MSW that is banned from disposal.
a. Collect tires at county collection sites (e.g., The Recycling Zone) and encourage municipalities to
offer tire collections at community clean-up events.

45. Regulate non-MSW haulers and facilities in accordance with County Ordinance.

a. Regulate waste haulers that collect and transport non-MSW and work with the region to evaluate
licensing of non-MSW waste haulers as part of the regional hauler licensing program and implement
findings.

b. Regulate facilities that manage non-MSW.

7. Topic: Household Hazardous Waste and Toxicity Reduction

Household hazardous waste (HHW) facilities reduce the toxicity of the solid waste stream by providing
households with an opportunity to bring pesticides, drain cleaners, mercury thermometers, stains, or varnishes,
and other such products to drop-off sites. County HHW collection programs are statutorily mandated to remove
hazardous materials from the solid waste stream.

Dakota County is required to include three specific Policy Plan strategies in this category, as listed below. The
Plan also includes an alternative strategy as a substitution for one Policy Plan optional strategy, worth a total of
9 points toward the 75-point required minimum. The alternative strategy to build and operate a second
permanent HHW and recycling drop off facility in partnership with Scott County will exceed the intended
benefits of the original optional strategy to host monthly drop-off sites. A continuing county strategy is also
included in this section for sustained HHW, problem material, and recycling services at The Recycling Zone.

Required Policy Plan Strategies

46. Encourage retailers to increase consumer awareness of responsible end-of-life handling for products
containing lithium-ion batteries. (PP 61)
a. Continue to promote safe disposal of batteries to residents including county and private sector HHW
drop-off opportunities.

b. Collaborate and provide resources (e.g., funding, educational materials) to municipalities to provide
tobacco retailers that are licensed by municipalities with information on county HHW drop-off
options for responsible resident lithium-ion batteries management, such as from vaping products.

47. Continue participation in the reciprocal use agreement for HHW collection sites. (PP 62)
a. Continue to use reciprocal use agreements to recover funds for HHW that is generated in other
counties and managed by the county.

. DRAFT Dakota County Solid Waste Management Plan: 2024-2044
Solid Waste Management Plan, Page 17



Draft for Review by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency: October 29, 2024

b.

Continue to participate in agreements, partnerships, or both with private and public sectors to
reduce costs, liability for managing hazardous waste and problem materials, or both (e.g.,
Department of Agriculture, PaintCare, Dakota Electric, Xcel Energy, State).

48. Partner with cities to increase participation in HHW collection. (PP 63)

a.

Provide support (e.g., technical assistance, funding) to municipalities for education on county HHW
drop off opportunities to their residents.

Continue to collaborate with municipalities to provide interim collection opportunities for proper
management of materials (e.g., pharmaceutical waste) as state and private sector product
stewardship initiatives develop.

Continue to collaborate with cities to provide year-round collection of limited HHW (e.g., CFL bulbs)
and problem materials (e.g., string lights).

Selected Policy Plan Optional Strategy

49. In partnership with Scott County, increase drop off opportunities for problem materials, household
hazardous waste management (HHW), and business hazardous waste at a second permanent county
facility by 2029. (PP 64 Alternative Strategy, 9 points)

a.

Continue to collaborate with Scott County to develop a joint permanent year-round hazardous and
household hazardous waste, recycling, and problem material collection facility (i.e., The Recycling
Zone Plus).

Provide opportunities for proper hazardous waste management for public entities, commercial
entities, and hazardous waste generators.

Work to secure additional state funding to assist with building and construction costs.

Continuing County Strategy

The following strategy is an existing county program not incorporated in above Policy Plan strategies. The
strategy will be sustained and refined, as necessary.

50. Continue to provide year-round drop-off site (e.g., The Recycling Zone) to collect problem materials
and hazardous and household hazardous waste from residents.

a.

Continue to provide consistent and cost-effective household hazardous waste, hazardous waste,
and problem material management services.

Continue to provide reuse opportunities at the county year-round drop-off site (e.g., The Recycling
Zone) and household hazardous waste/problem material collections to reduce the amount of
hazardous waste disposal.

8. Topic: Sustainable Building and Deconstruction

The Policy Plan notes that traditional demolition of buildings is wasteful and destroys usable, valuable materials
and that better handling and preservation of existing materials reduces unnecessary waste. For example,
materials like concrete, wood, and metals can be diverted for reuse or recycling.

Dakota County is required to include one specific Policy Plan strategy in this category, as listed below, focused
on developing plans for Dakota County’s buildings and projects. The Plan also includes two selected optional
strategies, worth a total of 16 points toward the 75-point required minimum.

Required Policy Plan Strategies

51. Implement the use of a Building Material Management Plan. (PP 65)

. DRAFT Dakota County Solid Waste Management Plan: 2024-2044
Solid Waste Management Plan, Page 18



Draft for Review by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency: October 29, 2024

Continue to use the county’s High Performance Design and Construction Standards for county
building construction, demolition, and remodeling projects.

Share information regarding waste reduction, reuse, and recycling opportunities with public entities
and encourage public entity adoption of such practices.
Utilize existing resources to implement a building material management plan for county-owned

buildings, and use non-county funding opportunities (i.e., grants or additional state funding), when
available, to document the destination of materials in projects during and after project completion.

Selected Policy Plan Optional Strategy

52. Host a building material collection event or swap. (PP 67 — 8 points)

a.

Provide support (e.g., funding, technical assistance) to municipalities to partner with building
materials reuse organizations to provide building material collection events for residents when non-
county funding opportunities (i.e., grants or additional state funding) are available.

Provide support (e.g., funding, technical assistance) to promote building material collection
opportunities and events for residents.

53. Provide deconstruction training. (pp 69 — 8 points)

a.

Provide assistance (e.g., funding, technical assistance) to organizations to provide education (e.g.,
presentations, classes) to the deconstruction workforce (e.g., contractors, builders) to increase
proper sorting and reuse of building materials.

Participate in state and regional information-sharing and coordination for deconstruction training to
the region.

9. Topic: Wood Waste

According to the Policy Plan, Emerald Ash Borer (EAB) infestation combined with more frequent, severe storms
have led to large volumes of wood waste in Minnesota. The state projects a trajectory of five to ten years to
reach peak volumes of wood waste in TCMA counties.

Dakota County is required to include three specific strategies in this category, as listed below. The Plan also
includes one selected optional strategy, worth a total of five points toward the 75-point required minimum.

Required Policy Plan Strategies

54. Develop plans to prevent and manage wood waste in each county and throughout the region. (PP 45)

a.

Continue to license yard waste and wood waste processing facilities and require reporting of wood
and yard waste received, managed, stored, and processed.

Participate in the MPCA Wood Waste Task Force to plan for potential volumes of wood waste from
diseased tree species in the county and to identify facilities and industries (e.g., mulch producers,
tree care companies) that manage wood waste from county generators.

Identify and implement opportunities to manage wood waste from county operations to the
greatest environmental benefit (e.g., preservation, biochar).

Collaborate with partners (e.g., state, municipalities, wood waste industry, SWCD) to promote
information on existing tree management resources (e.g., tree care to prevent tree diseases, funding
assistance for tree removal).

55. Promote existing programs that use EAB-affected wood for furniture, home goods, flooring and other
purposes. (PP 46)

a.

Promote opportunities for residents and businesses to use products made from EAB-affected trees.

. DRAFT Dakota County Solid Waste Management Plan: 2024-2044
Solid Waste Management Plan, Page 19


https://www.co.dakota.mn.us/Environment/Sustainability/Documents/EMDesignStandards.pdf#search=dakota%20county%20sustainability%20design%20standards

Draft for Review by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency: October 29, 2024

b.

Use EAB-affected wood in county operations as relevant.

56. Composting and mulching operations must continue to be supported. (PP 47)

a.

Continue to manage the lease for county-owned land in Empire to support regional capacity of yard
waste and food waste composting through 2027, with extensions available through 2037.

Provide public education on yard waste and wood waste management options, including drop off
and pick up options.

Update Dakota County Ordinance No. 110 to require haulers to provide customer education and
labels on yard waste containers that follow county standardized messaging requirements.

Continue to regulate yard waste and wood waste to ensure proper waste management in
accordance with Dakota County Ordinance No. 110.

Collaborate with partners (e.g., municipalities, private sector) and provide support (e.g., funding,
technical assistance) to expand drop off opportunities for residents to properly manage yard waste
and tree waste when non-county funding opportunities (i.e., grants or additional state funding) are
available.

Selected Optional Policy Plan Strategies

57. Expand composting and mulching capacity beyond existing markets. (PP 52, 5 points)

a.

10.Topic:

Allow the lease for county-owned land in Empire to support organics operations (e.g., source-
separated organics, yard waste composting) and allow operations to include biochar production.

Allow beneficial use of biochar at landfills through the county licensing process.

Increase biochar generation in county operations and explore opportunities to use biochar in county
earthworks projects (e.g., Transportation, Parks).

Cost and Finance

The Policy Plan does not include a numeric objective related to this category. This section is included because
the county is committed to making effective use of public resources and allocating costs equitably to waste
generators while ensuring environmental protection. This section includes one optional strategy, worth a total
of four points toward the 75-point required minimum, in addition to several continuing county strategies for
continued management of fees and use of county and external funding for abatement programs.

Selected Optional Policy Plan Strategies

58. Implement additional fees to better account for the externalities of land disposal. (PP 59, 4 points)

a.

Continue to implement a fee structure to fully fund regulatory hazardous and solid waste programs
and activities.

Continue to negotiate host fee agreements with waste management facilities to influence waste
generators to manage waste in priority order: reduce, reuse, recycle, organics recovery, resource
recovery, land disposal and support waste abatement activities, including to charge more for out of
county waste in host agreements at MSW landfills.

Continue to manage and use state funding (e.g., SCORE, LRDG) and other outside grant
opportunities to implement waste abatement programs and practices.

Continuing County Strategies

The following strategies are existing county programs and practices not incorporated in the above Policy Plan
strategy. These strategies will be sustained and refined, as necessary.

59. Collect and manage waste fees to implement waste management programs.

. DRAFT Dakota County Solid Waste Management Plan: 2024-2044
Solid Waste Management Plan, Page 20



Draft for Review by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency: October 29, 2024

a. Negotiate and collect host fees for MSW and non-MSW facilities during the operational life of the
facilities to support waste abatement activities.

b. Implement a fee structure to fully fund regulatory hazardous and solid waste programs and
activities.

c. Use state funding (e.g., SCORE, LRDG) to implement waste abatement programs.

60. Provide performance-based grant funding and resources to municipalities to implement landfill
abatement programs within their operations and in the community.
a. Annually provide funding, technical assistance, and infrastructure and standardized educational
resources to support city and township recycling and waste abatement programs in accordance with
Dakota County Ordinance No. 110, including education for residential organics curbside organics
collection.

61. Institute funding incentives to divert waste from landfill disposal.
a. Provide support (e.g., technical assistance) to encourage proposals from private and public entities
to add or expand landfill diversion capacity in the county.

62. Implement long-term revenue sources for landfill abatement programs that encourage waste
diversion.
a. Evaluate non-levy revenue models (e.g., generator fees) that sufficiently support solid waste
programs and support waste management at the highest and best levels, anticipating facility
closures and resulting host fee reduction or elimination.

b. Advocate that all collected Solid Waste Management Tax that is distributed to the State’s general
fund be redistributed to counties for landfill abatement.

c. Advocate to fully fund the Metropolitan Landfill Contingency Action Trust Account (MLCAT) and
Closed Landfill Investment Funds (CLIF).

d. Advocate for continued funding from the Local Recycling Development Grant (LRDG).

D. Plan Implementation

1. Public Education

Public education will be critical in implementing each strategy in the Plan, whether it is a continuing, expanded,
or new effort, as identified in Appendix E. Public education is shifting beyond traditional information-sharing to a
more robust engagement that develops community awareness of solid waste issues and individual roles and
responsibilities to properly manage waste. To move more waste up the waste management hierarchy,
community outreach will need to leverage partnerships more effectively, use proven science-based educational
messages and methods, enhance message delivery and consistency, and apply multiple communication methods
that best reach the intended audience.

A communications work plan will be developed annually by the Environmental Resources Department and
County Communications to identify priority messages and venues to promote waste messages to the
community.

2. Environmental Justice

Environmental justice is the fair treatment and meaningful involvement of all people as environmental laws,
rules, and policies are developed, implemented, and enforced. This Plan establishes a framework to incorporate
equity and environmental justice in solid and hazardous waste program areas upon which Dakota County can
continuously improve. The Policy Plan requires this Plan be developed with an environmental justice review
lens. Environmental justice is incorporated into a policy in this Plan: Strive for just treatment, meaningful

. DRAFT Dakota County Solid Waste Management Plan: 2024-2044
Solid Waste Management Plan, Page 21



Draft for Review by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency: October 29, 2024

involvement, and equitable implementation of the Solid Waste Management Plan for all community members.
See Appendix C for more details on Dakota County’s environmental justice review and plans for continued
equity as Plan strategies are implemented.

3. Phasing and Collaboration

Collaboration between county staff and stakeholder groups will be fundamental for successful strategy
implementation. Dakota County has a long history of solid waste service provided by private businesses and
nonprofits. Therefore, the private sector, nonprofits, and other stakeholders play a significant role in
implementing the Plan. County staff will build on stakeholder engagement approaches developed during the
Plan revision process, continuing to nurture existing and develop new relationships so the county can consider
additional tools to influence change. County staff will engage stakeholders on the Plan strategies to develop
implementation approaches that are achievable, consider stakeholder perspectives, and help the county meet
state objectives. County staff will apply multiple methods to engage stakeholders in a meaningful and equitable
way, such as through local community cultural events.

County staff recognizes the need to phase in certain approaches over multiple years (see proposed timing in
Appendix E). Collaborative efforts with interested stakeholders are anticipated to help develop time-phased
approaches, refine, and strengthen existing programs, and develop new programs.

Stakeholders include:

State: The county will actively work with the MPCA on emerging technology efforts, recycling and organics
market development approaches, continued waste reduction measurement, support for product stewardship
initiatives, and efforts to improve Non-MSW management data and increase reuse and recycling of construction
and demolition waste. The county will collaborate with the MPCA on work planning and annual priority setting.

Region: The county will work with TCMA counties to strengthen and refine regional programs (e.g., hauler
licensing and reporting, HHW reciprocal use) and collaborate with interested counties on implementation
phasing for similar program approaches. The county will actively look for stakeholder groups to participate in
that improve regional consistency and advance the objectives of the Plan.

Waste Industry: The waste industry provides collection and management services. It will be essential to engage
haulers and facility operators as new or expanded approaches are being considered to address potential
collection and capacity issues, develop effective implementation approaches, and implement effective
transitions in program approaches.

Municipalities (Cities and Townships): The county will actively work with cities and townships to explore
strategy approaches and timing that addresses the needs of each community. The county will work to engage
decision-makers to further identify roles and responsibilities that best align with municipal goals while also
meeting county goals. The county will continue collaborating with municipal staff for waste abatement work
planning, project implementation, and to share information.

Waste Generators: The county will engage underserved and interested waste generators (e.g., residents,
businesses, public entities, multi-unit dwellings) to refine plans for new strategy approaches and
implementation timing.

4. Performance and Accountability

Proper waste management and successfully meeting Policy Plan and statutory requirements requires new
strategies and increased accountability. Because everyone makes decisions about and produces waste, the Plan
includes strategies to be implemented in whole or in part by various stakeholders, including the state, county,
public entities, residents, businesses, non-profit organizations, and the waste community.

. DRAFT Dakota County Solid Waste Management Plan: 2024-2044
Solid Waste Management Plan, Page 22



Draft for Review by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency: October 29, 2024

Performance evaluation is undertaken at the project/program level (e.g., pounds of materials reused and
number of participants at a Fix-It Clinic; number of inspections and compliance actions). Formal performance
evaluation and reporting is required annually at the program level (e.g., diverted tons, costs, participants in
programs) to establish work plans and budgets, from regulated parties (e.g., hauler and facility reports) and
through multiple state reports to measure progress on Policy Plan and statutory requirements. Appendix D
describes the required annual reports, program reporting requirements, and contains tables with the Plan
strategies, key entities for implementation, measures, and primary mechanisms for measurement.

Additionally, the county measures performance annually through Program and Service Inventory (PSI) reporting,
which is an outcomes-based accountability framework. The county’s PSI serves as a key component in providing
transparency to the work carried out by providing a list of key county services key solid waste program and
regulatory activities, serving as a reference point for staff, the County Board, and residents to understand the
work of the county.

PSI reporting is used to assess the effectiveness of programs and initiatives by focusing on outcomes rather than
outputs. It involves asking specific questions to determine the impact of actions taken, including for solid waste
programming:

e "How much did we do?" refers to measuring outputs, such as the number of people served, pounds
diverted, or people educated.

o "How well did we do it?" evaluates the quality and efficiency of county solid waste programs.

e "Is anyone better off?" examines the broader impact and outcomes achieved, assessing whether desired
changes or improvements have occurred to meet the county’s solid waste goals.

This framework provides a structured approach for Dakota County to measure and improve performance across
our programs, leading to more accountable and impactful decision-making.

. DRAFT Dakota County Solid Waste Management Plan: 2024-2044
Solid Waste Management Plan, Page 23



Draft for Review by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency: October 29, 2024

Appendix A: Existing Waste Management System and County Programs
This appendix identifies waste management roles and responsibilities, demographics, waste projections and
composition, waste amounts and management methods, facilities, and Dakota County’s programs and activities.

A. Waste Management Governance, Roles, and Responsibilities

State and local government and the private sector all have roles in implementing solid waste policies and
operating the Twin Cities Metropolitan Area (TCMA) waste management system. The public sector is responsible
for establishing policies, quantifiable waste management objectives, and programs to conserve natural
resources and protect public health and the environment. The private sector largely owns and operates the
TCMA solid waste service provisions and infrastructure. The extent and complexity of the TCMA’s solid waste
system has required coordination among the following groups:

State — Minnesota Pollution Control Agency (MPCA): The MPCA regulates solid waste facilities and sets solid
waste policy through the Metropolitan Solid Waste Management Policy Plan (Policy Plan) to meet goals and
requirements prescribed in State law. The Policy Plan establishes waste management objectives and the
framework for TCMA counties and municipalities to follow. The MPCA reviews and approves county plans to
ensure the Policy Plan is implemented. The MPCA also distributes State funding to TCMA counties for solid
waste abatement activities.

Region: Joint Power Agreements between TCMA counties continue for household hazardous waste (HHW)
reciprocity and regional hauler licensing. The TCMA counties staff gather informally to discuss program and
policy issues and share information to build on successes, reduce redundancy in the system, and maximize
capacity.

County: In accordance with State law (Minn. Stat. §§ 115A and 473), county governments play the primary role
in planning, implementing, and maintaining solid waste programs for proper management of waste generated
within their jurisdictions. Dakota County collaborates with the state, region, public entities, residents,
businesses, community groups, and the waste industry to develop the Plan and programs to meet state goals.
Dakota County licenses and regulates haulers and facilities for collection, management, and related services and
waste generators for management. Dakota County does not own or operate waste management facilities;
however, does lease land in the City of Empire for waste management purposes.

Municipalities (Cities and Townships): Cities and townships play an integral role in implementing local waste
management programs and providing education to residents and businesses. Minn. Stat. § 115A.551 allows
political subdivisions within the county to develop and implement programs and practices designed to meet Plan
requirements. Dakota County Ordinance No. 110 Section 16 requires cities to implement programs and activities
for local abatement and to report on achievement of performance standards. Municipalities are required to
comply with the Plan, ensure solid waste collection in their community, and have authority to license waste
haulers for collection of waste and recycling.

Rural Solid Waste Abatement Grant Program: Because the rural area of the county has unique needs, Dakota
County established the Rural Solid Waste Abatement Grant Program in 2019 to support waste abatement
projects that align with the Plan. County-coordinated services provide rural residents with standardized waste
abatement education and a collection event for non-traditional recyclable materials.

Public Entities: State laws hold public entities, including counties, cities, townships, and public schools to a
higher standard in managing their waste. Public entities are responsible for carrying out proper waste reduction,
recycling, and disposal activities as part of business operations. Public entities are required by statute and
county ordinance to recycle.

Waste Industry (Private Sector): For decades, State law has included a preference for private-sector waste
management and waste facility operation. In Dakota County, the private sector is primarily responsible for the

. DRAFT Dakota County Solid Waste Management Plan: 2024-2044
Appendix A: Existing Waste Management System and County Programs, Page 24



Draft for Review by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency: October 29, 2024

collection, processing, and brokering of waste and materials. The private sector establishes fees for these
services.

Waste Generators (Residents, Businesses, and Organizations): Residents, businesses, and organizations
generate waste either as private individuals or as contributors to business, industrial, construction, or
demolition activities. Waste management choices reflect various influences and situations, including having the
opportunity for waste management options, cost, knowledge, and responsibility. Residents and businesses drive
the amount of waste that is generated and discarded, and thus needs to be managed.

B. Demographics

With a population of 444,985, as estimated by the Metropolitan Council for 2022, Dakota County remains
Minnesota’s third most populous county, growing by approximately one percent since the 2020 Census
(439,882). Between 2020 and 2022, cities in Dakota County with the largest population increases were Lakeville
(4,338 new residents, 6.2 percent growth), Rosemount (1,293 new residents, 5.0 percent growth), and West St.
Paul (554 new residents, 2.7 percent growth). The State Demographer projects Dakota County’s population will
exceed a half million by 2040.

Because this is a long-range plan, it is important to recognize demographic changes that are underway and
consider their potential implications for waste management. Dakota County’s waste management system and
programs will need to respond to projected growth and changes in population.

Demographic Summary (U.S. Census Bureau, 2022 American Community Survey Five-Year Estimates)

Land Area: 587 square miles

Land Use: 1/3 urban/suburban, with 96 percent of the county population; 2/3 rural,
with 4 percent of the county population

Median Age: 38.4 years, a slight increase over the 2010 Census

Populations of Color: 22.0 percent

Total Households: 169,404

Median Annual Household Income: $101,360

As the county’s population grows, increased waste generation will place additional stress on the waste
management system, requiring a focus on waste reduction and reuse. Population changes include a shift from a
young, family-centric population to an older retiree population. It is possible that waste composition could be
somewhat different than projected (e.g., increased pharmaceuticals). Dakota County’s population is also
becoming more diverse. For the 2022-2023 school year, the Minnesota Department of Education reported that
20.9 percent of students enrolled in Dakota County schools spoke one of 161 different non-English languages as
their primary language at home. As the trend for growing diversity continues through this Plan horizon, it is
important to understand audience language and cultural needs when developing effective communications on
waste management.

C. Waste Projection and Composition

For this Plan, mixed municipal solid waste (MSW) includes garbage, refuse, and other solid waste from
residential, commercial, and community activities, with exclusions as defined in State law. To effectively plan
solid waste management to address the expected increases in waste generation, it is necessary to project the
amount of MSW likely to be generated in the future. It is also important to have complete and current data on
the types and quantities of waste for good planning, implementation, and evaluation of solid waste programs.

Projected MSW Growth: Dakota County’s waste projection is shown in Figure 4, with 2020 annual reporting
data as the base year. Assuming the MSW per capita rate remains fairly constant with minor yearly fluctuations,
waste generation is expected to increase by roughly 18 percent from 2020-2040, driven by an anticipated

. DRAFT Dakota County Solid Waste Management Plan: 2024-2044
Appendix A: Existing Waste Management System and County Programs, Page 25



Draft for Review by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency: October 29, 2024

population increase of 18 percent (from 439,882 to 520,980), based on Metropolitan Council population
forecasts. In 2020, 501,060 tons of MSW was managed. MSW is projected to increase to 591,251 tons by 2040.

Figure 4: Projected Growth of MSW Managed in Dakota County 2020-2040

Estimated Tons

600,000
580,000
560,000
540,000
520,000
500,000
480,000
460,000

440,000
2020 2025 2030 2035 2040

Composition of Municipal Solid Waste
The MPCA conducted a statewide waste characterization study in 2013 to assist with planning efforts for
managing MSW. Results of the waste composition study are shown in Figure 5.

The study identified potential diversion opportunities based on the largest quantities of recoverable materials
found in the waste stream, including organic waste (food, non-recyclable paper, yard waste), paper, and plastic.

Figure 5: Statewide MSW Composition (2013)

P::;r Other Waste
18%
Plastic
18%
HHW
: 0%
M;;a Glass Electronics
° 2% 1%

D. Waste Management in Dakota County

This section looks at the amount of MSW generated in the county from residents, businesses, and public entities
over time and how it has been managed. Results shown in the graphs below are from 2014-2022. The MPCA has
certified SCORE data through 2022.

. DRAFT Dakota County Solid Waste Management Plan: 2024-2044
. Appendix A: Existing Waste Management System and County Programs, Page 26



Draft for Review by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency: October 29, 2024

Total MSW Managed
Total Dakota County MSW managed fluctuates from year to year and has increased over the past decade at a
pace similar to population growth. (Figure 6).
Figure 6: Total Dakota County MSW Managed (Tons)
600,000

500000 — et

woo e
300,000 |
200,000
100,000
0

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Data Source: MPCA Score Data, 2010 — 2022 as presented on the MPCA Data Website.

Annual variations in the amount of waste managed may be due to several factors, such as the COVID-19
pandemic, prevailing economic conditions or reporting methods provided by haulers and facilities. The
consistent increase in waste managed may be related to Dakota County’s nearly 11 percent growth in
population between 2010 and 2022.

Waste Managed by Predominant Management Method

Dakota County tracks the amount of recycling, organics recovery, resource recovery, and land disposal. The
amount of MSW managed by each method is calculated from data reported by licensed organics and recycling
facilities, MSW landfills, and resource recovery facilities. Data accuracy relies on waste haulers properly claiming
county-of-origin when they deliver waste to each facility. Figure 7 provides trend data over the past thirteen
years for recycling (includes organics), resource recovery, and land disposal for waste generated in the county.

Figure 7: Management of MSW Generated by Dakota County Residents and Businesses (Tons)

300,000
250,000
Recycling + Organics
200,000
w
S 150,000 Resource Recovery (waste-to-
-
energy)
100,000 i
= | andfill
50,000
0
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Data Source: MPCA Score Data, 2010 — 2022 as presented on the MPCA Data Website.
. DRAFT Dakota County Solid Waste Management Plan: 2024-2044

. Appendix A: Existing Waste Management System and County Programs, Page 27


https://public.tableau.com/app/profile/mpca.data.services/viz/SCOREOverview/SCOREOverview?publish=yes
https://public.tableau.com/app/profile/mpca.data.services/viz/SCOREOverview/SCOREOverview?publish=yes

Draft for Review by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency: October 29, 2024

County Progress Toward Policy Plan Objectives

Waste management in the TCMA is an integrated system with many public and private entities having varying
roles and responsibilities, ranging from direct service provision to regulation. Dakota County does not provide
direct waste management services but has regulatory oversight and waste abatement programs to protect the
environment and public health, and support waste management at the highest and best use in accordance with
Minnesota’s waste management hierarchy.

Substantial progress has been made since Dakota County issued its first solid waste plan in the 1980s; however,
recycling is not at the level it could and should be. The MPCA conducted a statewide waste characterization
study in 2013 to assist with planning efforts. Results identified diversion opportunities based on the largest
quantities of recoverable materials found in the waste stream, including organics (31 percent), paper (25
percent), and plastics (18 percent).

The following graphs show how waste generated in Dakota County was managed from 2014 to 2022 by
management method.

2042 Policy Plan TCMA Reduction and Reuse Objective: 15 Percent

A Policy Plan objective for the TCMA counties is to reduce waste fifteen percent by 2042; however, the MPCA
has not defined actual reduction and reuse measures for reporting purposes. Measuring changes in the total
amount of MSW managed is not sufficient in tracking progress for source reduction efforts because it does not
take into account increases in the county’s population or trends in how much American households are
purchasing.

2042 Policy Plan TCMA Recycling Objective (excludes organics): 47.4 Percent

Figure 8 shows that the county’s recycling rate (excludes organics) is not going in the direction needed to achieve
the TCMA Recycling objective of 47.4 percent by 2042. The recycling rate is defined as total tons recycled divided
by the total tons of MSW managed. Despite new technologies and processes that have improved the ability to
handle, sort, and recycle materials, the recycling rate in Dakota County is declining. This is partly due to state
changes in the recycling rate calculation methodology (e.g., removed source reduction and yard waste credits, no
longer allowed to estimate commercial tonnages). It is also due to changes in the waste stream such as changes
in material mix and packaging getting lighter. For example, recyclables such as plastics are becoming lighter so
there is less weight being generated and less weight being recycled. In addition, less paper is being generated and
therefore recycled as more information is consumed digitally. New approaches and greater system capacity are
needed to maintain and maximize separation of recoverable materials from trash.

Figure 8: 2014-2022 Recycling Rate (Excludes Organics), Compared to 2042 TCMA Recycling Objective of 47.4 percent
60%
50%

40%

30%

20%

10%
0

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

X

Data Source: MPCA Score Data, 2010 — 2022 as presented on the MPCA Data Website.

. DRAFT Dakota County Solid Waste Management Plan: 2024-2044
. Appendix A: Existing Waste Management System and County Programs, Page 28


https://public.tableau.com/app/profile/mpca.data.services/viz/SCOREOverview/SCOREOverview?publish=yes

Draft for Review by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency: October 29, 2024

2042 Policy Plan TCMA Organics Recovery Objective: 27.6 Percent

Figure 9 shows that the county’s organics recovery rate increased from 2014 to 2022. Organics material includes
food waste, compostable products (e.g., non-recyclable paper), and yard waste. Organics are currently managed
in five different ways: food-to-people (donation of excess food); food-for-livestock (animal feed); source-
separated for composting (source-separated organics materials for commercial composting or SSOM); yard
waste composting; and fats/oils/greases (animal feed). The organics recovery rate has increased significantly
from nine percent in 2014 to 30 percent in 2022. Since 2022, the county’s organics recovery rate has exceeded
the TCMA Organics Recovery objective of 27.6 percent by 2042; however, this is largely due to the MPCA’s
decision to allow counties to count yard waste composted at commercial composting sites toward the organics
recovery rate beginning in 2014. The intent of the TCMA objective is to increase the amount of organics
managed through source-separated programs (e.g., food-to-people, food-to-livestock, and food for composting).
In 2022, thirteen percent of the MSW in Dakota County was managed through source-separated programs.

Figure 9: 2014-2022 Organics Recovery Rate, Compared to 2042 TCMA Organics Objective of 27.6 percent
35%

30%

25%

—— I
20%
|
15% — - e
10%
- i
0%
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
H Yard Waste Food (SSOM) ® Food (to people) Food (to livestock) Fats, Oils, Grease

Data Source: MPCA Score Data, 2010 — 2022 as presented on the MPCA Data Website.

2042 Policy Plan TCMA Resource Recovery Objective: 20 Percent

The county’s resource recovery rate (for energy recovery) remains low at two percent (Figure 10). The county is
not on track to make significant progress toward the TCMA Resource Recovery objective of 20 percent by 2042.
Progress will remain difficult until new capacity is reasonably available for Dakota County waste.

Figure 10: 2014-2022 Resource Recovery Rate, Compared to 2042 TCMA Recovery Objective of 20 percent (dotted line)
D T

15%
10%

5%I II
o . m m H = =

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Data Source: MPCA Score Data, 2010 — 2022 as presented on the MPCA Data Website.

. DRAFT Dakota County Solid Waste Management Plan: 2024-2044
[ Appendix A: Existing Waste Management System and County Programs, Page 29


https://public.tableau.com/app/profile/mpca.data.services/viz/SCOREOverview/SCOREOverview?publish=yes
https://public.tableau.com/app/profile/mpca.data.services/viz/SCOREOverview/SCOREOverview?publish=yes

Draft for Review by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency: October 29, 2024

2042 Policy Plan TCMA Landfill Objective: 5 Percent

The county’s landfill disposal rate is at 43 percent (Figure 11). Achieving the TCMA landfill objective of five
percent by 2042 will be extremely challenging, unless aggressive, new approaches can influence and shift waste
management to methods higher in the State’s waste hierarchy.

Figure 11: 2014-2022 Landfill Disposal Rate, Compared to the 2042 TCMA Maximum Landfill Objective of 5 percent
(dotted line)

50%

40%
30%
20%
10%
0

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

X

Data Source: MPCA Score Data, 2010 — 2022 as presented on the MPCA Data Website.

E. Dakota County’s Waste Programs and Activities

Dakota County’s Environmental Resources Department has responsibility for developing and implementing
waste management programs to protect, preserve, and enhance the environment and public health in the
county. Department responsibilities include:

e Providing communications, education, and outreach on waste management with county, municipality,
hauler, and community partners.

e Providing technical assistance to cities, partners, and the regulated community.

e Providing financial assistance, infrastructure, or both to support municipalities, schools, businesses, and
non-profit community organizations.

e Coordinating the collection and management of recyclables and household and business hazardous waste at
The Recycling Zone.

e Developing and implementing waste reduction and reuse programs.
e Establishing and collecting solid waste landfill host fees, license, and other fees.

e Leasing county-owned land as a transfer station, yard waste composting site, and a fully permitted source-
separated organics composting facility that serves the region.

e Enforcing county ordinances covering licensing and disposal restrictions for solid waste facilities, hazardous
and solid waste generators, and waste haulers.

. DRAFT Dakota County Solid Waste Management Plan: 2024-2044
. Appendix A: Existing Waste Management System and County Programs, Page 30


https://public.tableau.com/app/profile/mpca.data.services/viz/SCOREOverview/SCOREOverview?publish=yes

Draft for Review by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency: October 29, 2024

1. Regional Solutions

Regional Resources Promoted by the County: County staff works with TCMA county peers, the Recycling
Education Committee (REC), Reuse Minnesota, and the Association of Recycling Managers to share ideas,
techniques, and successes. Members of these organizations have developed terminology for recycling and
organics to provide consistent education across the TCMA, making it easier for residents and businesses to learn
and understand the messages.

Reciprocal Residential Use: Convenience is inherent to a successful household hazardous waste (HHW)
collection program. Although The Recycling Zone is within 10 miles of 70 percent of Dakota County residents, it
can be more convenient to use another regional HHW facility during business hours. Dakota County maintains
reciprocal use agreements with all TCMA counties to accept hazardous waste from TCMA residents at any TCMA
facility.

Regional Policy Coordination: County staff are members of the Solid Waste Administrator Association (SWAA)
which works on solid waste program information sharing and policies that advance statewide county solid waste
goals.

County Hauler Licensing System: Dakota County participates in a regional hauler licensing program with Anoka,
Carver, Hennepin, Ramsey, Scott, and Washington counties. Approximately 90 haulers are licensed to haul MSW
in Dakota County. Of these, 35 are based in Dakota County, and the others are based in other metro counties.

2. Source Reduction and Reuse Programs and Activities

Dakota County’s efforts in reduction and reuse have focused on reuse opportunities at The Recycling Zone,
demonstrating waste reduction and reuse in county operations, and providing education and resources on reuse
to residents and businesses.

Projects and Programs in the Community

Reuse at The Recycling Zone: Residents and businesses can drop off or take usable materials, such as paint,
fertilizers, household cleaners, and other household items at no charge. Reuse reduces county costs by offering
materials that would otherwise need to be managed through disposal methods.

Fix-It Clinics: Dakota County began sponsoring monthly Fix-It Clinics in 2016. The county offers them monthly at
varying locations to improve access for residents. Residents bring clothes, small electronics, and other
household items that need repair and receive free guided assistance from skilled volunteers.

Reduce and Reuse Business Locator Map: In 2021, Dakota County launched an interactive online map to help
residents find locations to sell or drop off gently used items, rent or repair items, and to donate or buy used
items. Items include clothing, household goods, building materials, books, furniture, tools and more. Users
select filters for their specific needs to generate their own specific map of locations and can click-through for
location hours and information.

Outdoor Gear Swaps: Since 2019, Dakota County Environmental Resources and Parks staff have partnered to
provide residents with opportunities to take old gear they no longer need and swap for a new-to-them item.
Gently-used items not claimed during Swaps are donated to local reuse organizations.

Food Waste Challenge: Food is the largest single component of waste delivered to landfills with typical
households throwing away about a quarter of the food that was purchased. Wasted food costs consumers and
wastes the water, fuel, land, and labor that went into growing it. In 2019, Dakota County launched its Food
Waste Challenge to help residents understand what foods they throw away and why. Through this program,
residents receive educational tools to simplify meal planning, shopping, food storage and kitchen inventories.

Projects and Programs in County Operations
Waste reduction and reuse are emphasized in county buildings and on county grounds, including:
e Promoting reuse as a first step in county asset disposal.

. DRAFT Dakota County Solid Waste Management Plan: 2024-2044
Appendix A: Existing Waste Management System and County Programs, Page 31


https://www.co.dakota.mn.us/Environment/Residential/Reduce/Pages/fix-repair.aspx

Draft for Review by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency: October 29, 2024

3.

Providing a green meeting toolkit, guidance, and resources to help reduce waste at county-sponsored
events.

Providing recurring reuse messages for employees on DakotaWorks (employee website).

Promoting the Employee Reuse, Recycling, and Disposal Guide to educate employees on reusing office
items.

Using an Electronic Document Management System (EDMS) to convert many processes from paper-based to
electronic-based applications. EDMS manages contracts, financial documents, employee benefits, and other
types of documents.

Using a Managed Print Service program throughout the county to reduce paper use and wasted supplies.
MPS allows the county to define processes, run reports, and optimize supply and service fulfillment.

Applying environmentally preferable practices: the county’s Procurement Policy (2740) requires purchasing
of environmentally preferable products beyond what State statute requires, including acquiring products
and services that reduce waste or reduce toxins and pollution, reusing, supporting recycling markets,
rewarding manufacturer responsibility, and reducing water and energy use. The county implements the
policy through standards for recycled content products, contract requirements with vendors and other
practices that minimize the use of virgin materials in products and supplies or service life cycle. Whenever
practical, products and supplies with a specific minimum amount or percent of recycled content based on
criteria established by governmental or widely respected third party authorities will be specified and
procured.

Dakota County auctions surplus county property. The county uses Public Surplus to sell surplus furniture and
office equipment. Items are posted on an as-needed basis.

Collection Best Practices

Solid Waste Hauler Licenses: Hauling companies that collect MSW generated in the county or transport MSW
within county boundaries must obtain an MSW hauler license. Dakota County participates in a regional MSW
hauler licensing program.

Cost and Finance: Dakota County’s waste abatement activities, including the Hazardous Waste and Solid Waste
regulatory programs, are funded through a variety of programs. Specific amounts budgeted toward waste
abatement activities within each of these funding categories can vary widely from year to year.

4. Revenue Sources
Dakota County’s waste abatement and HHW management programs are funded by a combination of state
grants, negotiated landfill host fees, waste-related fees, reimbursements, and property taxes.

Select Committee on Recycling and the Environment (SCORE) Funding: SCORE funds are derived from a
percentage of the State tax for MSW and non-MSW management services (Solid Waste Management Tax-
SWMT). Services subject to this tax include collection, transportation, processing, and disposal of waste
materials. Service providers (haulers and disposal facility operators) who directly bill generators or
customers are responsible for collecting and remitting the tax to the State. Over $70 million is generated
annually through the tax statewide. SCORE funds are administered by the MPCA. In 2023, Dakota County
received $1,290,777 in SCORE funding and provided the required 25 percent match.

Local Recycling Development Grant (LRDG) Funding and Metropolitan Landfill Abatement Account
(MLAA): LRDG is a grant program (Minn. Stat. § 473.844) funded by the MLAA and used for landfill
abatement projects in the TCMA. The focus of the program is consistent with the Waste Management Act,
and it implements the policies and programs outlined in the Policy Plan. Funding for the MLAA program is
generated from a $2.00 per cubic yard (or $6.66 per ton) surcharge on MSW disposed of at Metropolitan
landfills. The MLAA funds the LRDG program, with grants offered to the TCMA counties. The LRDG Program

. DRAFT Dakota County Solid Waste Management Plan: 2024-2044
Appendix A: Existing Waste Management System and County Programs, Page 32



Draft for Review by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency: October 29, 2024

is designed for planning, developing, and implementing new, enhanced, or more effective waste reduction,
yard waste composting, and recycling programs for residential, commercial, industrial, and institutional
generators of MSW. Counties must support and maintain effective municipal recycling as a condition of
receiving LRDG funds and must match LRDG funds with an equal county contribution. LRDG funds are
distributed from the MLAA and administered by the MPCA. In 2023, Dakota County received $307,627.12 in
LRDG funding and provided the required 100 percent match.

e Landfill Host Fees: In accordance with negotiated agreements, Dakota County collects host fees from the six
landfills located in the county, including two MSW Landfills, an industrial waste landfill, and three
construction/demolition landfills. Host fee revenues are deposited in Dakota County’s Environmental Legacy
Fund (ELF) along with Gravel Tax revenues. The ELF was established by the Dakota County Board of
Commissioners on December 15, 2015, to protect, preserve, or enhance the environment (Resolution No.
15-663). ELF supports environmental activities related to brownfield redevelopment, environmental capital
projects, Environmental Resources Department operations, gravel pit remediation, natural area and
shoreland conservation, park and greenway management plan improvements, and implementation of the
Natural Resources Management Plan and Solid Waste Management Plan.

o Fees: The county collects fees from solid and hazardous waste facilities and haulers that it regulates. Fees
vary depending on the facility type, and the type and volume of waste managed. Additional fees are
collected for specific services, such as electronics recycling and use of the business services at The Recycling
Zone.

e Reimbursements: Reimbursements include payments from organizations for product stewardship initiatives
(e.g., architectural paint) and through agreements with organizations (e.g., Excel Energy for fluorescent
bulbs, Minnesota Department of Agriculture for pesticides, TCMA counties for HHW reciprocity).

e Property Taxes: Property taxes support essential County functions, including transportation and transit,
safety, parks, libraries, and waste management programs all to support and improve the health of residents
and protect the environment.

5. Recycling Management Programs and Activities
Dakota County launched its recycling program in 1988 to ensure that residents would have the opportunity to
recycle.

a. Projects and Programs in the Community

Curbside Collection: Dakota County’s residential curbside recyclables collection program began in 1989.
Curbside recycling collection programs generally are provided by subscription service (e.g., open hauling
system). Residents of Hastings and Farmington are served by a city/hauler contract-provided service (e.g.,
organized hauling system). In 2019, Dakota County Ordinance No. 110 began identifying a minimum list of
recyclable materials that haulers must collect in single-stream recycling and generators must place into properly
labeled carts or dumpsters. The designated list of recyclable materials includes paper, cardboard, cartons, metal
cans, glass bottles and jars, and plastic bottles, containers and jugs with SPI Codes #1, #2, or #5. Residential
curbside pickup of recyclable materials occurs in all cities and townships. Waste haulers must offer weekly
recycling service to all residential customers (limited exemptions apply in rural parts of the county). In addition,
waste haulers must provide standardized solid waste abatement messaging that is consistent with county
standards to all customers. Messaging (print or electronic) must be delivered to each customer at initial service
acquisition and annually thereafter.

Community Waste Abatement Grant Program: Dakota County partners with the 14 largest cities to advance
Plan objectives through programs, practices, or methods designed to meet waste abatement requirements.
Dakota County provides performance-based funding for waste abatement education and recycling infrastructure
and enters into formal agreements with communities. These agreements require that a specified level of service

. DRAFT Dakota County Solid Waste Management Plan: 2024-2044
Appendix A: Existing Waste Management System and County Programs, Page 33



Draft for Review by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency: October 29, 2024

be offered to residents, and that communities annually submit a work plan, itemized budget, and final report.
The purpose of the Community Waste Abatement Grant Program is to help implement the Dakota County Solid
Waste Management Plan objectives including to ensure that residents have the opportunity to recycle; and to
develop, implement, and maintain projects, programs, practices, and methods to meet waste abatement
objectives as described in the Plan. The program supports the County’s efforts for broad-based education and
implementation of local programs and projects for waste reduction, reuse, recycling, hazardous waste
management, and organics diversion as described in the Plan.

Eligible activities relate to government leadership, operational needs, community education, and targeted
priorities identified by the county. Dakota County provides waste abatement education to residents in
collaboration with the cities and townships using electronic and print newsletters, websites, utility bill inserts,
educational presentations, and pilot projects. The county also provides best practices guidance, assistance with
measuring diversion weights and rates, and other types of technical assistance to support municipal waste
abatement activities. In 2022 Dakota County distributed approximately $494,000 to the cities and townships.
Some communities also contribute their own funds to support their recycling programs and thereby increase the
total amount spent on recycling programs.

Recycling at Municipal Parks: Beginning in 2014, Dakota County emphasized municipal park and public area
recycling. The Community Waste Abatement Grant Agreement between Dakota County and each city requires
use of a consistent set of best practices to help park visitors know what to recycle and to meet Dakota County
Ordinance No. 110 requirements. As a result, 341 city parks, buildings, and other facilities meet Dakota County
recycling requirements.

Recycling at Municipal Events: Dakota County enhances recycling at community events held on city property
through technical assistance, education, and on-site support, in partnership with city staff and volunteers.
Dakota County requires event organizers to provide recycling and implement recycling best management
practices.

Multifamily Recycling Program: Since 2018, the Multifamily Recycling Program has assisted property owners,
managers, staff, and residents with recycling and waste prevention at apartments, condominiums, townhomes,
and independent senior living centers. Up to $10,000 per location is available to eligible sites for containers,
labels, signage, and training sessions. Dakota County requires multi-unit building properties to provide recycling
and implement recycling best management practices.

Self-Service Checkout System: Dakota County offers free event recycling containers and educational resources
to residents and community partners throughout the year to help reduce waste, increase recycling, and educate
other. Resources include education kits, activities, and external recycling containers for events. In 2021, Pickup
Point was introduced on the county’s website. Pickup Point is a designated shed located at the Western Service
Center where resources can be temporarily housed awaiting pickup and return. An online platform was
developed allowing users to request items, notifies them when items are available for pickup, and provides a
keycode for access.

b. Recycling Drop-Off Locations

The Recycling Zone: As required by Minn. Stat. § 115A.552, the county provides for at least one recycling center
— The Recycling Zone. At no charge, residents can drop off traditional recyclable materials such as paper,
cardboard, cans, and bottles and non-traditional materials such as cooking oil, and holiday lights. Businesses can
also drop off recyclables at no charge.

Hastings Paper and Cardboard Drop-Off: Since 2006, the waste hauler for the City of Hastings has provided a
centrally located recycling container for businesses and residents to drop off paper materials, including
cardboard, magazines, newspapers, junk mail, and box board.

. DRAFT Dakota County Solid Waste Management Plan: 2024-2044
Appendix A: Existing Waste Management System and County Programs, Page 34



Draft for Review by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency: October 29, 2024

Commercial, Industrial, Institutional (Cll): Cll entities include businesses, manufacturers, schools, and local
governments. Private waste haulers serve Cll entities and collect recyclable materials, such as newspaper, glass,
metal cans, magazines, cardboard, mixed paper, and plastics.

Curbside Mattress Pickup: Mattress recycling is challenging for some residents who face transportation barriers
or physical limitations that make it difficult to take these bulky items to drop-off events or recycling sites. Since
2020, Dakota County has collaborated with Certified Recycling and Bridging to offer affordable curbside pickups
for Dakota County residents, making it more convenient and accessible for single-family and multifamily
residents to recycle or reuse their unwanted mattresses at the curb.

Projects and Programs in County Operations

Recycling is emphasized in county buildings and on county grounds, including:

e Providing standardized, paired, and labeled containers. All recycling and trash containers on building
grounds, both indoors and out, must be paired and properly labeled according to county labeling
requirements.

e Providing recurring recycling messages for employees on DakotaWorks (employee website).

e Promoting the Employee Recycling and Disposal Guide to educate staff on what to recycle. Required waste
abatement and recycling training is provided to new employees during onboarding and to staff several times
per year.

e Providing campground visitors with a paper bag to collect recyclables during their visit. The paper bag
includes standardized messaging, images of acceptable materials and preparation instructions.

o Dakota County’s Resource Management program allows collaboration between county staff and the
county’s hauler to evaluate data and implement changes to reduce waste and increase diversion.

6. Organics Management Programs and Activities (Includes Programs Combined With
Recycling)

The county’s primary roles in supporting organics recovery include regulation, providing residential organics

drop-off sites, managing a lease on county-owned land for waste management purposes, education, technical

assistance, and promoting and requiring recycling at all events and certain back-of-house food scraps collection

at community events.

Organics Regulation: The county regulates source separated organic materials and yard waste management
facilities. The county prohibits land disposal of yard waste, Christmas trees, and holiday plant decorations.
Collected yard waste must be placed in a compostable bag, and yard waste self-hauled to a facility must be
dropped off in a reusable container or in a compostable bag. The state and county prohibit mixing yard waste
with MSW; however, yard waste can be collected by MSW haulers using separate collection vehicles or by
special yard waste collectors, such as lawn services, and delivered to yard waste sites. The County requires large
generators and certain events to have recycling and back-of-house food scrap collection.

Lease for Food and Yard Waste Capacity: County-owned land in the City of Empire is actively managed through
a lease with a private firm to operate both source-separated organics composting and yard waste composting
facilities. This lease was recently extended for another five-year period with extensions possible through June of
2037.

a. Projects and Programs in the Community

Composting at Home: Dakota County promotes residential backyard composting. The county website informs
residents where to purchase a backyard composting bin or how to build their own, a recipe to create the right
mix of materials, and how to use compost in home projects.

. DRAFT Dakota County Solid Waste Management Plan: 2024-2044
Appendix A: Existing Waste Management System and County Programs, Page 35



Draft for Review by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency: October 29, 2024

Compost Bin and Rain Barrel Sale: Each Spring, the Recycling Association of Minnesota partners with local
governments and other organizations to provide quality compost bins and rain barrels made from 100 percent
recycled materials at low cost to Minnesota residents. Dakota County supports these sales through promotion
and by providing additional discounts to county residents.

Residential Organics Drop-Off: In October 2016, Dakota County launched its first residential organics drop site
at Thompson County Park in West St. Paul. Since that time, the county and city partners have added an
additional 10 drop sites throughout the county. The county provides education and compostable bags to
participating residents. Collected organics are delivered to a local commercial compost facility.

Yard Waste Disposal: Yard waste, such as grass clippings, leaves, and twigs are prohibited from weekly trash
collection. Residents have several options for managing yard waste, including composting, collection by a
licensed hauler, or delivery to a yard waste compost facility.

Zero Waste at Public Space Venues: Dakota County was awarded an Environmental Assistance Grant through
the MPCA for a zero waste pilot project at four municipal ice arenas and three high school stadiums to assess
and implement organics collection; update containers, labels and signage following best management practices;
introduce certified compostable food service supplies; and educate staff and patrons. The project concluded
that school stadiums may have greater zero waste potential than arenas, as post-program diversion findings
show that 37-56 percent of overall arena waste generated is true trash.

School Waste Prevention & Recycling Grant Program: In 2009, the County initiated an Enhanced School
Recycling Program to improve recycling in public schools. In 2013, the program was expanded to include
organics diversion and was extended to private schools. In 2020, the school program was updated to include
outdoor recycling, waste reduction, reuse, and wasted food prevention initiatives. The new School Waste
Prevention & Recycling Grant Program offers grants to public and private schools and provides technical
assistance, infrastructure, and educational resources for schools to prevent wasted food, reduce waste, divert
recycling and food scraps from the trash, and educate students and staff on proper waste management
practices. As of 2023, 77 public schools and 12 private schools have participated, representing roughly 55
percent of all K-12 public and private schools in Dakota County. Dakota County hosts an annual free School
Recycling Workshop inviting administrators, buildings and grounds personnel, kitchen staff, teachers, and Green
Teams to learn about industry updates, best practices information, creative solutions, and free resources. The
annual workshop is designed to assist all schools in improving their waste reduction, recycling and organics
programs.

Dakota County Schools Receive Free Compost: In 2021, Dakota County began providing free compost to School
Recycling and Organics Program participants. Quantities of one to five cubic yards of compost were offered to
schools as a way to close the loop on organics composting education and raise awareness on the benefits of
compost as a valuable soil amendment. Schools used the compost in vegetable and flower gardens, on-site
plantings, potted plants, and turf topdressing.

County Fair Recycling and Organics Collection: Since 2003, Dakota County and volunteers have worked with fair
staff to decrease the amount of material going into the trash at the County Fair, which attracts over 120,000
visitors each year. Organics collection was added for the public in 2014, but recent efforts engaged only County
Fair food vendors. In 2022, all 63 food vendors received a recycling guide and were offered a green five-gallon
bucket and compostable bags to collect food scraps from food preparation in their booth. Seventy-nine percent
(79 percent) of food vendors chose to participate.

City and Community Events for Recyclables and Organics Collection: The county and cities make recycling
resources available for small and large events, including free portable recycling and organics containers, bags,
signs, and litter grabbers. The county works with the municipalities and haulers to collect event data.

. DRAFT Dakota County Solid Waste Management Plan: 2024-2044
Appendix A: Existing Waste Management System and County Programs, Page 36


https://www.co.dakota.mn.us/Environment/Residential/Organics/Pages/organics-drop-off.aspx

Draft for Review by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency: October 29, 2024

Business Recycling Incentive Program: In August 2016, the county’s first business recycling program launched. It
serves commercial entities within North American Industry Classification (NAICS) Codes 42-81 that are required
by state law to recycle a minimum of three materials. The program provides up to $10,000 per eligible business
to address the most frequently encountered barriers (e.g., up-front costs, lack of knowledge/information to
develop successful program). Participants work with county staff to complete applications and identify and
implement best waste management practices (employee training, placement of bins, consistent signage), and
measure results. In 2022, the program served 58 businesses in obtaining over $80,000 in funding to implement
waste reduction and recycling initiatives. Food and beverage and grocery store/food processor sectors had the
highest number of program participants, and they also had the highest volumes of waste, offering large
diversion potential. A reported 257,783 pounds of new material was diverted from program partners in 2022, of
which 172,985 pounds of organics and 4,160 pounds of food donations.

Large Events and Festivals: Beginning in 2024, certain large events are required to properly sort and collect food
scraps from back-of-house areas, provided the event generates food scraps in back-of-house areas, has at least
300 attendees, and generates at least 1 ton (8 cubic yards) of trash per location. Back-of-house means pre-
consumed food waste from the kitchen, food preparation, dishwashing and storage areas that are not accessed
by members of the public. It does not include food waste generated from food that has been served to members
of the public.

b. Projects and Programs in County Operations
Dakota County’s internal recycling program covers all county buildings and grounds, including park facilities,
libraries, service centers, and transportation facilities. Ongoing efforts include:

e Providing standardized, paired, and labeled (e.g., organics, recycling, and trash) containers in key conference
rooms and employee areas. Many county buildings have organics collection bins in staff areas for food
scraps, paper towels or napkins, and certified compostable products. Public restroom areas have organics
collection bins for paper towels.

e Recycling confidential papers, non-confidential papers, glass and plastic bottles and cans, cardboard, library
books, batteries, toner cartridges, fluorescent and LED bulbs, and computers and computer equipment.

e Providing recurring recycling messages for employees on DakotaWorks (employee website).
e Providing annual employee trainings on what to recycle in county buildings.

e Conducting periodic waste sorts at county buildings to measure progress and reporting findings to
employees.

e Developing a Resource Management waste and recycling contract to provide building-specific organics,
recycling, and trash services, evaluation, and service improvement recommendations.

7. Non-Municipal Solid Waste Programs and Activities

Non-MSW includes non-hazardous industrial waste, construction and demolition waste, materials banned from
disposal with MSW, problem materials, infectious waste, and other waste streams that are not MSW or
otherwise defined or regulated as hazardous waste. The county’s non-MSW program consists of regulatory
oversight of non-MSW at facilities in the county and promoting reuse, recycling, and processing of non-MSW.

a. Non-MSW Regulation

Although some non-MSW is routinely recycled, a significant portion is landfilled. Dakota County’s primary role is
regulating the three non-MSW landfills in the county that serve the region. The county issues facility licenses,
collects fees, conducts landfill inspections, and provides technical assistance and enforcement as necessary to
ensure compliance with Dakota County Ordinance No. 110. The county also works closely with the MPCA on
non-MSW regulatory issues, including rule revisions and compliance.

. DRAFT Dakota County Solid Waste Management Plan: 2024-2044
Appendix A: Existing Waste Management System and County Programs, Page 37



Draft for Review by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency: October 29, 2024

b. Projects and Programs in the Community

Tire Collection Program: Proper tire management minimizes potential breeding habitats for disease-carrying
mosquitoes. Dakota County and Metropolitan Mosquito Control District (MMCD) provides funding to townships
and rural cities for waste tire collection events. This program provides an incentive for residents to easily recycle
this problem material. Tires are also collected at The Recycling Zone and at community clean-up events.

Non-Traditional Materials: The county started seasonal collection of agricultural film plastic (e.g., silage and

grain bags, bunker covers, and greenhouse film) in 2015 and added boat wrap in 2016, with 10 tons collected
annually. Material is taken to processors that can recycle bulky plastic. The program is annually promoted to

boat storage locations and about two dozen dairies and livestock farms.

c. Projects and Programs in the County Operations

High Performance Buildings: The Dakota County Design Construction Sustainability Standards are required in
county capital building projects to reduce waste generation, increase reuse and recycling, and minimize the
county’s environmental footprint. The Standards include guidelines for building deconstruction and demolition,
construction waste reuse and recycling, use of sustainable building materials, native landscaping, restoring soil
through compost, storm water management, and energy conservation.

8. Landfill Abatement

a. Communications, Education, and Outreach Programs and Activities

The county committed financial and staff resources to meeting statutory requirements for public waste
education. Minn. Stat. § 115A.552, subd.3, requires counties to “provide information on how, when, and where
materials may be recycled, including a promotional program that publishes notices at least once every three
months and encourages source separation of residential, commercial, and institutional materials.” Additionally,
Minn. Stat. § 115A.96 requires counties to have an educational component to their HHW management plans.

County Communications: An annual communications plan identifies target audiences, priority messages and
outlets to promote waste management information. Ongoing resident education includes brochures, monthly e-
news, mailers, website information, and classes. The Business Recycling Incentive Program provides brochures,
bi-monthly e-news, employee posters, employee training, container labels, direct mailers, and website
information. Students and staff are educated through the School Waste Prevention and Recycling Grant
Program, waste sorts, posters, recycling guides, container labels, activity sheets, presentations, and training.

County-Funded Education through Cities: The county has annual JPAs with municipalities for local residential
recycling and education programs. Each municipality must maintain websites, distribute county products,
publish county messages, and provide in-person education and outreach.

Rural Newsletter: The county’s Rural Solid Waste Abatement Program provides standardized education for
residents. Rural households receive an annual newsletter that informs them on various recycling options for
materials like mattresses, electronics, tires and other items that can’t go in the trash. Information on proper
pesticide disposal, agricultural film plastic recycling, and the hazards of illegally dumping or burning waste are
also included.

Educational Tours: An annual Tour de Trash and the Recycling Ambassadors Program invites residents to visit a
recycling facility, landfill, compost site, and The Recycling Zone to understand how waste is managed.

Technical Assistance: County staff provides technical assistance to residents through phone, email, and website
inquiries. The Business Recycling Incentive Program provides resources and technical assistance for qualifying
businesses. Public and private schools are eligible for the School Waste Prevention and Recycling Grant Program
for help to increase waste diversion. Technical assistance is provided to municipalities through the JPA.

. DRAFT Dakota County Solid Waste Management Plan: 2024-2044
Appendix A: Existing Waste Management System and County Programs, Page 38



Draft for Review by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency: October 29, 2024

Regulated facilities receive county recommendations for waste management improvements during facility
inspections.

Recycler/Composter Ambassador Programs: Twice each year, Dakota County offers a six-week training course
for residents on recycling and composting. After completing the course, graduates volunteer 30 hours to public
outreach.

b. Education Resources for the Community

Recycling Guide: The Recycling Guide is an online resource on how to reduce, reuse, recycle, compost, dispose
of, and properly manage more than 100 household items. Information includes pick-up and drop-off services
available to county residents.

E-news: Electronic newsletters (e-news) are sent to six different audiences with regular information on waste
reduction, recycling, and organics diversion. Monthly e-news is sent to 2,300 residents and nearly 400
businesses, including hazardous waste generators. Monthly e-news is also sent to 339 Recycling Ambassadors
and 514 Fix-It Clinic participants. Quarterly e-news for schools is received by 767 teachers, administrators,
custodians, and food service personnel. Timely e-news on the organics drop-off program is received by nearly
8,300 residents.

Education Kits and Displays: Resources for teachers, students, community groups, and other organizations are
available for check-out and include displays, activity kits, learning kits, and banners.

Presentations and Booths: County staff and volunteers regularly present at schools, meetings, and events.

9. Solid and Hazardous Waste Regulation Programs and Activities

The county regulates waste haulers, generators, and facilities using ordinances, licenses, compliance inspections,
technical assistance, and enforcement. Compliance inspections are conducted regularly to evaluate solid and
hazardous waste facility operations for compliance with license conditions. Inspection frequency is based on the
type of facility, potential risk to the environment, and compliance history. If a facility is found to be out of
compliance, a range of actions ensue, typically beginning with formal notification of inspection findings and
providing opportunities to correct the problem.

a. Regulatory Mechanisms: Ordinance and Licensing

County Solid Waste Ordinance: Dakota County’s solid waste regulation program began in the 1970’s with
adoption of Dakota County Ordinance No. 110, which includes standards for regulating solid waste management
and the operation of solid waste facilities, including infectious waste facilities; requirements for certain facilities
on a disposal site; and provisions for application and license fees, financial assurance, and penalties for lack of
compliance with these provisions. New requirements in the ordinance as part of implementation of the 2018-
2038 Solid Waste Master Plan include:

e Residents — recycle designated materials

e Commercial entities (businesses, schools, municipalities, events) — recycle designated materials
following best practices (standardized labels, staff education, co-locating recycling and trash bins) and
large organics generators must recover back-of-house food scraps.

o  Multifamily properties — provide sufficient recycling service capacity for tenants and recycle designated
materials following best practices.

e Waste haulers — properly label each customer container, provide annual education to customers, collect
designated materials for recycling, itemize customer invoices, and provide weekly service to all
residential recycling customers.

. DRAFT Dakota County Solid Waste Management Plan: 2024-2044
Appendix A: Existing Waste Management System and County Programs, Page 39



Draft for Review by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency: October 29, 2024

e Collection sites and transfer stations — reduced regulations for small-volume collection and transfer of
materials (e.g., organics, construction and demolition waste, certain recyclables) and allowance to co-
collect organics in durable compostable bags.

e Landfills — complete composition studies every five years, starting in 2025.

e Municipalities over 10,000 population — adopt a code consistent and no less restrictive than Dakota
County Ordinance 110 and adopt and enforce the county’s multifamily and event recycling
requirements.

County Hazardous Waste Ordinance: The county’s hazardous waste regulatory program began in 1977 with the
passage of the Waste Management Act and County Board adoption of Dakota County Ordinance No. 111,
Hazardous Waste Regulation (Ordinance 111). Ordinance 111 establishes standards for generating, storing,
processing, or managing hazardous waste in Dakota County.

Solid Waste Facility Licenses: Solid waste management facilities must have a license from Dakota County to
operate. The county licenses MSW, industrial, and demolition landfills; waste processing and recycling facilities;
transfer stations; yard waste compost sites; and organics composting facilities. The county issues solid waste
facility licenses for a two-year period. Dakota County regulates landfills that receive combustor ash, process
residuals, and bypass from regional resource recovery facilities.

Hazardous Waste Generator Licenses: Dakota County annually licenses hazardous waste generators, with fees
based on the amount of hazardous waste generated. Minimal generators, those that generate ten gallons or less
of hazardous waste and no acute hazardous waste, are not required to have a license; however, are required to
register with the county and obtain a Hazardous Waste Identification Number (HWID) from the MPCA.

Hazardous Waste Facility Licenses: Dakota County licenses hazardous waste facilities, including storage
facilities, ten-day transfer facilities, storage and recycling facilities, treatment facilities, special hazardous waste
storage sites, HHW and Very Small Quantity Generator (VSQG) collection sites, universal waste sites, and used
oil collection sites.

The county’s role in MSW land disposal is regulating sanitary landfills and MSW transfer stations located in the
county that serve the region. Landfills accept waste from the region, state, and surrounding states. Although
landfilling is the least preferred management method, it is necessary in an integrated waste system. The county
regulates acceptance of waste at facilities located within the county, including material bans and prohibitions.

b. Material Bans

Materials and wastes banned from disposal at MSW landfills located in Dakota County include:
e Recyclables (designated materials)

e Trees and branches, including Christmas trees and holiday decorations

e Tires

e lead-acid batteries

e  Major appliances

e Waste oil/used oil and used oil filters

e Yard wastes

e Mercury-containing waste as listed in Minn. Stat. § 115A.932

e Telephone directories

e Cathode Ray Tubes

e Other listed wastes exceeding thresholds (e.g., liquids, sludges, radioactive waste, etc.)

. DRAFT Dakota County Solid Waste Management Plan: 2024-2044
Appendix A: Existing Waste Management System and County Programs, Page 40



Draft for Review by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency: October 29, 2024

c. Prohibitions
Unprocessed Waste: Dakota County Ordinance No. 110 restricts the acceptance of processible waste at MSW
landfills located in the County from metropolitan area generators, unless certain conditions are met.

Recyclables and Yard Waste: Dakota County Ordinance No. 110 requires source-separated materials, such as
recyclables and yard waste, to be delivered to the respective facilities, and prohibits land disposal of source-
separated materials and other banned materials.

Burning and Burying of Waste: Dakota County Ordinance No. 110 effectively prohibits burning and burial of
solid wastes at unlicensed facilities. In 2009, the County Board eliminated the farm exemption.

Yard Waste Collection: Dakota County Ordinance No. 110 prohibits the use of plastic bags for yard waste
collection. Yard waste must be collected in paper bags or other biodegradable containers, or placed in a
container that can be reused.

Co-Disposal Program: requires all businesses and industries to evaluate their waste to determine if it is
hazardous. Industries that “co-dispose” non-hazardous industrial waste with MSW must demonstrate proper
evaluation in accordance with the law; comply with a state-approved Industrial Waste Management Plan; and,
in Dakota County, comply with Dakota County Ordinance No. 110. County requirements ensure that accepted
waste is below hazardous waste limits. The Co-Disposal Program also documents industrial waste characteristics
and the types and amounts landfilled.

Landfill Cover Programs: addresses essential landfill cover requirements for daily, intermediate and final cover.
The Alternative Daily Cover Program addresses daily cover requirements at MSW landfills and intermittent cover
at the industrial waste landfill in the county. The Alternative Daily Cover Program makes it possible for landfills
to meet essential requirements with materials other than clean soil, including contaminated soil for daily cover.
Other approved alternative daily cover options include tarps and foam, which do not consume landfill space.

The county provides technical assistance, as requested, to the MPCA for its Land Management Plan, Closed
Landfill Program, and regulatory efforts to address landfill contamination issues.

10.Household Hazardous Waste, Toxicity Reduction, and Problem Material Management

Programs and Activities
The county’s HHW management services began in 1985 with Minnesota’s first HHW collection. County services
have grown to include a year-round facility for residential and business hazardous waste and problem materials
collection. Minn. Stat. § 115A.96 requires counties to implement a HHW management plan. Dakota County
provides for collection, storage, and proper management of HHW and problem materials through collection
programs at The Recycling Zone, at community collection events, and drop-off locations for select HHW wastes.

a. The Recycling Zone Services

Residential Material Drop-Off: Residents drop off HHW and problem materials at no charge, including: oil-
based paint, flammable solvents, pesticides, automotive fluids, aerosols, propane tanks, fluorescent bulbs, and
batteries. In August 2016, a fee was implemented for the collection of televisions and monitors. Other
electronics, including small household appliances, remain free for residents to drop-off. The Recycling Zone
accepts problem materials that aren’t necessarily hazardous but can be difficult to manage in the normal solid
waste stream, such as latex paint, household cleaners, used oil, sharps, and tires (for a fee). Additional materials
collected at no charge include cooking oil, ink cartridges, lead fishing tackle, eyeglasses, alkaline batteries, and
string lights.

Business Universal Waste, Electronics, and Fluorescent Lamp Collection: For a minimal fee, businesses can
bring in universal waste, electronics, and spent fluorescent lamps to the Recycling Zone by appointment. Dakota
County partners with Xcel Energy to offer businesses free disposal of up to ten bulbs per year, as part of Xcel

. DRAFT Dakota County Solid Waste Management Plan: 2024-2044
Appendix A: Existing Waste Management System and County Programs, Page 41



Draft for Review by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency: October 29, 2024

Energy’s compliance with State law (Minn. Stat. § 216B.241). Dakota Electric also provides funding for lamp
disposal.

Business Very Small Quantity Generator (VSQG) Program: Because more than 90 percent of businesses in
Dakota County qualify as a VSQG, the county offers a program to help businesses that produce small amounts of
hazardous waste to comply with the hazardous waste rules. Technical assistance is provided, and businesses are
required to make an appointment to participate in the program and pay a disposal fee.

Paint Collection: Dakota County accepts business and household architectural paint at The Recycling Zone, and
HHW collection events, at no charge. Minn. Stat. § 115A.1415 requires that for architectural paint sold in the
state, producers must implement and finance a statewide product stewardship program. PaintCare, Inc. was
established to represent paint producers and operate the paint product stewardship program in Minnesota.
Through an agreement, PaintCare provides funds to Dakota County to pay for collection, transport, and
processing of architectural paint.

Pesticide Collection Program: Dakota County accepts business and household pesticides at The Recycling Zone
at no charge. Minn. Stat. § 18B.065 requires the Minnesota Department of Agriculture (MDA) to establish and
operate a waste pesticide collection program for Minnesota counties. The MDA enters into cooperative
agreements with counties to fund collection of business and household waste pesticides.

b. Residential Collection Events

Dakota County has collaborated with municipalities to provide one to four HHW collection events every year
since 1985. Under JPAs, the county provides equipment, staff, publicity outside the collection area, and HHW
disposal. Information on the hours, location, and materials accepted at The Recycling Zone are distributed on
event days. Cities typically provide event sites, staff, and local publicity. HHW collection events accept paint,

pesticides, used oil, cleaning supplies, and other hazardous materials.

c. Residential Sharps and Pharmaceuticals Collections

Dakota County has collected residential sharps (e.g., needles, syringes, and lancets) at The Recycling Zone since
2007. In 2012, Dakota County piloted a program to collect pharmaceuticals at three law enforcement facilities,
in partnership with the County Sheriff’s office. The pilot program was a success and there are now 10 drop-off

locations.

d. Projects and Programs in County Operations
Dakota County emphasizes proper hazardous waste management in its buildings and on its grounds, including:

e The Recycling Zone manages hazardous waste from county operations, such as fluorescent bulbs, paints,
batteries and electronics.

e The Recycling Zone properly manages hazardous waste illegally dumped on county property.

e Online Employee Reuse, Recycling, and Disposal Guide to educate employees on proper management of
hazardous waste at the office, such as cell phones and cell phone batteries.

11.Resource Recovery Programs and Activities

Resource recovery, or waste processing for energy, is part of an integrated waste system, but only one step
above land disposal. In 1985, the Minnesota Legislature adopted a law requiring that all MSW generated in the
seven Metropolitan counties that is not reduced, reused, or recycled must be sent to a resource recovery facility
(Minn. Stat. § 473.848).

County Lease for Transfer Station: In the early 1990’s, Dakota County worked to site an incinerator on county-
owned land. Although permitted by the state in 1992, the facility was not developed and the land is currently

. DRAFT Dakota County Solid Waste Management Plan: 2024-2044
Appendix A: Existing Waste Management System and County Programs, Page 42



Draft for Review by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency: October 29, 2024

leased to a private firm for source-separated organics composting, yard waste composting, and transfer to a
resource recovery if capacity is available.

Landfill Host Fee Incentives: Dakota County’s host fees are negotiated such that landfills pay a higher fee for
accepting processible waste than they pay for non-processible waste and process residuals.

F. Collection and Transportation of Waste
In Dakota County, private-sector companies collect and transport residential and business waste to waste
management facilities. The county does not collect or transport solid waste.

1. Hauling Systems in Dakota County

MSW, recyclables, organics, and yard waste in the county are collected and transported largely through an open
hauling system (e.g., subscription service), where businesses and residents contract with a private waste hauler
of their choice.

Municipal Ordinances/Codes: Dakota County municipalities have ordinances for MSW and recycling collection
in their respective areas (Table 3). Municipal ordinances ensure the opportunity to recycle exists, and address
residential services, including multifamily dwellings, and commercial services. With the exception of the
townships and most small cities (under a population of 500), all municipalities license MSW haulers. Some
municipalities have expanded ordinance requirements. For example, the city of Apple Valley has instituted
hauling zones/districts and times that collection services can be provided.

Table 3: Municipal Solid Waste Ordinances and Codes

Municipality Solid Waste Ordinances/Codes
Apple Valley Title V: Public Works - Chapter 50: Garbage
Title IX: General Regulations, Chapter 93: Prohibited Materials
Burnsville Title 7: Health and Sanitation — Chapter 7-3: Waste Management, Chapter 7-4: Solid Waste

Landfills, Chapter 7-5: Trash and Recyclables, Chapter7-6: Construction Debris Disposal Fee,
Chapter 7-7: Composting

Eagan Chapter 10: Public Protection, Crimes and Offenses - Section 10.01 Storage, Deposit, and
Disposal of Refuse

Empire Ordinance 290 — Solid Waste Collection

Farmington Title 7: Health and Sanitation — Chapter 1: Solid Waste Collections, Chapter 4: Sanitary
Landfills

Hastings Chapter 50: General Provisions —50.06 Mandatory Solid Waste Collection Requirements,
50.07 Garbage and Refuse Haulers, 50.08 Recycling Haulers

Inver Grove Heights Title 8: Water and Sewer; Public Services — Chapter 6: Solid Waste Collection and Disposal

Lilydale Lilydale City Code, Chapter 10: Solid Waste Abatement

Lakeville Title 4: Health and Sanitation — Chapter 2: Mixed Municipal Solid Waste and Recyclables

Mendota Heights Title 4: Public Health and Safety — Chapter 2: Solid Waste Abatement

Rosemount Title 5: Health and Sanitation - Chapter 1: Solid Waste, Chapter 4: Composting

South St. Paul Chapter 46: Solid Waste

West St. Paul Title IX: General Regulations — Chapter 92: Health Provisions

Municipality Requirements: In November 2019, the Dakota County Board of Commissioners adopted a revised
Dakota County Ordinance No. 110, Solid Waste Management to implement strategies in the 2018-2038 Solid
Waste Master Plan to reduce waste going to landfills, improve the quality of materials recycled, and make
progress toward the state's goal to recycle 75 percent of waste by 2030. The following is a summary of the
requirements that impact municipalities:

City Hauling and Licensing Systems: Roughly 90 percent of county residents live in communities with open
hauling for trash and recyclables, although some organizations such as townhome associations may develop

. DRAFT Dakota County Solid Waste Management Plan: 2024-2044
. Appendix A: Existing Waste Management System and County Programs, Page 43


http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll/Minnesota/applevalley/cityofapplevalleyminnesotacodeofordinanc?f=templates$fn=default.htm$3.0$vid=amlegal:applevalley_mn
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/applevalley/latest/applevalley_mn/0-0-0-1171
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/applevalley/latest/applevalley_mn/0-0-0-34187
https://burnsville.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=CHAPTER_7-3_WASTE_MANAGEMENT
https://burnsville.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=CHAPTER_7-4_SOLID_WASTE_LANDFILLS
https://burnsville.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=CHAPTER_7-4_SOLID_WASTE_LANDFILLS
https://burnsville.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=CHAPTER_7-5_TRASH_AND_RECYCLABLES
https://burnsville.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=CHAPTER_7-6_CONSTRUCTION_DEBRIS_DISPOSAL_FEE
https://burnsville.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=CHAPTER_7-7_COMPOSTING
https://library.municode.com/mn/eagan/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=CICO_CH10PUPRCROF_S10.01STDEDIRE
https://library.municode.com/mn/eagan/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=CICO_CH10PUPRCROF_S10.01STDEDIRE
chrome-extension://efaidnbmnnnibpcajpcglclefindmkaj/https:/ci.empire.mn.us/vertical/sites/%7BC2524253-F75F-408D-8923-A2A3D0993A19%7D/uploads/290_Waste_Hauler_Ordinance_.pdf
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/farmingtonmn/latest/farmington_mn/0-0-0-3271
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/farmingtonmn/latest/farmington_mn/0-0-0-3420
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/farmingtonmn/latest/farmington_mn/0-0-0-3420
https://hastingsmn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=50.06_Mandatory_Solid_Waste_Collection_Requirements
https://hastingsmn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=50.07_Garbage_And_Refuse_Haulers
https://hastingsmn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=50.08_Recycling_Haulers
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/invergrovehtsmn/latest/invergrovehts_mn/0-0-0-5095
chrome-extension://efaidnbmnnnibpcajpcglclefindmkaj/https:/lilydale.govoffice.com/vertical/sites/%7BB50F2735-61FC-4A0D-BAE7-E8D4776BEE77%7D/uploads/Final_Adopted_Code_-_Title_Index_Ch._App._3-18-24.pdf
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/lakevillemn/latest/lakeville_mn/0-0-0-2062
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/mendotahtsmn/latest/mendotaheights_mn/0-0-0-1013
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/rosemountmn/latest/rosemount_mn/0-0-0-2029
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/rosemountmn/latest/rosemount_mn/0-0-0-2228
https://library.municode.com/mn/south_st._paul/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=SPAGEOR_CH46SOWA
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/weststpaul/latest/weststpaul_mn/0-0-0-1461

Draft for Review by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency: October 29, 2024

single waste contracts for their members. Cities using open hauling require haulers to have city-issued licenses.
The city determines the number of licensed haulers to allow, and some cities limit the number of hauler licenses
to reduce wear on roads. The number of licenses for residential collection in open hauling cities ranges from
four haulers (City of Mendota) to ten (City of Inver Grove Heights).

Under organized collection, a city provides or contracts for collection services. The City of Hastings uses an open
bid process and contracts with one hauler to collect and transport residential MSW, recycling, and yard
waste. Commercial sector waste in Hastings is managed through an open hauling system.

The City of Farmington has a one-hauler system for recycling and trash collection. City code requires that all

residential and commercial properties must use the city’s contracted hauler. An exemption to this code only
exists in the event that the city-contracted hauler cannot service the user due to the waste characteristics. In
2022 both cities directed collected trash to resource recovery facilities.

Hauler Collected Fees: Hauler fees for trash and recyclables collection vary because the private sector
establishes and negotiates rates with their customers. Dakota County Ordinance No. 110 includes the following
requirements related to hauler collected fees:

Waste hauling fees must be weight- or volume-based and must increase with the volume or weight collected.
e Section 15.08 L.1: Charges for the collection of mixed municipal solid waste in Dakota County shall
increase with the volume or weight of the waste collected.
e Section 15.08 L.4: Fees for service that are not based on volume or weight are prohibited.

Recycling cannot be penalized, i.e., waste haulers cannot impose a greater charge on residents that recycle than
those that do not recycle.
e Section 15.08 L.2: Collectors of mixed municipal solid waste in Dakota County are prohibited from
imposing a greater charge on residents who recycle than on residents who do not recycle.

Residential waste reduction is promoted by requiring haulers to offer a 35-gallon or less base unit fee.
e Section 15.08 L.3: Haulers shall offer a 35-gallon or less base fee for mixed municipal solid waste
generated by a residential source. Incremental service levels shall not increase by more than thirty-two
(32) gallons, with the exception of fees charged for bulky items.

Existing Rates and Charges in Dakota County: Dakota County conducted a non-scientific survey of haulers,
customers, and cities with organized collection contracts, and found a range of published service rates for
monthly residential MSW and recycling services (excluding State taxes and fees):

e 35gallon: $11.28 to $15.72 (MSW) + $7.69 to $9.60 (Recycling) = $20.88 to $23.41 per month
e 65 gallon: $13.20 to $20.98 (MSW) + $7.69 to $9.60 (Recycling) = $22.80 to $28.67 per month
e 95 gallon: $14.79 to $25.76 (MSW) + $7.69 to $9.60 (Recycling) = $24.39 to $33.45 per month

In addition, several cities with open hauling markets published the following residential service rates for monthly
MSW and recycling services (excluding taxes and fees):

e 35 gallon: MSW + Recycling = $15.00 to $44.68 per month
e 65 gallon: MSW + Recycling = $15.00 to $45.06 per month
e 95 gallon: MSW + Recycling = $17.00 to $47.79 per month

A survey of select haulers for commercial services found a range of published commercial rates for weekly
recycling services (excluding State taxes and fees):

e 95 gallon (Recycling): $25.00 to $43.69 per month
e 4yard (Recycling): $89.00 to $132.80 per month
e 8vyard (Recycling): $124.00 to $211.75 per month
e 95gallon (MSW): $92.50 to $102.54 per month

. DRAFT Dakota County Solid Waste Management Plan: 2024-2044
Appendix A: Existing Waste Management System and County Programs, Page 44



Draft for Review by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency: October 29, 2024

e 4vyard (MSW): $190.94 to $235.94 per month
e 8yard (MSW): $304.46 to $355.01 per month

Published hauler rates provide the best cost comparison, because charges vary with container size, location, and

the type of materials being collected. Inconsistent city contracting methods and strong competition in the region

result in diverse hauling charges that are not comparable across cities, businesses, or residents.

Obtaining pricing from private-sector facilities is difficult. Contracts are negotiated between the facility and their

customers and it is considered private information. Contract pricing varies based on volume, location, and other
factors. MSW land disposal facilities located in Dakota County allow for public drop-off of waste and are
required to post a non-contract per ton fee or “gate rate.”

Pricing and rebates at the recycling facilities vary, in part, because the recycling markets vary. Pricing also
depends on other factors, including whether the waste is from residential or business generators, composition

of the materials, and the cleanliness of the materials. Contracts are negotiated between the recycling facility and

the waste hauler and are not considered public information.

Consistent with Minn. Stat. § 473.848, Dakota County’s Resource Management contract requires the hauler to
deliver trash generated from county libraries, service centers and parks to the Red Wing Waste Campus for
waste processing. The 2024 tip fee at the Red Wing Waste Campus is $118 per ton plus 17 percent Minnesota
Solid Waste Management Tax. In addition, trash collected under city collection contracts in Farmington and
Hastings is delivered to the Red Wing Waste Campus.

Table 4 identifies reported rates for facilities that accept Dakota County waste for disposal. Rates were gathered
from annual reports to the MPCA or reported by facility staff to Dakota County.

Table 4: Fees for Facilities that Accept Dakota County Waste

Facility

Burnsville Sanitary Landfill, Burnsville
Burnsville Sanitary Landfill, Burnsville
Elk River Landfill, Elk River
Elk River Landfill, Elk River

Frattalone’s Dawnway Landfill, Inver Grove Heights

Pine Bend Sanitary Landfill, Inver Grove Heights
SET, Empire

SKB Rosemount Industrial and Demolition Landfill,
Rosemount

SKB Rosemount Industrial and Demolition Landfill,
Rosemount

SKB Rosemount Industrial and Demolition Landfill,
Rosemount

Specialized Environmental Technologies, Inc. (SET),
Empire

Spruce Ridge Landfill, Glencoe

Waste Type

MSW
Demo
MSW
Demo

Demo

MSW
MSW Transfer

Demo

Industrial

MSW Ash

SSOM

MSW

Average
Rate Per
Ton

$78.00*
$78.00*
$220.00*
$130.00*

$8.47/cubic
yard*
$63.79*

$138.00
$75.00*

$75.00*
$105.00*
$75.00

$75.00*

Source

Annual Report to MPCA (2023)
Annual Report to MPCA (2023)
Annual Report to MPCA (2023)
Annual Report to MPCA (2023)
Annual Report to MPCA (2023)

Annual Report to MPCA (2023)
SET (2023)
Annual Report to MPCA (2023)

Annual Report to MPCA (2023)
Annual Report to MPCA (2023)
SET (2023)

Annual Report to MPCA (2023)

*Rates reported in the “average tip fee” column in Annual Reports submitted by the facility to the MPCA.

. DRAFT Dakota County Solid Waste Management Plan: 2024-2044
Appendix A: Existing Waste Management System and County Programs, Page 45



Draft for Review by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency: October 29, 2024

G. Waste Management Facilities

1. Waste Flow

Unless directed by the waste generator to a particular facility for processing or disposal, waste haulers
determine where to deliver collected waste — to a recycling, organics, yard waste, resource recovery, or land
disposal facility — based on a variety of factors, including the type of material collected, facility distance, tip fees,
contracts, state law or permit conditions, and whether a facility is owned by a competitor or waste hauler’s
company. Dakota County does not own or operate waste management facilities. It is anticipated that haulers
will continue to select and deliver waste to the following existing facilities and to new facilities as business
decisions are made.

2. Material Recovery Facilities (MRF)
Residential and business recyclables are delivered to MRFs (recycling facilities) in and outside of the county. Two
recycling facilities located in Dakota County accept recyclables from haulers across the Region.

Table 5: Licensed Material Recovery Facilities in Dakota County

Material Recovery Facility Owner
Allied Recyclery, Inver Grove Heights Republic Services, Inc.
Recycle Minnesota, Lakeville Recycle Minnesota, LLC

Allied Recyclery: The MRF was constructed in 1991 to manage recyclables collected from Republic Services and
other waste haulers. The MRF was one of the region’s first private facilities designed specifically for recyclables.
Now owned by Republic Services, Inc., it is located in Inver Grove Heights next to Republic’s Pine Bend MSW
landfill. The MRF has been adapted over time to accommodate changes in recyclable sorting systems. The
facility’s capacity is estimated at 6,000 tons of recyclables per month.

Recycle Minnesota: Recycle Minnesota, located in Lakeville, received a permit-by-rule from the MPCA and were
first licensed by Dakota County in 2014. Recycle Minnesota has a permitted capacity of up to 200 tons per day
and accepts less than 100 tons per day of residential, single-stream recyclables and less than 50 tons per day of
old corrugated cardboard.

3. Organics Management Facilities
Organics recovery consists of food waste managed as food-to-people, food-for-livestock, source-separated
organics composting, and yard waste.

Food-to-People: Food rescue for human use is poorly documented. A concerted effort will be made to improve
data tracking methods for organics diversion through food rescue.

Food-to-Livestock: Without private-sector facility expansion (i.e., ReConserve), food recovery for conversion
into livestock feed might not have the same expansion potential as source-separated organics composting.
ReConserve, located in Dakota County, is the only facility serving the region and is often at capacity. Direct food-
to-hogs programs have been used by schools and businesses in Dakota County, although the major hog
operations that accept food waste are in the north Metro, distant from Dakota County.

Source-Separated Organics Composting: Organics programs are developing across Dakota County with
significant interest in collecting source-separated organics from residents and in schools; and at large food-
producing establishments, such as grocery stores and restaurants.

Yard Waste: Yard waste has increased substantially since Emerald Ash Borer was detected in the county in early
2015. Yard waste, not identified by county-of-origin, can be transferred into the county.

Residential and business organics are delivered to commercial facilities in and outside of the county. The three
active facilities are used by haulers from across the region.

. DRAFT Dakota County Solid Waste Management Plan: 2024-2044
Appendix A: Existing Waste Management System and County Programs, Page 46



Draft for Review by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency: October 29, 2024

Table 6: Licensed Organics Recovery Facilities in Dakota County

Organics Management Facility Owner

Endres Processing, LLC, Rosemount ReConserve of Minnesota, Inc.

SKB Rosemount Composting Facility, Rosemount SKB Environmental, Inc.

Specialized Environmental Technologies, Inc. Source-Separated Specialized Environmental Technologies, Inc.

Organics Compost Facility, Empire

Endres Processing, LLC: Located in Rosemount, the facility was first licensed by the county in 1998 to recycle
food waste and other organic materials into an adjunct ingredient sold in bulk to the livestock feed industry. The
facility is licensed to accept 200 to 300 tons of food waste per day (no meat or meat by-products). This is the
only food-to-livestock facility serving the region and is often at capacity.

SKB Rosemount Composting Facility: SSOM is not collected at this facility at this time. SKB Environmental, Inc.
(SKB) is a multi-operational solid waste facility licensed as a special waste industrial waste landfill, MSW
incinerator ash landfill, construction and demolition waste landfill, solid waste transfer station, waste
processing, and a compost facility. The license authorizes all of these uses; however, not all are active. The 2011
license authorizing a compost facility identifies that, once active, it can accept a maximum of 50,000 tons per
year of source-separated organic materials and yard waste. SKB is required to submit a construction plan and
obtain approval prior to constructing the licensed compost facility.

Specialized Environmental Technologies, Inc. (SET), Source-Separated Organics Compost Facility: This facility is
on county-owned land in the City of Empire that the county has leased to SET for organics composting since
2002. The County Board recently authorized a five-year lease extension with possible extensions available
through June 2037. This facility is permitted as a source-separated organic materials (SSOM) compost facility, a
solid waste transfer and processing building, and a yard waste composting facility. The compost facility is
permitted to accept 300 tons per day (tpd) of material (150 tpd of SSOM and 150 tpd of yard waste).

Although not in Dakota County, in 2023, SSOM from the county was delivered to the Mdewakanton Sioux facility
(929 tons).

4. Yard Waste Facilities
Residential and business yard waste is delivered to yard waste facilities in and outside of the county. Seven yard
waste compost facilities are licensed in Dakota County.

Table 7: Licensed Yard Waste Compost Facilities in Dakota County

Yard Waste Facility Owner

Allied Waste Yard Waste Composting, Inver Grove Heights Republic Services, Inc.

B & D Composting, Greenvale Township B&D Composting

Gertens RES Yard Waste Compost Facility, Eagan Gertens Greenhouse & Garden
Center, Inc.

SKB Rosemount Composting Facility, Rosemount SKB Environmental, Inc.

South St. Paul Yard Waste Compost Facility, South St. Paul City of South St. Paul

Specialized Environmental Technologies, Inc. Compost Facility, Empire WM

Specialized Environmental Technologies, Inc. Yard and Wood Waste Compost WM

Facility, Burnsville

Allied Waste Yard Waste Composting Facility: Republic Services, Inc. maintains a yard waste compost facility
license for operating a 40,000 cubic yards per year or greater facility, although the facility is presently inactive.

B & D Wood Processing and Yard Waste Composting Facility: It has operated since 1996 in Greenvale
Township. B & D manages yard waste, brush, and tree waste, and is licensed to receive up to 20,000 cubic yards
per year. In 2023, it accepted 18,758 tons of Dakota County yard waste. Yard waste compost is sold to the public

. DRAFT Dakota County Solid Waste Management Plan: 2024-2044
Appendix A: Existing Waste Management System and County Programs, Page 47



Draft for Review by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency: October 29, 2024

and tree waste is sawed for lumber, cut for firewood, ground for mulch, or sold to District Energy in St. Paul for
fuel.

Gertens RES Yard Waste Compost Facility: Gertens Greenhouse & Garden Center operates a yard waste
compost facility on land owned by Gopher Resource Corporation. Gertens purchased an adjacent parcel in 2016
from the City of Eagan, with plans to relocate its composting operations. The facility is licensed to accept greater
than 40,000 cubic yards of yard waste per year, and in 2023 accepted 11,242 tons of Dakota County yard waste.
The facility accepts yard waste that is loose or is in compostable bags, prunings, brush and tree waste. End-
products include yard-waste compost, blended soils, and wood mulches.

SKB Rosemount Composting Facility: Yard waste is not collected at this facility at this time. SKB has a license
authorizing a yard waste composting facility; however, is required to submit a construction plan and obtain
approval prior to constructing the facility.

South St. Paul Yard Waste Compost Facility: This small, city-owned and operated facility accepts only de-bagged
yard waste or yard waste in paper bags. Brush or tree waste is not accepted. Residency is not required to drop
off yard waste. Capacity is 10,000 cubic yards per year and in 2023 it accepted 1,100 tons of Dakota County yard
waste. The facility generates 1,000 cubic yards of yard waste compost per year, offered to the public at no cost.

Specialized Environmental Technologies Yard Waste Compost Facility (Burnsville): It has an annual capacity
greater than 40,000 cubic yards and accepted 25,092 tons of Dakota County yard waste in 2023. Grass and
leaves must be in compostable bags or reusable containers. The facility also accepts tree and brush waste. End-
products include yard waste compost, blended soils, wood chips, and several kinds of landscape mulches.

Specialized Environmental Technologies Compost Facility (Empire): The facility is in Empire on county-owned
land All types of yard waste in compostable bags and loose material are accepted. Its county-licensed capacity is
greater than 40,000 cubic yards per year and in 2023, it accepted 32,503 tons of Dakota County yard waste. The
facility is also permitted by the state to accept 300 tons per day (tpd) of material, including 150 tpd of source-
separated organic materials (SSOM) and 150 tpd of yard waste. In 2023, the facility accepted 1,632 tons of
SSOM. End-products available for sale include compost, blended soils and several kinds of landscape mulches.

Dunham Brothers: Although not a yard waste facility, Dunham Brothers is a unique facility licensed as wood
waste processing facility where clean wood and pallets are converted into animal bedding. Their primary
customers are the cattle industry and equestrian farms. The facility is licensed for up to 200 tons per day.

In 2023, Dakota County-generated yard waste was also delivered to City of St. Louis Park Yard Waste Facility (87
tons).

5. Resource Recovery Facilities
Three resource recovery facilities serve the region, although none are located in Dakota County and not all can
or will accept waste generated in Dakota County.

The Hennepin Energy Recovery Center (HERC): The HERC is located in Minneapolis and uses a mass-burn
technology, producing energy for district heating and electricity. Hennepin County owns the facility and
contracts for operations. The facility’s permit capacity is 365,000 tons annually. HERC capacity is typically filled
with Hennepin County waste; however, 2023 reports indicate 256 tons of Dakota County-generated waste was
delivered to HERC.

The Recycling and Energy Center: The Recycling and Energy Center is a refuse-derived fuel (RDF) facility now
owned by Ramsey and Washington Counties and operated by their contractor. The facility is in Newport and is
managed by the Ramsey/Washington Recycling and Energy Board. MSW is delivered, shredded, and separated
into three waste streams: RDF, recyclable metal, and residue. RDF is burned to generate electricity at Xcel
Energy power plants in Red Wing and Mankato. Metals are recycled, and residue is landfilled. Permitted capacity
is 500,000 tons per year. In 2023, 335 tons of Dakota County-generated waste was delivered to the facility.

. DRAFT Dakota County Solid Waste Management Plan: 2024-2044
Appendix A: Existing Waste Management System and County Programs, Page 48



Draft for Review by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency: October 29, 2024

Red Wing Waste Campus: The Red Wing Waste Campus is an RDF facility owned and operated by the City of
Red Wing. Waste is sorted into RDF, recyclable metal, and residue. RDF is burned to generate electricity at Xcel
Energy’s power plant in Red Wing. The city’s permitted capacity is 36,000 tons annually. In 2023, 11,372 tons of
Dakota County-generated waste was delivered to this facility.

6. MSW Land Disposal Facilities

Residential and business waste is delivered to MSW land disposal facilities in and outside of the county. Seven
landfills receive TCMA waste with a collective capacity of 10.2 million cubic yards. Two MSW landfills serving the
region are located in Dakota County. Both operate methane gas-to-energy systems.

Table 8: Licensed MSW Landfills in Dakota County

Resource Recovery Facility Owner
Burnsville Sanitary Landfill, Burnsville Burnsville Sanitary Landfill, Inc.
Pine Bend Sanitary Landfill, Inver Grove Heights Republic Services, Inc.

Burnsville Sanitary Landfill: This landfill is in a commercial area in northwest Burnsville, and is owned by
Burnsville Sanitary Landfill, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Waste Management, Inc. The landfill was first
permitted by the MPCA in 1971. In 2022, 24.2 million cubic yards of capacity remained with an estimated life
span of 2072. In 2023, 117,906 tons of Dakota County-generated waste was delivered to this landfill.

Pine Bend Sanitary Landfill: This landfill in Inver Grove Heights is owned by Republic Services, Inc./BFI Waste
Systems of North America, LLC., and was originally permitted in 1971. The landfill is currently permitted at 29.8
million cubic yards of air space. At the end of 2022, 3.5 million cubic yards of airspace remained, and it is
estimated that landfill capacity will be consumed by 2030 - at current use rates and a permit capacity of 29.8
million cubic yards. Pine Bend is pursuing an 8,185,000 cubic yard expansion that will extend the life to about
2048 if approved. In 2023, 82,099 tons of Dakota County-generated MSW was delivered to this landfill.

In 2023, Dakota County-generated waste was also delivered to out-of-county landfills including Waste
Management, Inc. Elk River Landfill in Sherburne County (379 tons) and the Advanced Disposal Seven Mile Creek
Landfill in Eau Claire, Wisconsin (2,407 tons).

7. Non-MSW Land Disposal Facilities

The TCMA is served by nine Non-MSW landfills. Four Non-MSW landfills in Dakota County accept construction,
demolition, and industrial wastes from generators in and outside of the county. The two MSW landfills in the
county also accept non-MSW, generally industrial waste and contaminated soil within the MSW cells.

Table 9: Licensed Non-MSW Landfills in Dakota County

Non-MSW Landfill Facility Owner

Burnsville DemCon Landfill, Burnsville Burnsville Sanitary Landfill, Inc.
Burnsville Sanitary Landfill, Burnsville Burnsville Sanitary Landfill, Inc.
Frattalone’s Dawnway Demolition Landfill, Inver Grove Heights and South St. Paul Frattalone Companies

Pine Bend Landfill, Inver Grove Heights Republic Services, Inc.

SKB Rich Valley Demolition Landfill, Inver Grove Heights SKB Environmental, Inc.

SKB Rosemount Industrial and Demolition Landfill, Rosemount SKB Environmental, Inc.

Burnsville DemCon Landfill: It is located in Burnsville and owned by Burnsville Sanitary Landfill, Inc., a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Waste Management Inc. The C and D waste cell is within the footprint of the Burnsville
Sanitary Landfill. In 2022, the cell had a capacity of 2.75 million cubic yards and an estimated life of
approximately ninety years. This facility is currently inactive.

Burnsville Sanitary Landfill: See descriptions in previous section. In 2023 the facility accepted 2,565 tons of
industrial waste.

. DRAFT Dakota County Solid Waste Management Plan: 2024-2044
Appendix A: Existing Waste Management System and County Programs, Page 49



Draft for Review by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency: October 29, 2024

Frattalone’s Dawnway Demolition Landfill: This landfill is a 51-acre facility on the border between Inver Grove
Heights and South St Paul, within the footprint of a pre-existing sand and gravel pit that closed in 1980. The
facility accepts demolition debris waste materials. No industrial waste is accepted. Originally developed to
accept waste only from its owner, the landfill now accepts wastes from pre-screened contractors. In 2022, the
landfill had a total capacity for construction and demolition waste of 1.33million cubic yards and remaining
facility life is estimated at about seven years.

Pine Bend Landfill: See descriptions in previous section.

SKB Rich Valley Demolition Landfill: The landfill is in the City of Inver Grove Heights on property owned by SKB
Environmental, Inc. The facility accepts only construction and demolition wastes but is currently inactive as
operations were consolidated by SKB at the nearby Rosemount facility. In 2007, an expansion of the landfill was
approved, but has not yet been fully constructed. In 2022, the landfill had a total capacity for construction and
demolition waste of 2.3 million cubic yards and remaining facility life is estimated at nineteen years.

SKB Rosemount Industrial and Demolition Landfill: The landfill is located in Rosemount and accepts industrial
waste, MSW incinerator ash, and demolition waste. The landfill was originally permitted to accept only industrial
waste in 1992. In 1998 the MPCA permitted the acceptance of MSW incinerator ash at the landfill. In 2003 the
MPCA approved a major modification to the facility for disposing of construction and demolition debris. A 2008
landfill expansion significantly increased demolition and industrial capacity. In 2022, the facility had a capacity of
13.9 million cubic yards for construction and demolition waste and industrial waste; and 1.3 million cubic yards
for MSW incinerator ash. Remaining facility life estimates are four years for construction and demolition waste
and industrial waste, and sixteen years for incinerator ash.

8. Non-MSW Processing Facilities
Six licensed Non-MSW processing facilities located in Dakota County receive TCMA waste.

Table 10: Licensed Non-MSW Processing Facilities in Dakota County

Non-MSW Processing Facility Owner

Alpha Container Services and Recycling, Coates Alpha Container Services
Bituminous Roadways Shingle Processing, Inver Grove Heights Bituminous Roadways, Inc.
Burnsville Demolition and Construction Waste Landfill Processing, Burnsville Burnsville Sanitary Landfill, Inc.
Gem-Ash/SKB Rosemount Solid Waste Processing, Inver Grove Heights SKB Environmental, Inc.

SKB Rosemount Processing, Rosemount SKB Environmental, Inc.

SKB Wood and Shingle Processing (Rich Valley), Inver Grove Heights SKB Environmental, Inc.

Alpha Container Services and Recycling: This facility processes construction and demolition waste. In 2023 they
processed approximately 24,828 cubic yards of waste. This facility was purchased by Lloyd’s Container Services
in 2023.

Bituminous Roadways Shingle Processing: It is licensed to process waste shingle material at its Rich Valley
location (11201 Rich Valley Blvd). They have processed little or no material for the past several years.

Burnsville Demolition and Construction (C and D) Waste Landfill Processing: It has a cell that takes approved
construction and demolition waste. The C and D waste processing facility is currently inactive.

Gem-Ash/SKB Rosemount Solid Waste Processing: It was licensed in 2014 to operate an ash recycling facility.
The facility processes municipal solid waste incinerator ash and separates ferrous and non-ferrous metals for
recycling. In 2023 the facility marketed 2,688 tons of ferrous metals and 3,913 tons of non-ferrous metals.

SKB Rosemount Processing: It is a multi-operational solid waste facility licensed for waste processing. The
landfill sorts out recyclable metals, clean wood, and concrete and processes waste shingle materials (market

. DRAFT Dakota County Solid Waste Management Plan: 2024-2044
Appendix A: Existing Waste Management System and County Programs, Page 50



Draft for Review by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency: October 29, 2024

dependent) from the construction and demolition wastes. Metals are also sorted and recycled from the MSW
incinerator ash cell. In 2023, the facility recycled 14,772.69 tons of metals and 8,469 tons of concrete.

SKB Wood and Shingle Processing (Rich Valley): It is licensed as a multi-operational solid waste facility with a
license for waste processing of construction and demolition debris. This facility has been inactive since 2007.

9. Hazardous Waste and Problem Materials Facility

The Recycling Zone opened in 1997 and provides a year-round location for residents to drop off recyclables,
household hazardous waste, and problem materials and for businesses a Very Small Quantity Generator (VSQG)
program by appointment.

Table 11: Licensed HHW Facilities in Dakota County
HHW Facility Owner
The Recycling Zone, Eagan Gopher Resource Corporation

Dakota County contracts with Gopher Resource, LLC (Gopher), to provide the site, facility, and most on-site

labor. Since 1997, the County Board has approved contracts for services at the Gopher facility. In 2023, a five-

year contract extension was executed with Gopher, extending operation through 2028. The contract includes:
e Thirty-six hours per week for residential HHW and recyclables drop-off, including two evenings.

e Facility rental space of 9,850 square feet.

e Recyclables drop-off for residents including mixed containers, mixed paper/cardboard, and scrap metal.

e HHW, electronics and problem materials drop-off.

e Dakota County is responsible for costs relating to collection, disposal, recycling, labor, supplies, and
facility rental.

e Gopherincreased fulltime staffing (2024) to manage the increased participation and waste. Gopher staff
sort, pack, and store materials on-site until shipped to disposal and recycling facilities.

Dakota County maintains separate contracts with hazardous waste and problem material management
companies to provide for proper recycling or disposal of materials collected at The Recycling Zone. Dakota
County oversees the operations at The Recycling Zone and the management company contracts. To better serve
the needs of residents and businesses, Dakota County is:

e A PaintCare collection site for residents and businesses to dispose of latex and oil-based paint (2015).

e Continues to expand the list of materials collected.
e Offers a Very Small Quantity Generator (VSQG) collection program to businesses.

In 2017, Dakota County staff conducted a needs assessment for countywide maintenance facilities, including
whether a future maintenance facility could include a second HHW drop off facility. Findings indicated The
Recycling Zone services and facility use are not compatible to share a site with county maintenance facilities. An
independent assessment will be conducted to determine near-term needs and plan for future growth in the
county.

Planning for second household hazardous waste

In 2021, Dakota County received two million dollars ($2,000,000) in state funding for Phase | design and
property acquisition. Dakota County purchased property in Lakeville for the proposed new regional household
hazardous waste and recycling drop-off facility. Dakota County and Scott County entered into a Joint Powers
Agreement in 2024 for the design and construction of the new Recycling Zone Plus. Dakota County has not been
successful in requests to the Minnesota Legislature for eight million dollars (58,000,000) for Phase Il of the
project for facility construction for Capital Assistance Program (CAP) funding in 2020, 2023, 2024 and will seek
the funding again in 2025. The project has been postponed until Phase Il funding has been granted.

. DRAFT Dakota County Solid Waste Management Plan: 2024-2044
Appendix A: Existing Waste Management System and County Programs, Page 51



Draft for Review by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency: October 29, 2024

Appendix B: Management Plan Development

Dakota County initiated its Plan revision process in 2023 to prepare for the anticipated release of a new
Minnesota Pollution Control Agency Metropolitan Solid Waste Management Policy Plan (Policy Plan). The
planning process included three technical phases (research, draft Plan development, and Plan review and
adoption), with comprehensive stakeholder engagement throughout.

The Plan was prepared by Dakota County Environmental Resources and Planning Department staff with
assistance from the Dakota County Planning Commission. Because Dakota County transitioned to a County
Manager system in 2014, the Dakota County Board itself performs the duties and exercises the powers required
of a solid waste management advisory committee under Minn. Stat. § 473.803.

Dakota County Planning Commission (Commission): The County Board appoints two members from each
County Commissioner district to the 14-member citizen advisory committee. The Commission is charged with
reviewing environmental and natural resources proposals and making recommendations to the County Board.
The Commission meets monthly and meetings are open to the public. The Commission was engaged on the Plan
revision. On September 26, 2024, staff requested Commission recommendation to the County Board on
submittal of the draft Plan to the MPCA for review and approval.

Dakota County Board of Commissioners (County Board): The County Board is a seven-member Board, elected
by residents in each commissioner district to establish county policy and funding for services. Written updates
and presentations were provided to the Board throughout the Plan development process. Board meetings were
open to the public and were attended by representatives from the MPCA.

A. Research Phase
1. Studies

Dakota County conducted the following studies on waste management issues and barriers to inform the
development of the Plan:

a. Residential Reuse Behavior (Dakota County — Problosky Research, 2023)
Description: Statistically significant residential survey of residents’ reuse knowledge and behavior to
understand perceived and actual barriers to reducing waste at home.
Summary of findings:
e The vast majority, 95 percent of residents, say that it is important to recycle at home.

e Inthe last year 92 percent of respondents recycled household items, 76 percent used a refillable
container for water, and 71 percent used a reusable bag while shopping.

e The most common phrase for respondents to use when describing secondhand goods is “used,” but the
most desirable term was “gently-used.”

e There is high interest in both donating and buying second-hand goods, and most (95 percent) are aware
of a store near them that sells second-hand goods.

e The biggest motivation listed by respondents for purchasing second-hand goods was that the items are
cheaper.

e Forrespondents who don’t purchase second-hand goods the most significant reasons for not doing so
are safety/hygiene concerns and lack of choice in second-hand goods.

e The most common goods to donate (in order) are clothing, footwear, books, and household goods and
the items that respondents would be most comfortable receiving or buying (in order) are books,
household goods, clothing, and bikes.

. DRAFT Dakota County Solid Waste Management Plan: 2024-2044
Appendix B: Management Plan Development, Page 52



Draft for Review by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency: October 29, 2024

Compared to other types of items asked about, respondents were more likely to be willing to use
national online reselling sites or social media for clothes. Trends were very similar among different types
of appliances and tools, with the majority preferring to use local online exchanges or garage sales.

b. Residential Organics Collection Options in Dakota County (Dakota County — SCS Engineers, 2024)
Description: Overview and analysis of the economics, environmental impacts, and potential diversion rates
for residential curbside organics (food scraps) collection systems within the county and recommendations
for the county to develop one or more of the options identified.

Summary of findings:

Organized weekly curbside organics collection using a separate dedicated cart with every-other-week
trash collection provides the overall best annual performance in terms of costs, food waste diversion,
emissions reduction, road miles and collection trucks needed.

Co-collecting organics with trash is not currently available to Dakota County, and use of the Recycling
and Energy Center (REC) in Newport for sorting is reserved for waste from Ramsey and Washington
counties. Co-collecting organics with trash in Dakota County would require significant investment in a
new waste sortation capacity able to recover co-collected organics from durable compostable bags.

Everyone pays for organics collection services, whether they participate in the service or not. This 2023
determination by the MPCA clarified that residents cannot be billed more to participate in recycling
(including source separated organics materials) than residents who do not recycle (Minn. Stat. §
115A.93.3c).

There are currently 38 curbside organics collections programs in Minnesota. Of these programs, 71
percent have separate cart collection and 52 percent are in an organized hauling market where the
municipality manages, contracts and coordinates residential curbside collection.

Wood Waste Study (Dakota County Office of Performance and Analysis, 2024)

Description: Information about wood waste management in Dakota County
Summary of findings:

The study documents the regulations related to wood waste management, the volume of wood waste
from sources around the county, where the wood is going for disposal or reuse, and how the
municipalities within Dakota County are currently handling wood waste.

Recommendations include: (1) publish more information and resources for tree contractors and
residents on Dakota County’s website, (2) as feasible, divert larger wood products to local wood
reclamation retailers, and smaller pieces such as undyed mulch to garden centers, (3) consider
expanded use of on-site biochar kilns and use of finished biochar, and (4) look into
feasibility/appropriateness of possible new regulations, such as banning open burning by commercial
entities and licensing certain wood waste management companies to help determine inventory and
amounts managed.

Compost Utilization Study (Dakota County Office of Performance and Analysis, 2024)

Description: Information about compost utilization in Dakota County and the region
Summary of findings:

The study documents compost utilization in landscape, transportation, and other projects, compost
utilization within the TCMA, existing county and external municipal guidelines and policies, and best
practices.

Recommendations include: (1) collaborate with regional municipalities and the Minnesota Composting
Council (MNCC) to develop guidance on the utilization of compost in earth works projects, (2) utilize soil
testing to help determine which projects will benefit most from application of compost, (3) incorporate
Minnesota Department of Transportation (MnDOT) Grade 2 compost in Dakota County earth works

. DRAFT Dakota County Solid Waste Management Plan: 2024-2044
[ Appendix B: Management Plan Development, Page 53



Draft for Review by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency: October 29, 2024

projects, (4) model county policy on leading State and local standards, and (5) address financial and
other resource barriers to compost application in county earth works projects.

County staff also gathered additional information on regional lending libraries, regional reuse organizations,
food waste prevention policies by state, opportunities and barriers to expand reuse stores in Dakota County,
commercial recycling in Hastings, biochar initiatives in Dakota County and statewide, and regional building
materials reuse organizations, services, and grant programs.

2. Stakeholder Engagement
Stakeholder engagement during the research phase of the Plan update focused on identification of solid waste
management issues, barriers, and solutions, including the new strategy topics presented in the draft Policy Plan.

Round 1 of public engagement (September 2023 — mid-October 2023) included audience-specific online surveys
(available in English, Spanish, Russian and Somali for residents), meetings with waste industry and public
entities, and intercepts (staffed events and unstaffed interactive displays). Table 12 summarizes participation
counts (green), engagement methods (pink) and outreach (orange) used for each stakeholder group.

Table 12: Round One Participation, Engagement Type, and Outreach Methods By Stakeholder Group

Audience Number Online Intercepts Meetings Newsletters, Social Project
Participating Survey Emails Media Webpage

Residents 897 ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢
Businesses and 15 ¢ ¢ ¢
Schools

Public Entities 23 ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢
Waste Industry 11 ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢
Food Rescue - ¢ Offered ¢ ¢
Deconstruction 3 ¢ Offered ¢ ¢
Reuse 2 ¢ Offered ¢ ¢
Tree Waste 4 ¢ Offered ¢ ¢

Nearly 1,000 stakeholders collectively identified the following barriers and opportunities:

e More frequent and clearer information is needed to ensure that resources are not being landfilled and
waste is managed in environmentally beneficial ways.

e Convenient and cost-effective approaches can help motivate increased reuse and recycling of non-
traditional items (e.g., mattresses, building materials).

e Thereis interest in curbside organics collection, although concerns included odors, pests, and
educational needs to prevent contamination.

e Greater manufacturer and producer responsibility is needed to make more sustainable products and
packaging, that are repairable, reusable, and recyclable.

e Information and assistance is needed to increase sustainable management of reusable building
materials (e.g., construction materials and fixtures).

e There is a widespread lack of knowledge on proper care of trees to prevent wood waste and
management of wood waste from diseased trees.

Results of stakeholder input were published on the county’s website and shared with stakeholders, the Planning
Commission, the County Board, and used to develop potential strategies.

. DRAFT Dakota County Solid Waste Management Plan: 2024-2044
Appendix B: Management Plan Development, Page 54



Draft for Review by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency: October 29, 2024

B. Draft Plan Development Phase
Policy Plan requirements and comprehensive stakeholder engagement informed selection of strategies.

1. Strategy Selection

The Policy Plan format allowed TCMA counties to select from a list of required and optional strategies. All 32
Policy Plan required strategies are included in this Plan. The 12 selected Policy Plan optional strategies in the
county’s draft plan total 82 points, exceeding the required 75-point minimum. Optional strategies were selected
that 1) align with the existing 2018-2038 Dakota County Solid Waste Management Plan implementation efforts
(i.e., county initiatives currently ongoing) or 2) align with public findings from stakeholder engagement (Fall
2023, Spring 2024).

2. Stakeholder Engagement

Round 2 of public engagement (April 1 - 21, 2024) collected feedback on potential waste management strategies
selected from the Policy Plan and included online (non-scientific) surveys for residents, businesses, and schools
(in English and Spanish), two intercept events with Latino residents to collect survey responses in person, one in-
person focus group with Latino residents, meetings with waste industry and public entities. Stakeholders were
asked about their support for specific strategies to help prioritize strategy selection and about preferences and
potential resource needs that could facilitate successful strategy implementation.

Table 13: Round Two Participation and Engagement Methods by Stakeholder Group

. Number of . Meetings
Audience Participants Online Survey Intercepts Focus Gri l{ B
Residents 1,326 Yes Yes Yes
Businesses and Schools 24 Yes - -
Public Entities 19 - - Yes
Waste Industry 9 - - Yes

More than 1,300 stakeholders provided input:

Residents rated the following actions as moderately to very helpful:
e More frequent education on recycling, organics (food scrap) collection, and reuse.
e Hauler feedback when materials are sorted incorrectly.
e QOrganics curbside collection available within three years, collected with weekly trash pickup.
e Curbside collection of reusable items, and more reuse drop-off options.
e Information about funding for diseased tree removals; options for tree waste drop-off; information on
tree disease prevention.

Businesses and schools rated the following actions as moderately to very helpful:
e Frequent education on recycling, organics collection, and reuse options.
o Hauler feedback when materials are sorted incorrectly.
e Funding and technical assistance for recycling, food scrap management, and waste reduction and reuse;
training for employees and tenants.

Municipalities identified actions to facilitate strategy implementation:

e Frequent education on food scrap collection, reuse, and trees waste.

e Technical assistance and information to help reduce waste; funding for waste reduction and
equipment/infrastructure such as dishwashers and reusable service ware.

e Regarding curbside organics collection, opt-in resident participation for curbside organics collection with
educational messaging focused on “food scraps;” minimize the number of organics trucks on the roads;
expanded drop sites to provide multifamily residents options; and options to minimize costs on low-
income residents.

. DRAFT Dakota County Solid Waste Management Plan: 2024-2044
Appendix B: Management Plan Development, Page 55



Draft for Review by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency: October 29, 2024

e Promote tree care options; consider more disposal options for tree waste.
e Information about vendors available to reuse building materials and assistance for event/swap costs.

Waste Industry representatives identified actions to facilitate strategy implementation:

e More education on proper disposal of food scraps, tree waste, recyclable materials, and hazardous
waste, especially lithium-ion batteries as a fire hazard.

e Provide pre-curbside organics program resident notification, promote opt-in participation, and provide
educational messaging focused on “food scraps;” maintain organics drop-off sites; and some identified
consideration of organized collection for more efficient and cost-effective organics curbside collection.

e More discussion in needed on approaches to implement the MPCA’s required pre-processing and
disposal facilities; residents and businesses need to be responsible for improved sorting of their
recyclables.

Stakeholder input was used to further refine potential strategies and their implementation. Findings were
published on the county’s website and shared with stakeholders and the County Board.

C. Plan Review and Adoption Phase
The draft Plan was presented to the Dakota County Physical Development Committee of the Whole on July 23,
2024, with a recommendation for a 21-day public review and comment period.

The public review and comment period was conducted from August 1 through August 21, 2024. Residents,
businesses, schools, and waste industry representatives were invited to comment by email at
wasteless@co.dakota.mn.us or by mail. Comments were requested using a variety of promotions, including:
e County website
e Pressrelease
e E-newsletters (Residential, Haulers, Businesses, Parks, Recycling Ambassadors, Schools, Multifamily, Fix-
it Clinic, and Organics Drop Sites)
e Social media platforms
e Emails to haulers and facilities, city administrators and recycling staff, rural city and township contacts,
reuse organizations, food rescue organizations, tree waste organizations, and deconstruction
organizations.

Staff also invited public comment at a display table in the Natural Resources building at the Dakota County Fair
on August 9 and 10, 2024. Several dozen visitors stopped to talk about the Plan update and waste-related topics.

Twenty-two individuals representing the viewpoints of residents, municipalities, schools, and waste industry
submitted written comments on the draft Plan. County staff considered all public comments and provided
recommended revisions to the County Planning Commission on September 26, 2024, and the Dakota County
Physical Development Committee of the Whole in September and October 2024, with a recommendation for To
submit the Plan to the MPCA for agency review and approval.

The County Board adopted the MPCA-approved Plan on [insert date], Resolution [insert resolution #].

. DRAFT Dakota County Solid Waste Management Plan: 2024-2044
Appendix B: Management Plan Development, Page 56



Draft for Review by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency: October 29, 2024

Appendix C: Environmental Justice: Review And Framework for Plan

Implementation
A. Background

The Policy Plan requires counties to conduct an environmental justice review in developing their waste plans.
The MPCA defines environmental justice as “the fair treatment and meaningful involvement of all people
regardless of race, color, national origin, or income, with respect to the development, implementation, and
enforcement of environmental laws, regulations, and policies.”

The MPCA Policy Plan identifies potentially affected communities in areas of concern for environmental justice.
This is defined by the MPCA as census tracts using data from the U.S. Census and American Community Survey
and meet one or both demographic criteria. These two criteria are defined as:

¢ Total population of people of color greater than 40%
¢ At least 35% of people reported income less than 200% of the federal poverty level

B. Engagement During Plan Development

The county conducted an extensive stakeholder engagement process during the development of this Plan,
including multi-lingual online surveys, phone surveys, workshops, and meetings. Engaging people through a
variety of formats created better opportunities for stakeholders of all backgrounds to provide feedback on
strategies during two rounds of public engagement (Fall 2023 and Spring 2024). The county will continue
inclusive engagement efforts for strategy implementation.

Since Spanish is the most spoken language other than English in the county, with over 8,700 households
speaking Spanish as their primary language and 2,238 of those households having limited English-speaking
members, the county sought to engage and solicit feedback from Hispanic and Latino residents and Hispanic and
Latino-owned or managed businesses. The county hired a communications and engagement consulting company
to provide culturally relevant and linguistically appropriate engagement to receive feedback on the strategies.
The consultant identified areas with the highest concentration of Hispanic and Latino residents in Dakota County
as specific areas for engagement. Methods to engage this audience included online (non-scientific) surveys for
residents, businesses, and schools, in English and Spanish, promoted through the following:

e County social media posts in Spanish.

e Paid print and online ads in Spanish (La Voz) and a paid online ad in Spanish (La Prensa).

e  Utility bill inserts in English and Spanish were mailed to 3,204 households in Apple Valley to areas with
high populations of Spanish speaking residents.

e Flyers in Spanish distributed at Open Door mobile food pantry event in South St. Paul.

e In-person intercepts (staffed information tables at existing events and venues) with Latino residents.

One in-person focus group was held with Latino residents of a mobile home community to gather feedback on
how strategies in the Policy Plan could work in Dakota County and to identify resources needed for successful
implementation.

C. Plan Implementation

For county Plan focus, the MPCA Policy Plan identified waste-related facilities in areas of concerns for
environmental justice, based on potentially affected communities defined by the MPCA as census tracts using
data from the U.S. Census and American Community Survey and meet one or both demographic criteria. These
two criteria are defined as:

e Total population of people of color greater than 40%

. DRAFT Dakota County Solid Waste Management Plan: 2024-2044
[ Appendix C: Environmental Justice, Page 57



Draft for Review by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency: October 29, 2024

o Atleast 35% of people reported income less than 200% of the federal poverty level

The MPCA chose these two criteria because “research indicates that people of color and low-income people are
disproportionately exposed to pollution, and bear disproportionate heath impacts from pollution, regardless of
other population characteristics.”

The priority of the Plan is to ensure the proper management of waste to protect human health and the
environment. The Plan also supports reducing waste and increasing recycling. The strategies in the Plan are
intended to reduce the environmental impacts associated with waste.

1. Impact and Assessment: Dakota County is home to waste management facilities. Implementing the
strategies identified in the Plan will divert waste from landfills to recycling and organics recovery facilities.
When considering license renewals or new license applications in areas of concern, the county will:

e Identify facility types that warrant additional actions based on potential for adverse effects.
e Increase civic engagement to ensure that everyone can provide comment, particularly in cases when
public notice is required.

2. Impact review. Dakota County will continue to license facilities to minimize impacts to the environment and
human health. Dakota County does not exercise land use authority outside the shoreland/floodplain area
but will encourage municipal partners to site facilities in locations that minimize impacts to the environment
and human health.

3. Engagement. Dakota County’s Solid Waste Management Plan policy, “Strive for just treatment, meaningful
involvement, and equitable implementation of the Plan for all community members provides direction for
an intentional and equitable approach as Plan strategies are implemented. The goal is an environment
where all people enjoy the same degree of protection from environmental and health hazards and equal
access to decision-making for a healthy environment in which to live, learn, and work. This approach follows
a public health model of prevention to protect people, their communities and the natural environment.

The county will build on the inclusive engagement efforts conducted during Plan development for strategy
implementation. As this Plan is implemented and programs, ordinances, and efforts are initiated, the county
will work to be intentional about engaging all populations, including stakeholders living or working in MPCA-
identified areas of concern. Several strategies in the Plan would directly benefit communities in areas of
concern for environmental justice. For example, the Plan includes strategies to provide resources to improve
multi-unit dwelling recycling, including for hard-to-recycle items like mattress, and access to organics
recovery through expansion of strategic organics drop sites. These efforts can lead to reductions in illegal
dumping, a concern sometimes in lower income communities. Additionally, the Plan includes a strategy to
implement curbside organics collection with tactics to provide resources to remove barriers for residents to
successfully participate in the program, including providing education in a variety of methods to be inclusive
of all residents. The county will continue inclusive engagement efforts for effective strategy implementation.

. DRAFT Dakota County Solid Waste Management Plan: 2024-2044
Appendix C: Environmental Justice, Page 58



Draft for Review by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency: October 29, 2024

Appendix D: Performance and Accountability

A. Evaluating Progress

Dakota County is committed to identifying performance measures to monitor and evaluate progress on
strategies identified in the Plan. These metrics apply to all aspects of the solid waste management system
described throughout this Plan. Performance measures are important to ensure ongoing program improvement
and to evaluate progress in meeting Plan objectives. More detailed progress measures will also be specified in
the county’s annual work plans, implementation projects, and in ongoing process improvement efforts.

Dakota County is accountable to the MPCA for Plan development and advancement, but all stakeholders —
including all levels of government, waste generators, and operators of the waste management system — are
expected to participate and have accountability in implementing this Plan. Dakota County will continue to
monitor compliance of regulated waste generators and the waste industry to measure Plan progress.

The MPCA’s Policy Plan acknowledges that the complexity of the TCMA solid waste system makes it difficult to
measure how MSW is managed according to the system objectives. Some data is more verifiable, such as the
waste amounts delivered to waste facilities, because material is weighed, and records are kept. Other data is not
easily measured, such as the amount of material recycled by commercial establishments. Statute requires the
MPCA to evaluate SCORE data collection and management and to make recommendations to the Legislature for
its improvement. Continued evaluations will improve the reliability of measurement tools used to assess
progress in attaining the Policy Plan’s TCMA objectives.

B. County Reporting Requirements

Progress updates will be submitted to the MPCA through annual reports required by State law. Counties share
data to account for waste that crosses county lines and also obtain data for waste that is sent outside of the
region or state to ensure that data is as complete as possible. Reports summarize trends, project and program
outcomes, and activities over the course of the previous year, including relevant data to identify progress.
Annual reports submitted to the MPCA include:

e SCORE Report/Survey is an annual report that gathers qualitative and quantitative on recycling rates, waste
reduction efforts, waste management data and practices, finance, and administration. The county will
submit the report by the required deadline each year.

e Certification Report is an annual solid waste resource recovery and land disposal report. The MPCA reviews
the report for consistency with the requirements of Minn. Stat. § 473.848 and the Policy Plan. The county
will annually submit the report by the required deadline each year.

e Local Recycling Development Grant (LRDG) Report is an accounting to the MPCA of how LRDG funds were
used in county programs and efforts. The county will submit the report by the required deadline each year.

o Household Hazardous Waste Report provides the MPCA with data on the amount and type of HHW
collected during the previous year. Financial data and the number of county and out-of-county households
served are reported. The county will submit the report by the required deadline each year.

e Annual Report provides the MPCA with a progress report on Plan implementation, including timelines for
implementation and partners involved. Information submitted includes work and activities completed and
priorities planned for the following year. The county will submit the report annually by the required
deadline.

C. County Oversight of the Private Sector, Municipalities, and Program Partners
The solid waste management system serving Dakota County is comprised of both public- and private-sector
services. State law includes a preference for private-sector ownership and operation of solid waste facilities
(Minn. Stat. §§ 473.803 and 115A.46). Therefore, the private sector (both public and not-for-profit

. DRAFT Dakota County Solid Waste Management Plan: 2024-2044
Appendix D: Performance and Accountability, Page 59



Draft for Review by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency: October 29, 2024

organizations) plays a critical role in carrying out solid waste functions within the county and directly influences
the ability of the county to achieve Policy Plan objectives and meet statutory requirements.

Minn. Stat. § 473.803 indicates:

A county may include in its solid waste management master plan and in its plan for county land disposal
abatement a determination that the private sector will achieve, either in part or in whole, the goals and
requirements of sections § 473.149 and § 473.803, as long as the county:

(1) retains active oversight over the efforts of the private sector and monitors performance to ensure
compliance with the law and the goals and standards in the metropolitan policy plan and the county
master plan;

(2) continues to meet its responsibilities under the law for ensuring proper waste management,
including, at a minimum, enforcing waste management law, providing waste education, promoting
waste reduction, and providing its residents the opportunity to recycle waste materials; and

(3) continues to provide all required reports on the county's progress in meeting the waste management
goals and standards of this chapter and chapter 115A.

The tools Dakota County uses to hold the private sector, municipalities, and program partners accountable

include:

1. Regulation — through assuring compliance with county ordinances and, as appropriate, state laws that relate
to solid waste management.

2. Monitoring and reporting — by gathering information from entities to monitor actions related to the solid
waste system and Plan implementation.

3. Contracts/Agreements — through assuring compliance with voluntary agreements entered into between
Dakota County and other entities.

The county implements oversight of the private sector providing waste management services, municipalities
implementing waste abatement programs, and program partners receiving funding or services to implement
projects through the following:

e Solid waste facilities: license and reporting requirements. All landfills, transfer stations, yard waste, and
organics management facilities provide data on the amounts and types of waste they receive as part of their
annual reports to the county. All waste management facilities in Dakota County are privately-owned.
Through regulation and reporting requirements, facilities are accountable.

The county establishes and collects host fees from MSW landfills and to support landfill abatement
programs.

Dakota County Ordinance No. 110 requires licensing and reporting for all landfills, recycling facilities,
special waste storage facilities, energy recovery facilities, transfer stations, infectious waste facilities,
and compost facilities. It also requires all commercial generators to report recycling and municipal solid
waste data.

All solid waste facilities are licensed to monitor compliance with environmental and public health
requirements. Landfills, recycling facilities, and compost facilities are inspected for compliance. The
county has authority to issue penalties for non-compliance.

Landfills and transfer stations report waste sources by municipality. Materials recovery facilities (for
recyclables) report the amount of incoming waste and how much waste is separated for recycling. The
county will update facility report forms, as necessary, to ensure relevant and accurate data is submitted.

Standard for approval of licenses and reports: The county will approve solid waste facility licenses and
reports if they meet Dakota County Ordinance No. 110 requirements.

. DRAFT Dakota County Solid Waste Management Plan: 2024-2044
Appendix D: Performance and Accountability, Page 60



Draft for Review by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency: October 29, 2024

Procedures:

- Required License and Report: The county will provide a license application and report forms and
notify regulated facilities of license and reporting obligations and submittal deadlines, as specified in
Dakota County Ordinance No. 110. The county provides the forms and instructions for completion.

- County Review and Approval: The county will review and approve applications and reports if they
are determined to be accurate and meet Dakota County Ordinance No. 110 requirements. If
applications or report forms are incomplete or inaccurate, the county will work with the facility on a
complete submittal or can deny them.

Waste hauler license and reporting requirements: Haulers must report the amount of residential and
commercial recyclables hauled and the number of accounts that they serve, by city. Haulers are
accountable to Plan objectives through Dakota County Ordinance No. 110 and licensing. Dakota County
Ordinance No. 110 establishes standards for collection and transportation of solid waste and recyclable
materials in the county. Standards include requirements for licensing, reporting, providing the opportunity
to recycle, record keeping, collection fee structure, equipment and operations requirements, standardized
customer education, standardized billing, and a prohibition for mixing MSW and source-separated
recyclables. The county enforces Dakota County Ordinance No. 110 by licensing MSW haulers. The license
requirement includes a checklist to report which recyclable materials each hauler accepts and the frequency
of collection. The county provides the application form and instructions for completeness that outline the
information and communicates to waste haulers on the required submittal dates. In addition, licensed
haulers are required to report information about collection and processing of recyclable materials. Effective
2017, haulers report residential and commercial waste collection data directly to the MPCA. The county will
work with the MPCA to ensure accurate data is submitted. In addition, Dakota County Ordinance No. 110
has long-required haulers to submit collection data to the county. County forms require the number of
accounts per city and total tons collected by material. The residential form also collects the number of
multifamily accounts. The county will monitor the ongoing need for haulers to continue to submit data
directly to the county given the change in the MPCA collection of hauler data. Licensing and reporting holds
haulers accountable for Plan objectives to implement recycling programs.

Standard for approval of licenses and reports: The county will approve hazardous waste hauler licenses
and reports if they meet Dakota County Ordinance No. 110 and regional hauler licensing requirements.

Procedures:

- Required License and Report: The county will collaborate with regional partners, as appropriate, to
annually develop a license application and notify haulers of license and license obligations specified
in Dakota Ordinance No. 110. The County will notify haulers of reporting obligations specified in
Dakota County Ordinance No. 110 and will collaborate with the state to compare state and county
data submitted by haulers. Application and report forms outline information and data that is
required to be submitted.

- County Review and Approval: The County will review and approve applications and reports if they
are determined to be accurate. If applications or forms are incomplete or inaccurate, the County will
work with the hauler to complete an accurate submittal or can deny the application/reports.

Hazardous waste generators and facilities: license and reporting requirements: Regulated generators and
facilities report the amount of waste generated and managed, sorted by hazard category, and waste type.
Private-sector generators are accountable to Plan objectives based on their status as hazardous waste
generators. Hazardous waste generators are accountable through Ordinance 111 which establishes
standards based on generator size for training, licensing, generating, storing, processing, and managing
hazardous waste in Dakota County. The County licenses, inspects, and trains hazardous waste generators
and facilities. Licensing is renewed annually. Inspection and training frequency depends on size. Large and

. DRAFT Dakota County Solid Waste Management Plan: 2024-2044
Appendix D: Performance and Accountability, Page 61



Draft for Review by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency: October 29, 2024

small generators are inspected every year, very small quantity generators every two years, and minimal
quantity generators every five years. Inspections and training requirements hold private-sector hazardous
waste generators accountable for meeting Plan objectives for proper hazardous waste management.

Standard for approval of licenses and reports: The County will approve hazardous waste generator and
facility licenses and reports if they meet Ordinance 111 requirements.

Procedures:

- Required License and Report: The County will annually provide a license application and report
forms and notify generators and facilities of license and reporting obligations and submittal
deadlines, as specified in Ordinance 111. Forms outline information and data that is required to be
submitted.

- County Review and Approval: The County will review and approve applications and reports if they
are determined to be accurate. If applications or forms are incomplete or inaccurate, the County will
work with the generator or facility to complete an accurate submittal or can deny the
application/reports.

e Solid waste generators: reporting requirements: Regulated commercial generators (e.g., businesses) report
the amount of waste generated and managed and waste type. Commercial solid waste generators are
accountable through Dakota County Ordinance No. 110 which establishes standards for reporting and
implementing recycling best practices (i.e., co-locating containers, collecting designated recyclables, labeling
containers with standardized labels, training employees) and larger generators of organics must collect
back-of-house food scraps following bet practices. The County inspects commercial solid waste generators,
prioritizing those that generate large volumes of food scraps.

Standard for approval of licenses and reports: The County will approve commercial solid waste
generator reports if they meet Dakota County Ordinance No. 110 requirements.

Procedures:

- Required License and Report: The County will annually provide a report form and notify generators
of reporting obligations and submittal deadlines, as specified in Dakota County Ordinance No. 110.
Forms outline information and data that is required to be submitted.

- County Review and Approval: The County will review and approve reports if they are determined to
be accurate. If forms are incomplete or inaccurate, the County will work with the generator to
complete an accurate submittal or can deny the report.

¢ Municipalities: reporting requirements

a.

Community Waste Abatement Grant Program. Municipalities in suburban areas report progress toward
achieving waste abatement objectives and Plan requirements, in accordance with Community Waste
Abatement Grant Program JPAs. Dakota County Ordinance No. 110 requires all municipalities to have a
solid waste abatement program in compliance with the Plan.

Community Waste Abatement Grant Program dollars are distributed to each suburban city based on
annual work plans. To receive funds, suburban municipalities annually submit an application, work plan,
and budget. Funds must be used for residential recycling programs, education and outreach, and priority
issues indicated in the JPAs. Municipalities must submit a reports to the County with qualitative and
guantitative measurements resulting from work plan projects and programs. Work plans focus on
meeting several Plan objectives: outreach and education, recycling and other waste abatement
activities. The Annual Report is used to measure performance. If a municipality fails to meet Dakota

. DRAFT Dakota County Solid Waste Management Plan: 2024-2044
Appendix D: Performance and Accountability, Page 62



Draft for Review by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency: October 29, 2024

County Ordinance No. 110 or JPA requirements the County can implement a program on the
municipality’s behalf, request the return of funds, or both.

An excerpt of Dakota County Ordinance No. 110 for a municipal solid waste abatement program is
below:

16.01 MUNICIPALITY SOLID WASTE ABATEMENT PROGRAM.

A. Each municipality shall have a solid waste abatement program. Each municipality's program
must:

1. Be consistent with the County Solid Waste Master Plan; and

2. Ensure the opportunity to recycle exists for all residents and commercial generators.
3. Deliver solid waste abatement messaging as determined by the Department.

4. Support the implementation of the County Solid Waste Master Plan.

B. B. ByJanuary 1, 2021, each municipality with a population over 10,000 shall enact or modify and
enforce an ordinance that must:

1. Be consistent with and no less restrictive than this ordinance.

2. Require property owners of multi-unit residential buildings to comply with section 16.03,
except for 16.03 (A) (5).

3. Require event sponsors, owners and operators of large event venues with organics to
comply with section 16.05.

C. If a municipality does not maintain a solid waste abatement program, the county may
implement a solid waste abatement program in that municipality consistent with the county's
solid waste master plan and this ordinance.

D. The county may recover its costs for developing, implementing, and operating a solid waste
abatement program including, but not limited to, administrative, monitoring and public
education costs, from any municipality or group of municipalities, which does not maintain a
solid waste abatement program. Costs may be pursued through a service charge established
pursuant to Minn. Stat. §400.08 or through such other means deemed appropriate by the county
board.

E. Each municipality shall submit a completed annual report to the department on a form
prescribed by the department by February 15 of the following year. Failure to submit a report
shall be construed by the department as a failure on the part of the municipality to have a solid
waste abatement program and shall be subject to sections 16.01(C) and 16.01(D).

Standard for approval of funding and annual report: The County will approve the annual funding if
grant agreement and Dakota County Ordinance No. 110 requirements are met, or if municipalities
demonstrate progress toward grant agreement objectives, as documented in the required Final Report.

Procedures:

- Required Report: The County will annually provide a Final Report and notify municipalities of
reporting obligations and reporting submittal deadlines, as outlined in the grant agreement. Forms
will outline information and data that is required to be submitted.

- County Review and Approval: The County will review the Final Report to determine if the
municipality has met grant agreement requirements. If the municipality fails to meet requirements,
the County will notify the municipality and work with them to identify action steps to achieve grant
agreement requirements. If the municipality continues to fail to make adequate progress, County

. DRAFT Dakota County Solid Waste Management Plan: 2024-2044
Appendix D: Performance and Accountability, Page 63



Draft for Review by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency: October 29, 2024

staff will discuss options with the municipality and the County Board for remedial actions that
include implementing the program on behalf of the community, having the municipality return
funding to the County, or both.

b. Rural Solid Waste Abatement Grant Program. The County provides funding to interested rural
townships and the rural cities to implement local waste abatement projects and programs consistent
with this Plan. Interested municipalities must enter into a grant agreement/contract with the county for
funding.

Standards for approval of contracts: The Guidelines establish eligible items and funding amounts for
activities (e.g., collections, resident education). The County will approve grant funding in application’s if
projects meet eligible activities and funding amounts identified in Guidelines.

Procedures:

- Required Program Reports: The contract requires that participating municipalities submit an annual
application. Grant Guidelines establish eligible activities and funding. Funding is performance-
based and uses a reimbursable model. Reimbursement must demonstrate proof of purchase and
payment of County-approved items.

- County Review and Approval: The County will review and approve the program forms to determine
if they meet Guidelines and contract obligations. If they do not, and until any issues are resolved,
the County will not issue reimbursement for project items.

School Waste Prevention and Recycling Grant Program: reporting requirements: The County requires
schools to enter into a grant agreement/contract with the County to participate in program to establish
program roles and expectations. The agreement supports Plan goals to implement and document results of
waste reduction and improved recycling (including organics recovery) actions.

Standards for approval of contracts: The contract establishes program eligibility and requirements to
use County technical assistance to ensure schools follow best management practices (e.g., paired,
labeled, color-coded bins, green teams, update internal policies) and measure waste diversion progress.

Procedures:

For the contract to be approved by the County for participation in the program, the school must agree
to comply with agreement obligations. The County works closely with school participants to ensure
program expectations are achieved. If they are not, the County can remove any waste management
system infrastructure (e.g., recycling bins) provided by the County.

Multifamily Recycling Program: reporting requirements: The County requires multifamily properties to
enter into a contract with the County to participate in the Multifamily Recycling Program. The program
provides recycling containers and other recycling and waste reduction equipment up to $10,000 in value per
location, along with free on-site technical assistance, labels, signage, and education for residents and staff.
Program guidelines and contract language support Plan goals to implement and document results of
recycling improvements. Guidelines establish funding eligibility, details on how the funding will be used,
reporting requirements, and project plans.

Standards for approval of contracts and program report forms: For contracts to be approved by the
County, waste abatement activities identified in the required County-developed application must be
consistent with the program’s guidelines and contract. Once the contract is approved for program

. DRAFT Dakota County Solid Waste Management Plan: 2024-2044
Appendix D: Performance and Accountability, Page 64



Draft for Review by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency: October 29, 2024

participation, program staff assist the multifamily property to ensure successful implementation of the
contract activities.

Procedures:

- Required Program Reports: The contract requires that participating multifamily properties complete
a final report that demonstrates fulfillment of the project plans outlined in the application and
contract.

- County Review and Approval: The County will review and approve the program forms to determine
if they meet program guidelines and contract obligations.

Agreements/contracts are used with the private sector to provide incentives to support Plan goals and establish
mechanisms for reporting:

e Business Recycling Incentive Program: reporting requirements: The County requires businesses and
organizations to enter into a contract with the County to participate in the Business Recycling Incentive
Program. The program provides up to $10,000 for eligible businesses subject for implementation of eligible
activities identified in program guidelines. Program guidelines and contract language support Plan goals to
implement and document results of waste reduction and improved recycling (including organics recovery).
Guidelines establish funding eligibility, details on how the funding will be used, reporting requirements (e.g.,
Application, Baseline Report, Final Report), and requirements to use County technical assistance to ensure
businesses follow best management practices (e.g., use standardized color-coded bins and labels). The
County will reimburse the business for County-approved items identified in the contract, following proof of
payment by the business.

Standards for approval of contracts and program report forms: For contracts and reports to be
approved by the County, waste abatement activities identified in the required County-developed
Application must be consistent with the program’s Guidelines and Contract. Once the contract is
approved for program participation, the business is required to submit reports to demonstrate diversion
improvements in their waste management program.

Procedures:

- Required Program Reports: The contract requires that participating businesses complete a Baseline
and Final Report and identifies the submittal timeline and report content requirements. Guidelines
establish funding eligibility, details on how the funding will be used, reporting requirements, and
project plans. Forms outline information and data that is required to be submitted. Baseline Reports
require reporting on quantitative (pre-program trash and recycling volumes at the businesses) and
qualitative measures (general awareness of recycling). The Final Report must be submitted within 12
months of program participation (when project is complete). In addition, for payment of County
funds for items identified in the contract, the businesses must submit a Reimbursement Form that
demonstrates proof of purchase and payment of County-approved items.

- County Review and Approval: The County will review and approve the program forms to determine
if they meet Guidelines and contract obligations. If they do not, and until any issues are resolved,
the County will not approve reports and will not issue reimbursement for project items purchased
by the business.

The County will individually, and with state and regional partners, routinely evaluate aforementioned forms and
related measurement requirements. The County will revise forms as necessary to ensure data is accurate and
relevant and assist in reporting of Plan implementation.

. DRAFT Dakota County Solid Waste Management Plan: 2024-2044
Appendix D: Performance and Accountability, Page 65



Draft for Review by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency: October 29, 2024

Appendix E: Plan Strategies and Projected Implementation Timing

The tables below show the Plan strategies, planned implementation schedule and interested parties that may
have a role to support strategy implementation. Projected timing is provided for each required and selected
optional strategy from the Policy Plan and for each continuing county strategy. Strategy implementation
timelines align with the general timelines identified in the Policy Plan.

Individual implementation and prioritization of strategies are subject to County Board approval through annual

budgeting and work planning processes.

Table 14: Dakota County Solid Waste Management Plan Strategies and Projected Implementation Timing

()
. A Policy 2|32 Projected .
Improving the Reliability of the Data = S . Interested Parties
Plan # c 2 | 2 | Timing
o X Q
(&) w 2
Required Strategies
1. Increase compliance with Hauler reporting per . Haulers, industry,
. 1 X Ongoing
Minn. Stat. § 115A.93. county staff
2. Provide required county reporting. 2 X Ongoing County staff
Selected Optional Strategies (7 points)
3. Improve recycling data collection at businesses . County staff,
within the county. (7 points) 4 Ongoing businesses
li 5 j d
°
Education and Regional Planning Policy g c P.’ oj.eCte Interested Parties
Plan # c s 2 | Timing
o X Q
() w 2
Required Strategies
4. Participate in an annual joint commissioner/staff
meeting on solid waste. 9 « Annually County staff and board
5. Commit to standardized outreach and education. 10 X Ongoing C°E‘”ty staff, MRFs,
residents
6. Engage in efficient and value-added . County staff, SW facility
. . 11 X Ongoing
infrastructure planning. operators
7. Develop plans for large facility closures to reduce County staff, SW facility
landfill reliance. 12 x| 2029 operators
8. Participate with the Product Stewardship
Committee under the Solid Waste Administrators 60 X Ongoing County staff
Association (SWAA).
Continuing County Strategies
9. Provide messages and education programs to all
audiences using communication methods most X Ongoing County staff
effective for the intended audience.
. DRAFT Dakota County Solid Waste Management Plan: 2024-2044

Appendix E: Strategy Tables, Page 66




Draft for Review by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency: October 29, 2024

()
. Polic 2| T Projected .

Waste Reduction and Reuse i = = - j. Interested Parties

Plan # c 8 | 3 | Timing
o 3 ]
(&) wi 2

Required Strategies

10. Provide grants for or access to software that County staff, restaurants,
can track food waste. 13 X 2027 cafeterias

11. Establish partnerships between food rescue County staff, food rescue
organizations and restaurants/stores to 14 X 2026 orgs, restaurants, grocery
increase food rescue. stores

12. Launch bi-annual sustainable consumption .
challenges for residents. 15 X 2025 County staff, residents

13. Implement a formal county sustainable .
purchasing policy using MPCA guidance. 16 X Ongoing County staff, vendors

14. Participate in Responsible Public Purchasing . f
Council meetings. 17 X Ongoing County staff, MPCA

15. Offer grants or rebates for organizations to ft
transition to reusable food and beverage 19 X Ongoing County st.a ’ resta.ura?ts,d
service ware. organizations serving foo

16. Offer grants for waste reduction, reuse, and County staff, repair and

. 20 X 2026 .
repair. reuse businesses

17. Implement a green meeting policy. 21 X Ongoing County staff

Selected Optional Strategies (27 points total)

18. Work with health inspectors to educate County staff, MN
restaurants and other establishments that Department of Health,
have excess prepared food to donate. (7 18 x| 2025 restaurants and other food
points) producers

19. Join and/or actively participate in a reuse
network, like Reuse Minnesota, to provide
county and city staff with learning 24 X Ongoing County staff
opportunities to broaden their reuse
expertise. (6 points)

20. Establish a Repair Ambassador program, like
the Recycler/Composters (RCAs) Ambassador 25 X Ongoing County staff, residents
programs. (7 points)

21. Establish a reuse location for residential drop- . .
off and pick-up. (7 points) 26 X Ongoing County staff, residents

Continuing County Strategies

22. Implement residential waste reduction and . .
reuse programs and opportunities. X Ongoing County staff, residents

23. Implement municipal, school and commercial L
waste reduction and reuse programs and X Ongoing County Stafff municipalities,
opportunities. schools, businesses

. DRAFT Dakota County Solid Waste Management Plan: 2024-2044

Appendix E: Strategy Tables, Page 67




Draft for Review by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency: October 29, 2024

()
Recycling and Organics Management Strategies Policy = ° Projected .
with Collection Best Practices Plan # £ § 5 Timing Interested Parties
S| & | 2z
Required Strategies
24. Collect recyclables, organics and trash on the 30 y 2026 County staff, residents,
same day. haulers
25. Recruit a minimum of 12 commercial businesses
a year to recycle at least three materials from . County staff,
their operations and promote the environmental 35 X Ongoing businesses
and resource benefits.
26. Establish mandatory pre-processing of waste at Haulers, landfill
resource recovery facilities and landfills by 2030. 36 X By 2030 ope'rators, transfer
station operators
27. Provide assistance to multi-family properties to . County staff, property
improve recycling. 37 X Ongoing managers
28. Make residential curbside organics collection )
available in cities with a population greater than 40 X By 2030 County staff, residents,
5,000 by 2030. haulers
29. Expand backyard composting outreach and ) .
resources for residents. 41 X Ongoing County staff, residents
30. Require management of organics from large . County st'aff,
commercial food generators by 2033. 42 X Ongoing commerecial food
generators
31. Require food-derived compost in county .
construction and landscaping projects. 55 X 2028 County staff, industry
Selected Optional Strategies (14 points)
32. Collect recycling weekly by 2030. (7 points) 31 X Ongoing County staff, residents,
haulers
33. Establish additional organics recycling drop off . .
sites. (7 points) 43 X Ongoing County staff, residents
Continuing County Strategies
34. Improve the consistency and accountability of « Oneoin County staff, waste
waste materials collection. going industry, municipalities
35. Support the collection of household items that . County staff, waste
. X Ongoing . s
are challenging to recycle. industry, municipalities
36. Ensure the opportunity to recycle. X Ongoing County staff
37. Provide support to schools to improve recycling
in their operations through the school recycling X Ongoing County staff, schools
program.
38. Implement recycling and organics diversion at County staff,
venues. X Ongoing municipalities, event
coordinators
39. Provide organics recovery/diversion
opportunities in County operations, including in X Ongoing County staff
public and employee areas.
. DRAFT Dakota County Solid Waste Management Plan: 2024-2044

Appendix E: Strategy Tables, Page 68




Draft for Review by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency: October 29, 2024

()
Policy 2| Projected .
Waste-to-Ener = = . Interested Parties
&Y Plan # = S 5 Timing
S| & | 2z
Required Strategies
40. Counties must continue to support the .
implementation of Minn. Stat. § 473.848 58 Ongoing C0l',|r1ty staff, industry,
Restriction on Disposal. facility operators
S
- Polic T Projected .
Landfilling o £ = . j. Interested Parties
Plan # c S 2 | Timing
o 3 Q
(&) w 2
Required Strategies
41. Require waste composition study at least once
every five years at all landfills that are located 3 X 2029 Landfill operators
within your county.
Continuing County Strategies
42. Regulate solid waste generators, haulers, ff
facilities, generators to achieve compliance and . County sta ’ waste
protect public health and the environment, in X Ongoing generathrs, industry
accordance with County Ordinances. and facility operators
43. Regulate hazardous waste generators and
facilities to protect public health and the . County staff,
environment, in accordance with County X Ongoing generators
Ordinances.
44. Provide opportunities to recycle and properly . .
. . 0] County staff, dent
manage non-MSW that is banned from disposal. X ngong ounty statl, residents
45. Regulate non-MSW haulers and facilities in Ongoin County staff, haulers,
accordance with County Ordinance. going facility operators
()
.. . Poli 2| T Projected .
Household Hazardous Waste and Toxicity Reduction olicy £ = r Oj.ec € Interested Parties
Plan # c S 5 Timing
S| & | z
Required Strategies
46. Encourage retailers to increase consumer " "
awareness of responsible end-of-life handling for 61 X 2026 County staff, retai
products containing lithium-ion batteries. store operators
47. Continue participation in the reciprocal use . County staff, metro
. . 62 X Ongoing .
agreement for HHW collection sites. counties
48. Partner with cities to increase participation in . County staff,
. 63 X Ongoing e e
HHW collection. municipalities
. DRAFT Dakota County Solid Waste Management Plan: 2024-2044

Appendix E: Strategy Tables, Page 69




Draft for Review by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency: October 29, 2024

Household Hazardous Waste and Toxicity Reduction | Policy Projected | Interested Parties
Plan # g - Timing
= c
L d o ;
c a
S| & |2
Selected Optional Strategies (9 points)
49. In partnership with Scott County, increase drop
off opportunities for problem materials, Alterna MN Legislature, Dakota
hazardous waste management (HHW) and tive to X By 2029 and Scott counties,
hazardous waste at a second permanent county 64 residents
facility by 2027. (9 points)
Continuing County Strategies
50. Continue to provide year-round drop-off site
(e.g., The Recycling Zone) to collect problem
materials and hazardous and household X Ongoing County staff, residents
hazardous waste from residents.
| 5 d
Poli © Project
Sustainable Building and Deconstruction olcy £ c .rOJ.ec € Interested Parties
Plan # c s 2 | Timing
o X Q
() w 2
Required Strategies
51. Implement the use of a Building Material . County staff, county
65 X Ongoing
Management Plan. contractors
Selected Optional Strategies (24 points)
52. Host a building material collection event or 7 2027 County staff, residents,
swap. (8 points) X municipalities
53. Provide deconstruction training. (8 points) 69 x | 2027 County staff, builders
and contractors
| 5 d
Poli ° Project
Wood Waste olcy = = r ol.ec € Interested Parties
Plan # c 8 | 3 | Timing
o 3 (]
(&) wi 2
Required Strategies
County staff, yard
54. Develop plans to prevent and manage wood waste processors,
waste in each county and throughout the region. 45 X 2025 municipalities, tree
care companies
55. Promote existing programs that use EAB-affected County staff, local
wood for furniture, home goods, flooring and 46 X 2026 artisans and producers
other purposes. of wood products
56. Composting and mulching operations must Through County sjcaff,
continue to be supported. 47 X 2032 compgstlng and
mulching operators
Selected Optional Strategies (9 points)
57. Expand composting and mulching capacity .
beyond existing markets. (5 points) 22 X 2027 County staff, industry
. DRAFT Dakota County Solid Waste Management Plan: 2024-2044

Appendix E: Strategy Tables, Page 70




Draft for Review by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency: October 29, 2024

()
) Poli 2| o Projected .
Cost and Finance MY e | B roleCtee | Interested Parties
Plan # c S 5 Timing
S| & | 2z
Selected Optional Strategies (4 points)
58. Implement additional fees to better account for . .
the externalities of land disposal. (4 points) >3 X Ongoing County staff, industry
Continuing County Strategies
59. Collect and manage waste fees to implement . County staff, industry,
waste management programs. X Ongoing generators
60. Provide performance-based grant funding and
resources to municipalities to implement landfill . County staff,
abatement programs within their operations and X Ongoing municipalities
in the community.
61. Institute funding incentives to divert waste from Ongoi County staff,
- X ngoin .
landfill disposal. gong generators, industry
62. Implement long-term revenue sources for landfill
. County staff,
abatement programs that encourage waste X Ongoing !
diversion generators, industry
. DRAFT Dakota County Solid Waste Management Plan: 2024-2044

Appendix E: Strategy Tables, Page 71




Draft for Review by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency: October 29, 2024

Appendix F: Checklist of Statutory County Management Plan Requirements
Metropolitan counties are required by Minn. Stat. § 473.803 to submit a revised Plan to the MPCA for approval.
Below is a list of statutorily required components and the location in the Plan where they are addressed.

Table 15: Checklist of Statutory County Plan Requirements and Location in the Dakota County Plan
STATE LAW COUNTY PLAN LOCATION IN DAKOTA COUNTY PLAN
REQUIREMENTS

County Solid Waste Master Plan to Part One: Introduction
implement the Policy Plan Section A: Introduction
Section B: Plan Purpose and Framework
Part Two: Solid Waste Management Plan
Section B: County Solid Waste Policies
Section C: Strategies and Tactics by Topic
Section D: Implementation
County solid waste activities, Appendix A: Existing Waste Management System and County Programs
functions, and facilities Section A: Waste Management Governance, Roles, and Responsibilities
Section E: Dakota County’s Waste Programs and Activities
Section G: Waste Management Facilities

Existing system of solid waste Appendix A: Existing Waste Management System and County Programs
generation, collection, processing, Section C: Waste Projection and Composition
and disposal Section D: Solid Waste Management in Dakota County

Section E: Dakota County’s Waste Programs and Activities
Section F: Collection and Transportation of Waste
Section G: Waste Management Facilities

Proposed mechanisms for Part Two: Solid Waste Management Plan
complying with the recycling Section B: County Solid Waste Policies
requirements of § 115A.551 Section C: Strategies and Tactics by Topic

Subsection 2: Education and Regional Planning

Subsection 4. Recycling and Organics Management with Collection Best
Practices

Subsection 7: Household Hazardous Waste and Toxicity Reduction
Subsection 11. Landfilling

Proposed mechanisms for the Part Two: Solid Waste Management Plan

household hazardous waste Section B: County Solid Waste Policies

management requirements of § Section C: Strategies and Tactics by Topic

115A.96, subd. 6 Subsection 7. Household Hazardous Waste and Toxicity Reduction

Existing and proposed county and Part Two: Solid Waste Management Plan

municipal ordinances and license Section B: County Solid Waste Policies

and permit requirements relating to  Section C: Strategies and Tactics by Topic

solid waste facilities and solid waste Subsection 1. Improving the Reliability of the Data

generation, collection, processing, Subsection 2. Education and Regional Planning

and disposal Subsection 4. Recycling and Organics Management with Collection Best
Practices

Subsection 6. Landfilling

Subsection 7. Household Hazardous Waste

Subsection 9. Wood Waste

Subsection 10. Cost and Finance
Appendix A: Existing Waste Management System and County Programs
Section A: Waste Management Governance, Roles, and Responsibilities
Section E: Dakota County’s Waste Programs and Activities
Section F: Collection and Transportation of Waste
Section G: Waste Management Facilities

. DRAFT Dakota County Solid Waste Management Plan: 2024-2044
Appendix F: Cross-Reference of Statutory Plan Requirements, Page 72



Draft for Review by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency: October 29, 2024

STATE LAW COUNTY PLAN
REQUIREMENTS

Existing or proposed municipal,
county, or private solid waste
facilities and collection services
within the county together with
schedules of existing rates and
charges to users and statements as
to the extent to which such facilities
and services will or may be used to
implement the Policy Plan

Any solid waste facility which a
county owns or plans to acquire,
construct, or improve together with
statements as to the planned
method, estimated cost and time of
acquisition, proposed procedures for
operation and maintenance of the
facility

A proposal for the use of each
facility after it is no longer needed
or usable as a waste facility

The master plan shall, to the extent
practicable and consistent with the
achievement of other public policies
and purposes, encourage ownership
and operation of solid waste
facilities by private industry

For solid waste facilities owned or
operated by public agencies or
supported primarily by a public
agency, the master plan shall
contain criteria and standards to
protect comparable private and
public facilities already existing in
the area from displacement unless
the displacement is required in
order to achieve waste
management objectives identified in
this plan

Include a land disposal abatement
element to implement the
Metropolitan Land Disposal
Abatement Plan adopted under §
473.149, subd. 2d (consistency with
the “Policy Plan”)

LOCATION IN DAKOTA COUNTY PLAN

Part Two: Solid Waste Management Plan
Section C: Strategies and Tactics by Topic
Subsection 2. Education and Regional Planning

Subsection 4. Recycling and Organics Management with Collection Best

Practices
Subsection 5. Waste-to-Energy
Subsection 6. Landfilling
Subsection 7. Household Hazardous Waste
Subsection 9. Wood Waste
Subsection 10. Cost and Finance

Appendix A: Existing Waste Management System and County Programs
Section A: Waste Management Governance, Roles, and Responsibilities

Section E: Dakota County’s Solid Waste Programs and Activities
Section F: Collection and Transportation of Waste
Section G: Waste Management Facilities

N/A - Dakota County does not own or plan to acquire any solid waste facilities.

N/A - Dakota County does not own or plan to acquire any solid waste facilities

Part Two: Solid Waste Management Plan
Section C: Strategies and Tactics by Topic
Subsection 5. Waste-to-Energy
Subsection 9. Wood Waste
Subsection 10. Cost and Finance

N/A - Dakota County does not own or plan to acquire facilities

Part Two: Solid Waste Management Plan

Section B: County Solid Waste Policies

Section C: Strategies and Tactics by Topic
Subsection 1. Improving the Reliability of the Data
Subsection 2. Education and Regional Planning
Subsection 3. Waste Reduction and Reuse

DRAFT Dakota County Solid Waste Management Plan: 2024-2044
Appendix F: Cross-Reference of Statutory Plan Requirements, Page 73



Draft for Review by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency: October 29, 2024

STATE LAW COUNTY PLAN
REQUIREMENTS

Implement the local abatement
objectives for the county and cities
within the county as stated in the
Metropolitan Abatement Plan

Include specific and quantifiable
county objectives, based on the
objectives in the Metropolitan
Abatement Plan, for abating to the
greatest feasible and prudent extent
the need for and practice of land
disposal of mixed municipal solid
waste and of specific components of
the solid waste stream generated in
the county, stated in six-year
increments for a period of at least
20 years from the date of the Policy
Plan revisions

Include measurable performance
standards for local abatement of
solid waste through resource
recovery and waste reduction and
separation programs and activities
for the county as a whole and for
statutory or home rule charter cities
of the first, second, and third class,
respectively, in the county, stated in
six-year increments for a period of
at least 20 years from the date of
the Policy Plan revisions
Performance standards must
implement the metropolitan and
county abatement objectives

Include performance standards and
procedures to be used by the county

LOCATION IN DAKOTA COUNTY PLAN

Subsection 4. Recycling and Organics Management with Collection Best
Practices
Subsection 5. Waste-to-Energy
Subsection 6. Landfilling
Subsection 7. Household Hazardous Waste
Subsection 8. Sustainable Building and Deconstruction
Subsection 9. Wood Waste
Subsection 10. Cost and Finance
Part One: Introduction
Section B: Plan Purpose and Framework
Part Two: Solid Waste Management Plan
Section B: County Solid Waste Policies
Part Two: Solid Waste Management Plan
Section C: Strategies and Tactics by Topic
Subsection 1. Improving the Reliability of the Data
Subsection 2. Education and Regional Planning
Subsection 3. Waste Reduction and Reuse
Subsection 4. Recycling and Organics Management with Collection Best
Practices
Subsection 5. Waste-to-Energy
Subsection 6. Landfilling
Subsection 7. Household Hazardous Waste
Subsection 8. Sustainable Building and Deconstruction
Subsection 9. Wood Waste
Subsection 10. Cost and Finance
Appendix E: Plan Strategies and Projected Implementation Timing
Part One: Introduction
Section B: Management Plan Purpose and Framework
Part Two: Solid Waste Management Plan
Section D: Implementation
Appendix D: Performance and Accountability
Section B: County Reporting Requirements
Section C: County Oversight of the Private Sector, Municipalities, and Program
Partners

Part One: Introduction
Section B: Plan Purpose and Framework
Part Two: Solid Waste Management Plan
Section B: County Solid Waste Policies
Section D: Implementation
Subsection 4. Performance and Accountability
Appendix D: Performance and Accountability
Section A: Evaluating Progress
Section C: County Oversight of the Private Sector, Municipalities, and Program
Partners
Part Two: Solid Waste Management Plan
Section D: Implementation

DRAFT Dakota County Solid Waste Management Plan: 2024-2044
Appendix F: Cross-Reference of Statutory Plan Requirements, Page 74



Draft for Review by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency: October 29, 2024

STATE LAW COUNTY PLAN
REQUIREMENTS

in determining annually under
subdivision 3 whether a city within
the county has implemented the
plan and satisfied the performance
standards for local abatement

Plans for required use of resource
recovery facilities. Plans proposing
designation shall evaluate the
benefits of the proposal, including
the cost of the proposal (direct and
indirect) and adverse long-term
effects.
The County Plan may include a
determination (delegate) that the
private sector will achieve, either in
part or whole, the goals of the
Policy Plan and Master Plan:
a. County monitors performance
b. County continues to meet
responsibilities under law
(education, opportunity to
recycle, promote waste
reduction)
c. Continues to provide required
annual reports
Recycling Implementation Strategy
that identifies how to reach
recycling goals along with
mechanisms for providing financial
incentives to generators to reduce
the amount of waste and to
separate recyclables).
(Minn. Stat. § 115A.55)

LOCATION IN DAKOTA COUNTY PLAN

Subsection 4. Performance and Accountability

Appendix D: Performance and Accountability

Section A: Evaluating Progress

Section B: County Reporting Requirements

Section C: County Oversight of the Private Sector, Municipalities, and Program
Partners

N/A — Dakota County does not currently or plan to designate waste to a resource

recovery facility.

N/A — Dakota County is not delegating Plan goal achievement to the private
sector.

Part One: Introduction

Section B: Master Plan Purpose and Framework

Part Two: Solid Waste Landfill Abatement Plan

Section C: Strategies and Tactics, and Timing
Subsection 1. Improving the Reliability of the Data
Subsection 2. Education and Regional Planning
Subsection 3. Waste Reduction and Reuse
Subsection 4. Recycling and Organics Management with Collection Best

Practices

Subsection 6. Landfilling
Subsection 7. Household Hazardous Waste
Subsection 8. Sustainable Building and Deconstruction
Subsection 9. Wood Waste

Section D: Implementation

DRAFT Dakota County Solid Waste Management Plan: 2024-2044
Appendix F: Cross-Reference of Statutory Plan Requirements, Page 75



DAKOTA COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION

DATE: 9/26/2024
AGENDA ITEM: Parks, Greenway, and Natural Systems 2050 Vision Plan draft vision and values
PREPARED BY: LIL LEATHAM

PURPOSE

Provide Planning Commission:

1. An update on community engagement and feedback thus far (Phase | input is ongoing and will close
September 22)

2. Opportunity to provide feedback on the draft vision and values

BACKGROUND
The project team is in the process of wrapping up the research phase and first round of community engagement
for Parks, Greenways, and Natural Systems 2050 Vision Plan.

Based on preliminary research, engagement, Dakota County Board, Parks Department staff input, the project
team has developed a draft Vision Framework of core values, vision statement, and an updated Park’s
Department mission statement for consideration. The vision statement and core values will guide development
of goals and action steps in the next phase of the project. The core values, vision statement, and updated
mission will be fine-tuned based on final Phase 1 research and community engagement findings in early October
and input from the Planning Commission, County Board, and staff.

ATTACHMENTS
1. September 2024 Interim Project Report-out

QUESTIONS
The following questions are intended to help assist in review of the packet materials.

1. Are the draft recommended values and vision reflective with research presented at the May 2024 Planning
Commission Meeting and the initial engagement findings in the attached September 20203 Interim Project
Report out?

2. Are you supportive of the draft values? Do you have suggestions?

3. Are you supportive of the draft vision? Do you have suggestions?



DAKOTA COUNTY PARKS

2050 VISION PLAN :

TULAL-LI

September 2024 Interim Project Report-out collaborative






INTRODUCTION

The TLAL-LI Collaborative team including Full Circle
Indigenous Planning + Design, Zan Associates, and
Visible City have been working closely with Dakota
County staff for several months and are nearing
conclusion of the first stage of work on the 2050
Vision Plan. Our efforts so far have focused on four
primary fronts.

1. Analyzing Dakota County, its system of parks
and natural lands, and how the community interacts
with them.

2. Projecting future change in the county and
adaptations in parks and natural lands that may be
needed to remain a vital part of the community.

3. Building deep understanding of community
values and organizational interests, concerns, needs,
and vision.

4, Translating this range of understanding
into a draft “Vision Framework” of core values,
vision statement and mission statement as well as
setting the stage for the next step in the process of
developing goals/action steps.

The following pages provide to-date snapshots of
draft Vision Framework followed by the Engagement
Snapshot. Note that the first phase of community
engagment is still in progress.

The team is working toward completing a report of
the current stage of work by early October.

Dakota County 2050 Vision Plan | September 2024 Interim Report-out 3




VISION
FRAMEWORK

CREATING A

VISION FRAMEWORK

Support the organizational mission
by expressing a VISION for the future,
formulating the g&ls to achieve it,

and articulating the COre values,

by which the mission will be conducted.

It is around these four elements (mission, vision, goals, and values) that the Vision Framework
is constructed. The Vision Framework is intended to establish the basis for both the 2050
Vision Plan itself and the work of the organization in decades to come.

The combined Dakota County staff/Tlalli project team has committed significant effort and
thought to formulating numerous draft mission, vision, and value statements and refining
down to the proposed statements written on the following pages. The team will do the same
for goals in the next stage of the planning process. The selected words and statements are the
result of community, staff, and leadership engagement as well as analysis conducted for the
project since and even before it started this spring.

In addition to carefully choosing words and statements, the team has created an infographic
that will eventually animate in digital formats to describe the inter-relationship between the
four elements.

The following pages state the recommendation for each element and provide basic
background on the topic.

4 Dakota County 2050 Vision Plan | September 2024 Interim Report-out



Actionap le ste

[
VIS e
/91/
' O N @,}7@/)[‘

pspiration for the futyre

CORE VALUES

Community supported
ideals central to the work of
the organization

Dakota County 2050 Vision Plan | September 2024 Interim Report-out 5



€ Stepg
fo

W 4

V I s ' ON *dac/;/e

Aspiration for the futyre

CORE VALUES

Community supported
ideals central to the work of
the organization

6 Dakota County 2050 Vision Plan | September 2024 Interim Report-out



Core Values are the community-supported ideals central to the work of
the organization. They are the primary influencer in future direction and
operational conduct.

Community values were referenced in the 2030 Park System Plan
but not used in as direct a way as recommended with this process.
Recommended value statements rely heavily on input received from
community, staff, and leadership engagement.

recommended CORE VALUES

1. To CONNECT people to each other and the natural world, fostering a sense
of belonging for all.

2. To PRESERVE and protect natual spaces, ensuring a resilient and healthy
environment for future generations.

3. To INSPIRE wellbeing, wonder, adventure, and learning through engaging and
inclusive outdoor experiences.

4. To NURTURE and heal the vital relationship between people and nature.

5. To CELEBRATE the past, present, and future of our vibrant and richly diverse
communities.

Dakota County 2050 Vision Plan | September 2024 Interim Report-out 7



8 Dakota County 2050 Vision Plan | September 2024 Interim Report-out



The Mission is what the organization is charged with carrying out.

Dakota County Parks’ current mission statement is “Provide high quality
recreational and educational opportunities in harmony with natural resource
preservation and stewardship. Modification to the current statement is
recommended because 1) defining “high quality”is challenging and 2) the
current one could imply that the organization is only charged with providing

recreational and educational opportunities within a certain framework and not
charged with land protection, operations, or natural system improvements.

recommended MISSION statement

Protect and care for a connected system of parks, greenways, and natural lands
where we provide recreation, education, and cultural experiences in addition to
nurturing natural systems.

Dakota County 2050 Vision Plan | September 2024 Interim Report-out 9



CORE VALUES

Community supported
ideals central to the work of
the organization

10 Dakota County 2050 Vision Plan | September 2024 Interim Report-out



The Vision statement is an aspiration for future state of being.

Dakota County Parks’ current vision statement is “Great Places, Protected Places,
Connected Places.

Modification to the current statement is recommended to better reflect the
breadth of Dakota County Parks’work. An example is that it’s difficult to place
outdoor education and programming in the current statement.

recommended VISION statement

Dakota County Parks and Natural Lands:
Nature Protected, Community Reflected, All Are Connected.

Dakota County 2050 Vision Plan | September 2024 Interim Report-out 11



VISION

Aspiration for the future

CORE VALUES

Community supported
ideals central to the work of
the organization

12 Dakota County 2050 Vision Plan | September 2024 Interim Report-out




Goals are actionable/measurable steps toward achieving
the vision and mission.

Goals will be drafted in the next stage of the process.

Dakota County 2050 Vision Plan | September 2024 Interim Report-out 13



ENGAGEMENT SNAPSHOT

ENAGMENT
SNAPSHOT

Engagement for the project includes the broad engagement of community through online questionnaire
and pop-up events, targeted engagement through focus groups as well as engagement of Dakota County
leadership and staff. Engagement is ongoing through the end of September, at which time a full reporting of
input received and themes that emerge will be prepared

ENGAGEMENT ACTIVITIES HELD AND PLANNED INCLUDED:

Approx. No. of

Participants

On-line engagement - Social pinpoint question-

Aug 7-Sept 22

Participants

Current Park Visitors

Rambling River Center, Farmington

naire, idea board, and interatice map com- ongoing

ments 2024

Take a Kid Fishing Current Park Visitors
June 9, 2024 5

Thompson County Park

Open Door Pop-up, General Public
June 11, 2024 4

Northern Service Center

Parks Staff Team Meeting Parks Staff
June 18, 2024 25

Schaar’s Bluff Gathering Center

Canoe or Kayak Program Families participating in
June 24, 2024 7 Parks program

Lebanon Hills Regional Park

General Public
Open Door Pantry, Eagan July 2, 2024 8
Low income
General Public, Span-
Mexican Consulate, St. Paul July 3, 2024 10 ish-speaking, mostly not DC
residents

Togr de Rec, Mendota Elementary, Mendota July 9, 2024 5 Youth

Heights

Open Door Pop-up, General Public
July 16, 2024 5

Low income

14 Dakota County 2050 Vision Plan | September 2024 Interim Report-out



Approx. No. of

Participants

Name Date Participants
Community organization
July 17,2024
Wilderness in the City, Stakeholder meeting
General Public
Burnsville International Festival July 20, 2024
Mighty Machines at Wescott Library General Public,
July 23, 2024

Eagan

Families and youth

Water Play Day

Whitetail Woods Regional Park

August 2, 2024

Current Park Visitors

Outdoor Career Success

Lebanon Hills Visitor Center

August 19, 2024

Youth

Thompson County Park 50th Birthday

Thompson County Park

August 20, 2024

Current Park Visitors

Nicollet Commons Park, Burnsville

Party on the Plaza

August 22, 2024

General Public

Eagan Market Fest Community Night

August 28, 2024

General Public

Inver Grove Heights Days

Sept 8§,

2024

General public

Burnsville Festival and Fire Muster

Sept 5, 2024

General public

Interactive display, unstaffed

Apple Valley Library

Sept 13-22, 2024

General Public

Latino Conservation Week

Lebanon Hills Regional Park

Sept 14, 2024

Latino

Community Outreach Partners Focus Group

Sept 17 and

Outreach partners working
with demographic groups
underrepresented in park

Zoom Sept 19, 2024 o
visits

Somali Focus Group Sept 18, 2024 Somali

School of Environmental Studies Sept 20, 2024 Youth

Public Art + Policy + Ping Pong + Pizza Party in
a Park

Lebanon Hills Regional Park

Sept 22, 2024

Current Park Visitors

Dakota County 2050 Vision Plan | September 2024 Interim Report-out 15



ONLINE QUESTIONNAIRE HIGHLIGHTS TO-
DATE

More than 130 survey responses have been
received as of September 4. To-date, the
elements identified as most important to survey
respondents in the future park system are:

+ Nature based recreation (e.g. hiking, canoeing,
picnicking)

+ Protected and restored habitat (e.g. prairie,
woodlands, forest, wetland)

- Areas to quietly enjoy being in nature
+ Scenic vistas

- Comfort facilities (e.g. benches, wayfinding,
restrooms)

The most important benefits or services Dakota
County Parks, Greenways and Natural Systems will
provide in the future.

«  Community building and social connections
(e.g. host community events, provide
reservation spaces for private gatherings, host
programs)

+ Protection, management, and education of
historic and cultural sites

+ 91% of respondents feel very safe or safe in
Dakota County Parks, Trails and Greenways.

« 68% of respondents strongly agree with
this statement:“l feel like | belong in Dakota
County parks’, 27% somewhat agree, and 5%
somewhat or strongly disagree, or are unsure.

16 Dakota County 2050 Vision Plan | September 2024 Interim Report-out

FOCUS GROUP AND POP-UP EVENT
HIGHLIGHTS TO-DATE:

As of September 4, more than sixteen community
focus group and pop-up events have been held
where more than 250 people have been engaged.
Some key themes that have emerged include:

Indigenous engagement consistently
suggests putting less on the landscape (i.e.,
fewer buildings, structures, signs, etc.) and to
prioritize caring for the land and water. The
guidance that the interpretive theme ‘We are
all Related’ has also been a common thread,
noting that as a result of caring for the land and
water, there are and will be healthier habitats
and places for plants, animals, and people.
“Caring” could mean restoration, preservation,
co-management, or leave it be.

People would love to see more organized
activities and social events at Dakota County
parks and in natural areas.

Many people mentioned amenities for children,
particularly playground equipment.

Younger park visitors are most appreciative
of playground equipment, while older park
visitors are most interested in seeing more
walkways and serene natural spaces. Many
commented that they appreciate that Dakota



County Parks are clean and well cared for.
Families with children also valued bathrooms
and water/drinking fountains at parks.

Interest in seeing the park system be
interconnected in the future by greenway trails.

Many people do not know what a “greenway” is.

Many people are familiar with and love
Lebanon Hills for its trails, markers/maps,
pavilion, accessibility (easy to get to),
bathrooms, playgrounds, range of activities,
and water/drinking fountains.

Because of its large size, people would
appreciate more directional signage at Lebanon
Hills.

One parent mentioned wanting to see
structures/activities at the parks that are
directed toward older kids. Her younger kids
use the parks often, but her older son did not.
She suggested adding an obstacle course.

Other parks outside of Dakota County that were
praised include Terrace Oaks West in Burnsville
and Alimagnet Park (nice walking paths, water,
and natural spaces), Kelley Park in Apple Valley
(feels safe), and Hidden Valley (obstacle course,
feels safe, river, optimal sledding hill).

One person was underwhelmed with her visit
to Spring Lake Park Reserve because she felt
there wasn't much to do, and she would have
appreciated more trails.

One frequent Lebanon Hills visitor expressed
frustration with the Holland Lake Picnic
Shelter because families tend to come early
and take up all the tables. She would love to
see a reservation system and more benches
throughout the park.

DAKOTA COUNTY BOARD INPUT

In addition to presentations to the Physical

Development of the Whole in March, April, May,

and June of 2024, County staff met with each

County Board member to discuss their thoughts

on current park, greenway, and natural systems
and goals for the future. Common themes
include:

Recognition that 2050 plan is long-range

and should be forward thinking and
innovative. At the same time, recognition that
implementation will depend on future revenue
and funding.

Priority to identify a dedicated and sustainable
funding source for parks, greenways, and
natural systems.

Strong support for partnerships with other
public sector agencies, private sector, and non-
profits.

Recognition that taking care of what we have is
fundamental.

Recognition that county cities and residents
have different needs in urban, established
suburban, growing suburban, and rural areas.
There is a need to work with and coordinate
with city and township staff in these areas to
meet specific needs. The vision cannot be a
‘one size fits all’approach.

Continued support for land protection and
natural resources management as fundamental.

Support for continued development of the
greenway network.

Strong interest in the role of parks, greeenways,
and natural systems in economic development
and cultivating public-private partnerships to
allow for a greater a variety of park experiences,
to support local businesses, and to contribute
to revenue.

Dakota County 2050 Vision Plan | September 2024 Interim Report-out 17



+ Interest in providing more to do in existing
parks with signature facilities, signature events,
greater variety of experiences, integration of
art, culture, and history.

« Interest in exploring options for new parks and
greenways as part of the 2050 vision. Working
closely with city partners, improving, and
expanding existing parks and access to the

Mississippi and Minnesota Rivers are supported.

« Interest in ways for Dakota County to partner
with cities to support walkable communities
with shorter trail loops and pedestrian safety.

DAKOTA COUNTY PARKS STAFF INPUT

Several staff focus groups have been held around
the topics of visitor services, greenways, natural
resources and land conservation. Below are the
themes regarding vision for the future.

Visitor Services

« Become a place that visitors are comfortable
and feel that they belong, a‘third space’along
with home and work.

+ Welcoming to all

+ Supportive ecosystem with municipal parks
and micro-economies

« True engagement with schools

« Bea place for spontaneous events and
gatherings

Greenways

« Use greenways to interconnect parks and
community destinations

« Potential for connected hiking trails in rural
areas (similar model to snowmobile trails,
utilizing trail easements from interested private

18 Dakota County 2050 Vision Plan | September 2024 Interim Report-out

landowners)

« Greenways as framework for community
development

« Add shorter loop options for those who walk or
don’t want to bike long distances

« Supportive of an ecosystem of public/private

spaces within parks so that people can have
different experiences in each park

Natural Resources / Land Conservation

+ Interconnected systems of diverse native
communities

« Continue strong land conservation focus
« Strong indicator species program

- Dakota County as resource for local
governments and landowners



	1. 9-26-24 Planning Commission Agenda
	2. August 22 2024 Planning Commission Draft Minutes
	Meeting Minutes: Dakota County Planning Commission Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes-DRAFT
	Attendance
	Meeting Called to Order
	Pledge of Allegiance
	Public Comments
	Approval of Agenda
	Approval of Minutes (from May 23, 2024)
	Planning Manager Update and County Board Actions
	• Discussed 2050 Vision for Parks and Natural Resources – Connected Places
	• Reviewed proposed Capital Improvement Plan
	• Approved contract for design services for Lebanon Hills sustainable trails improvements
	• Approved design for Fischer Avenue Trailhead at Spring Lake Park Reserve
	Upcoming Public Meetings – Community Outreach
	Topics for next meeting (Thursday, September 26, 2024)
	Planning Commissioner Announcements/Updates:
	Tour
	Adjournment
	Next Meeting: Thursday, September 26, 2024, at 7:00 p.m., Dakota County Western Service Center, Apple Valley


	3. Solid Waste Plan - White Paper September 26 2024 PC
	DAKOTA COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION

	4. Attachment Public Comments
	5. DRAFT 2024-2044 Dakota County Solid Waste Management Plan
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
	PART ONE: INTRODUCTION
	A. Introduction
	B. Plan Purpose and Framework
	1. Plan Purpose
	2. Plan Framework
	3. Statutory Waste Management Goal and Requirements


	PART TWO: SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN
	A. County Solid Waste Vision
	B. County Solid Waste Policies
	C. Strategies and Tactics by Topic
	1. Topic: Improving the Reliability of the Data
	2. Topic: Education and Regional Planning
	3. Topic: Waste Reduction and Reuse
	4. Topic: Recycling and Organics Management with Collection Best Practices
	5. Topic: Waste-to-Energy
	6. Topic: Landfilling
	7. Topic: Household Hazardous Waste and Toxicity Reduction
	8. Topic: Sustainable Building and Deconstruction
	9. Topic: Wood Waste
	10. Topic: Cost and Finance

	D. Plan Implementation
	1. Public Education
	2. Environmental Justice
	3. Phasing and Collaboration
	4. Performance and Accountability


	Appendix A:  Existing Waste Management System and County Programs
	A. Waste Management Governance, Roles, and Responsibilities
	B. Demographics
	C. Waste Projection and Composition
	D. Waste Management in Dakota County
	E. Dakota County’s Waste Programs and Activities
	1. Regional Solutions
	2. Source Reduction and Reuse Programs and Activities
	3. Collection Best Practices
	4. Revenue Sources
	5. Recycling Management Programs and Activities
	a. Projects and Programs in the Community
	b. Recycling Drop-Off Locations

	6. Organics Management Programs and Activities (Includes Programs Combined With Recycling)
	a. Projects and Programs in the Community
	b. Projects and Programs in County Operations

	7. Non-Municipal Solid Waste Programs and Activities
	a. Non-MSW Regulation
	b. Projects and Programs in the Community
	c. Projects and Programs in the County Operations

	8. Landfill Abatement
	a. Communications, Education, and Outreach Programs and Activities
	b. Education Resources for the Community

	9. Solid and Hazardous Waste Regulation Programs and Activities
	a. Regulatory Mechanisms: Ordinance and Licensing
	b. Material Bans
	c. Prohibitions

	10. Household Hazardous Waste, Toxicity Reduction, and Problem Material Management Programs and Activities
	a. The Recycling Zone Services
	b. Residential Collection Events
	c. Residential Sharps and Pharmaceuticals Collections
	d. Projects and Programs in County Operations

	11. Resource Recovery Programs and Activities

	F. Collection and Transportation of Waste
	1. Hauling Systems in Dakota County

	G. Waste Management Facilities
	1. Waste Flow
	2. Material Recovery Facilities (MRF)
	3. Organics Management Facilities
	4. Yard Waste Facilities
	5. Resource Recovery Facilities
	6. MSW Land Disposal Facilities
	7. Non-MSW Land Disposal Facilities
	8. Non-MSW Processing Facilities
	9. Hazardous Waste and Problem Materials Facility


	Appendix B:  Management Plan Development
	A. Research Phase
	1. Studies
	a. Residential Reuse Behavior (Dakota County – Problosky Research, 2023)
	b. Residential Organics Collection Options in Dakota County (Dakota County – SCS Engineers, 2024)
	c. Wood Waste Study (Dakota County Office of Performance and Analysis, 2024)
	d. Compost Utilization Study (Dakota County Office of Performance and Analysis, 2024)

	2. Stakeholder Engagement

	B. Draft Plan Development Phase
	1. Strategy Selection
	2. Stakeholder Engagement

	C. Plan Review and Adoption Phase

	Appendix C:  Environmental Justice: Review And Framework for Plan Implementation
	A. Background
	B. Engagement During Plan Development
	C. Plan Implementation

	Appendix D:  Performance and Accountability
	A. Evaluating Progress
	B. County Reporting Requirements
	C. County Oversight of the Private Sector, Municipalities, and Program Partners

	Appendix E:  Plan Strategies and Projected Implementation Timing
	Appendix F:  Checklist of Statutory County Management Plan Requirements

	6. ADA PLANC_2050 Vision
	DAKOTA COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION

	7. Dakota County 2050 Vision Plan_Planning Commission

